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The abbreviations and acronyms used in the 2015 Form 10-K are defined below:

2010 Credit Agreement

2010 Reimbursement
Agreement

2013 Covenants
Agreement

2013 TEP Rate Order

2014 Credit Agreement

2015 Credit Agreement

2015 TEP Rate Case

ACC
APS
BART

Base Rates

Cooling Degree Days

DSM
EE Standards
FERC

Fortis

Four Corners
GAAP

GBtu

GWh

Gila River Unit 3

Heating Degree Days

kV
kWh
LFCR
LOC
MW
MWh
Navajo

The 2010 Credit Agreement consisted of a $200 million revolving credit and letter of credit
facility together with an $82 million LOC facility to support tax-exempt bonds; terminated
in October 2015 when replaced by the 2015 Credit Agreement

Reimbursement Agreement, dated December 14, 2010, between TEP, as borrower, and a
financial institution

A Lender Rate Mode Covenants Agreement between TEP and the purchaser of $100
million of unsecured tax-exempt bonds that were issued on behalf of TEP in November
2013 and sold in a private placement

A rate order issued by the ACC resulting in a new rate structure for TEP, effective July 1,
2013

The 2014 Credit Agreement consisted of a $130 million term loan commitment and a $70
million revolving credit commitment; terminated in June 2015

The 2015 Credit Agreement provides for a $250 million revolving credit and letter of
credit facility with a sublimit of $50 million; the credit agreement matures in 2020 and
replaced the 2010 Credit Agreement

A pending general rate case filed with the ACC by TEP in November 2015 requesting new
rates effective January 1, 2017

Arizona Corporation Commission

Arizona Public Service Company

Best Available Retrofit Technology

The portion of TEP’s Retail Rates attributed to generation, transmission, distribution, and
customer costs. Base Rates exclude authorized charges designed to recover specific costs
that are passed through to customers including fuel and purchased power costs, energy
efficiency program costs, certain environmental compliance costs, and a portion of
renewable energy costs

An index used to measure the impact of weather on energy usage calculated by subtracting
75 from the average of the high and low daily temperatures

Demand Side Management

Energy Efficiency Standards

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

Fortis Inc., a corporation incorporated under the Corporations Act of Newfoundland and
Labrador, Canada, whose principal executive offices are located at Fortis Place, Suite
1100, 5 Springdale Street, St. John's, NL A1E OE4

Four Corners Generating Station

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States

Billion British thermal units

Gigawatt-hour(s)

Unit 3 of the Gila River Generating Station

An index used to measure the impact of weather on energy usage calculated by subtracting
the average of the high and low daily temperatures from 65

Kilo-volt(s)

Kilowatt-hour(s)

Lost Fixed Cost Recovery

Letter of Credit

Megawatt(s)

Megawatt-hour(s)

Navajo Generating Station



PNM
PPA
PPFAC

ppb
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Public Service Company of New Mexico
Power Purchase Agreement

Purchased Power and Fuel Adjustment Clause
Parts per billion




REC
RES

Retail Rates

San Juan

SCR

SJCC

SNCR
Springerville
Springerville Coal
Handling Facilities
Springerville Coal
Handling Facilities
Leases
Springerville Common
Facilities
Springerville Common
Facilities Leases
Springerville Unit 1
Springerville Unit 1
Leases
Springerville Unit 2
Springerville Unit 3
Springerville Unit 4
SRP

Sundt

Sundt Unit 4

TEP

Third-Party Owners
Tri-State
UNS Electric

UNS Energy
UNS Gas

vi
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Renewable Energy Credit

Renewable Energy Standard

Rates designed to allow a regulated utility an opportunity to recover its reasonable
operating and capital costs and earn a return on its utility plant in service

San Juan Generating Station

Selective Catalytic Reduction

San Juan Coal Company

Selective Non-Catalytic Reduction

Springerville Generating Station

Coal handling facilities at Springerville used by all four Springerville units

Leases for coal handling facilities at Springerville used in common by all four
Springerville units

Facilities at Springerville used in common by Springerville Units 1 and 2

Leveraged lease arrangements relating to an undivided one-half interest in Springerville
Common Facilities

Unit 1 of the Springerville Generating Station

Leveraged lease arrangement relating to Springerville Unit 1 and an

undivided one-half interest in certain Springerville Common Facilities

Unit 2 of the Springerville Generating Station

Unit 3 of the Springerville Generating Station

Unit 4 of the Springerville Generating Station

Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District

H. Wilson Sundt Generating Station

Unit 4 of the H. Wilson Sundt Generating Station

Tucson Electric Power Company, the principal subsidiary of UNS Energy Corporation
Wilmington Trust Company and William J. Wade, as Owner Trustee and Co-trustee under
a separate trust agreement with each of the remaining two owner participants, Alterna
Springerville LLC (Alterna) and LDVF1 TEP LLC (LDVF1) (Alterna and LDVFI,
together with the Owner Trustees and Co-trustees, the Third-Party Owners)

Tri-State Generation and Transmission Association, Inc.

UNS Electric, Inc., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of UNS Energy

UNS Energy Corporation, the parent company of TEP, whose principal executive offices
are located at 88 East Broadway Boulevard, Tucson, Arizona 85701

UNS Gas, Inc., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of UNS Energy
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements as defined by the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. Tucson Electric Power Company (TEP) is including the following cautionary statements to make
applicable and take advantage of the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 for
any forward-looking statements made by or for TEP in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Forward-looking statements
include statements concerning plans, objectives, goals, strategies, future events or performance and underlying
assumptions, and other statements that are not statements of historical facts. Forward-looking statements may be
identified by the use of words such as anticipates, believes, estimates, expects, intends, may, plans, predicts, projects,
would, and similar expressions. From time to time, we may publish or otherwise make available forward-looking
statements of this nature. All such forward-looking statements, whether written or oral, and whether made by or on
behalf of TEP, are expressly qualified by these cautionary statements and any other cautionary statements which may
accompany the forward-looking statements. In addition, TEP disclaims any obligation to update any forward-looking
statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this report, except as may otherwise be required by the
federal securities laws.

Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties, which could cause actual results or outcomes to differ
materially from those expressed therein. We express our expectations, beliefs, and projections in good faith and
believe them to have a reasonable basis. However, we make no assurances that management’s expectations, beliefs or
projections will be achieved or accomplished. We have identified the following important factors that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those discussed in our forward-looking statements. These may be in addition to
other factors and matters discussed in: Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors; Part II, [tem 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations; and other parts of this report. These factors include: state
and federal regulatory and legislative decisions and actions; changes in, and compliance with, environmental laws,
regulations, decisions and policies that could increase operating and capital costs, reduce generating facility output or
accelerate generating facility retirements; regional economic and market conditions which could affect customer
growth and energy usage; changes in energy consumption by retail customers; weather variations affecting energy
usage; the cost of debt and equity capital and access to capital markets; the performance of the stock market and
changing interest rate environment, which affect the value of our pension and other retiree benefit plan assets and the
related contribution requirements and expense; the inability to make additions to our existing high voltage
transmission system; unexpected increases in O&M expense; resolution of pending litigation matters; changes in
accounting standards; changes in critical accounting estimates; the ongoing impact of mandated energy efficiency and
distributed generation initiatives; changes to long-term contracts; the cost of fuel and power supplies; the ability to
obtain coal from our suppliers; cyber attacks or challenges to our information security; and the performance of TEP's
generating plants.
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

GENERAL

Tucson Electric Power Company (TEP) and its predecessor companies have served the greater Tucson metropolitan
area for over 100 years. TEP was incorporated in the State of Arizona in 1963. TEP is a regulated electric utility
company serving approximately 417,000 retail customers. TEP’s service territory covers 1,155 square miles and
includes a population of approximately one million people in Pima County, as well as parts of Cochise County. TEP's
principal business operations include generating, transmitting, and distributing electricity to its retail customers. In
addition to retail sales, TEP sells electricity, transmission, and ancillary services to other utilities, municipalities, and
energy marketing companies on a wholesale basis. TEP is subject to comprehensive state and federal regulation. The
regulated electric utility operation is TEP's only segment.

TEP is a wholly owned subsidiary of UNS Energy Corporation (UNS Energy), a utility services holding company. In
August 2014, UNS Energy was acquired by Fortis Inc. (Fortis) and became an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
Fortis, which is a leader in the North American electric and gas utility business.

REGULATED UTILITY OPERATIONS

TEP delivers electricity to retail customers in southern Arizona. TEP owns or has contracts for coal, natural gas, wind,
solar, and landfill gas generation resources to provide electricity. This electricity, together with electricity purchased
on the wholesale market, is delivered over transmission lines which are part of the Western Interconnection, a regional
grid in the United States. The electricity is then transformed to lower voltages and delivered to customers through
TEP's distribution system.

TEP operates under a certificate of public convenience and necessity as regulated by the Arizona Corporation
Commission (ACC), under which TEP is obligated to provide electricity service to customers within its service
territory. The ACC establishes retail rates on a cost-of-service basis, which are designed to allow TEP to recover its
costs of providing services and an opportunity to earn a reasonable return on its investment.

1
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CUSTOMERS
Electricity sold to retail and wholesale customers by class of customer and the average number of retail customers
over the last three years were as follows:

2015 2014 2013

Electric Sales - GWh

Residential 3,724 28 % 3,727 29 % 3,867 30 %
Commercial 2,124 15 % 2,170 17 % 2,187 17 %
Industrial (Non-mining) 2,063 15 % 2,098 16 % 2,114 17 %
Mining 1,109 8 % 1,137 9 % 1,079 9 %
Other 33 — % 33 — % 32 — %
Total Electric Retail Sales 9,053 66 % 9,165 71 % 9,279 73 %
Electric Wholesale Sales - Long-Term 750 5 % 618 5 % 605 5 %
Electric Wholesale Sales - Short-Term 3,928 29 % 3,082 24 % 2,859 22 %
Total Electric Sales 13,731 100 % 12,865 100 % 12,743 100 %
Average Number of Retail Customers:

Residential 376,439 90 % 374,204 90 % 370,925 90 %
Commercial 38,253 9 % 38,079 9 % 37,783 9 %
Industrial (Non-mining) 588 — % 604 — % 622 — %
Mining 4 — % 4 — % 4 — %
Other 1,857 1 % 1,858 1 % 1,843 1 %
Total Retail Customers 417,141 100 % 414,749 100 % 411,177 100 %

Retail Customers

TEP provides electric utility service to a diverse group of residential, commercial, industrial, and public sector
customers. Major industries served include copper mining, cement manufacturing, defense, health care, education,
military bases, and other governmental entities. TEP’s retail sales are influenced by several factors, including
economic conditions, seasonal weather patterns, Demand Side Management (DSM) initiatives and the increasing use
of energy efficient products, and customer owned distributed generation.

Local, regional, and national economic factors impact the growth in the number of customers in TEP’s service
territory. In each of the past five years, TEP’s average number of retail customers increased by less than 1%. TEP
expects the number of retail customers to increase at a rate of approximately 1% in 2016 based on estimated
population growth in its service territory.

TEP’s retail sales volume in 2015 was approximately 9,053 gigawatt-hours (GWh), which is a decrease of 3% from
2011 levels. During the past five years, local economic conditions combined with state requirements to reduce retail
sales through energy efficiency and distributed generation have resulted in lower sales volumes and lower use per
customer.

Two of TEP’s largest retail customers are in the copper mining industry. TEP’s GWh sales to mining customers depend
on a variety of factors including commodity prices, the electricity rate paid by mining customers, and the mines’
development of their own electric generation resources. TEP’s GWh sales to mining customers decreased by 2% in
2015 as a result of mining curtailments due to declining commodity prices. In 2016, TEP expects additional
curtailments to certain mining customers based on announced plans and current commodity prices. TEP cannot predict
how long the commodity prices will remain low or the impact prices will have on mining production.

See Part II, Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Factors
Affecting Results of Operations for additional information regarding mining customers.

2
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Wholesale Sales

TEP’s electric utility operations include the wholesale marketing of electricity to other utilities and power marketers.
Wholesale sales transactions are made on both a firm and interruptible basis. A firm contract requires TEP to supply
power on demand (except under limited emergency circumstances), while an interruptible contract allows TEP to stop
supplying power under defined conditions.

Generally, TEP commits to future sales based on expected generating capability, forward prices, and generation costs,
using a diversified portfolio approach to provide a balance between long-term, mid-term, and spot energy sales. TEP’s
wholesale sales consist primarily of two types:

Long-Term Wholesale Sales

Long-term wholesale contracts cover periods of one year or greater. TEP typically uses its own generation to serve the
requirements of its long-term wholesale customers. In 2015, TEP’s primary long-term contracts were with Salt River
Project Agriculture Improvement and Power District (SRP), Shell Energy North America (Shell), the Navajo Tribal
Utility Authority (NTUA), and TRICO Electric Cooperative (TRICO). The SRP contract expires in May 2016, the
Shell contract expires in December 2017, the NTUA contract expires in December 2022, and the TRICO contract
expires in December 2024.

In November 2015, TEP entered into a long-term wholesale sales contract with Navopache Electric Cooperative
(Navopache). Delivery of power begins January 1, 2017 and expires in December 2041.

Short-Term Wholesale Sales

Forward contracts commit TEP to sell a specified amount of capacity or energy at a specified price over a given period
of time, typically for one-month or three-month periods. TEP also engages in short-term sales by selling energy in the
daily or hourly markets at fluctuating spot market prices and making other non-firm energy sales. The majority of our
revenues from short-term wholesale sales offset fuel and purchased power costs and are passed through to TEP’s retail
customers. TEP uses short-term wholesale sales as part of its hedging strategy to reduce customer exposure to
fluctuating power prices.

Competition

Retail Customers

TEP is the primary electric service provider to retail customers within its service territory and operates under a
certificate of public convenience and necessity as regulated by the ACC. TEP is subject to competition from
customer-sited distributed generation, energy efficiency, and other emerging technologies. TEP is experiencing
increases in the levels of customer-sited solar arrays and the use of net energy metering, which allows self-generating
retail customers to use their excess generation to offset a portion of their future electricity consumption at the full
retail rate.

Wholesale Sales

The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) regulates rates for wholesale power sales and transmission
services. TEP's wholesale activity primarily consists of Short-Term Wholesale Sales to manage fuel and purchased
power supplies to serve retail customer energy requirements and Long-Term Wholesale Sales to optimize generation
capacity. As a result of its wholesale activity, TEP competes with other utilities, power marketers and independent
power producers in the wholesale markets.

3
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GENERATING FACILITIES
As of December 31, 2015 TEP owned 2,501 megawatts (MW) of nominal generating capacity, as set forth in the
following table. Nominal capacity is based on unit design net output.

Unit Date Resource Capacity Operating TEP’s Share
Generating Source No. Location In Service Type MW Agent % ?gw
Springerville Station 1 Springerville, AZ 1985 Coal 387 TEP 495 192
Springerville Station 2 Springerville, AZ 1990 Coal 406 TEP 100 406
San Juan Station 1 Farmington, NM 1976 Coal 340 PNM 50.0 170
San Juan Station 2 Farmington, NM 1973 Coal 340 PNM 50.0 170
Navajo Station 1 Page, AZ 1974 Coal 750 SRP 7.5 56
Navajo Station 2 Page, AZ 1975 Coal 750 SRP 7.5 56
Navajo Station 3 Page, AZ 1976 Coal 750 SRP 7.5 56
Four Corners Station 4 Farmington, NM 1969 Coal 785 APS 7.0 55
Four Corners Station 5 Farmington, NM 1970 Coal 785 APS 7.0 55
Gila River Power Station 3 GilaBend, AZ 2003 Gas 550 g;he(;;y 750 413
Luna Generating Station 1 Deming, NM 2006 Gas 555 PNM 333 185
Sundt Station 1 Tucson, AZ 1958 Gas/Oil 81 TEP 100 81
Sundt Station 2 Tucson, AZ 1960 Gas/Oil 81 TEP 100 81
Sundt Station 3 Tucson, AZ 1962 Gas/Oil 104 TEP 100 104
Sundt Station @ 4 Tucson, AZ 1967 Gas 156 TEP 100 156
Sundt Internal Combustion Tucson, AZ ~ 1972-1973  Gas/Oil 50 TEP 100 50
Turbines
DeMoss Petrie Tucson, AZ 2001 Gas 75 TEP 100 75
North Loop Tucson, AZ 2001 Gas 94 TEP 100 94
Springerville Solar Station Springerville, AZ 2002-2014  Solar 16 TEP 100 16
Tucson Solar Projects Tucson, AZ 2010-2014  Solar 13 TEP 100 13

it'ZH“aChuca’ 2014 Solar 17 TEP 100 17
Total TEP Capacity 3 2,501
(1) Capacity measured in direct current (DC).
Sundt Station Unit 4 is a multi-fuel generating facility that can be operated on either coal or natural gas as a
primary fuel source. In August 2015, TEP exhausted its existing coal supply at Sundt Station Unit 4 and plans to
continue operating Sundt Station Unit 4 with natural gas as a primary fuel source. The table above reflects the
@) nominal generating capacity assuming the unit is fueled by natural gas. Refer to Part II, Item 7. Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Environmental Matters of this Form
10-K for additional information related to environmental matters impacting Unit 4 of the H. Wilson Sundt
Generating Station (Sundt).
3) Excludes 913 MW of additional resources, which consist of certain capacity purchases and interruptible retail load.
Springerville Generating Station
TEP has a 49.5% ownership interest in Unit 1 of the Springerville Generating Station (Springerville Unit 1) and
operates the remaining interests in Springerville Unit 1 on behalf of third parties, Wilmington Trust Company and
William J. Wade, as Owner Trustee and Co-trustee under a separate trust agreement with each of the remaining two
owner participants, Alterna Springerville LLC (Alterna) and LDVF1 TEP LLC (LDVF1) (Alterna and LDVF1,
together with the Owner Trustees and Co-trustees, the Third-Party Owners). The Owner Trustees and Co-Trustees are
responsible for their share of operating and capital costs for the facility. See Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional information regarding the Third-Party Owners.

Ft. Huachuca Project
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Unit 2 of the Springerville Generating Station (Springerville Unit 2) is owned by San Carlos Resources, Inc., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of TEP.

4
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TEP's other interests in the Springerville Generating Station (Springerville) include: (i) 49.5% undivided interest in
certain common facilities used by Springerville Unit 1; and (ii) an 83% ownership interest in the Springerville Coal
Handling Facilities.

Springerville Common Facilities Leases

The leveraged lease arrangements relating to a 50% undivided interest in certain Springerville Common Facilities
(Springerville Common Facilities Leases) used by Springerville Unit 2, which expire in 2017 and 2021, have fair
market value renewal options as well as fixed-price purchase options. The fixed prices to acquire the leased interests
in the Springerville Common Facilities are $38 million in 2017 and $68 million in 2021.

See Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K and Part II, Item 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Liquidity and Capital
Resources for additional information regarding the capital leases.

Springerville Units 3 and 4

Springerville Units 3 and 4 are each approximately 400 MW coal-fired generating facilities that are operated, but not
owned by TEP. These facilities are located at the same site as Springerville Units 1 and 2. The lessee of Springerville
Unit 3 and the owner of Springerville Unit 4 compensate TEP for operating the facilities and pay an allocated portion
of the fixed costs related to the Springerville common facilities and Coal Handling Facilities.

Sundt Generating Station

Sundt and the internal combustion turbines located in Tucson are designated as must-run generation facilities.
Must-run generation units are required to run in certain circumstances to maintain distribution system reliability and to
meet local load requirements.

Renewable Energy Resources

The ACC’s Renewable Energy Standard (RES) requires TEP, and other affected utilities, to increase their use of
renewable energy each year until it represents at least 15% of their total annual retail energy requirements by 2025,
with distributed generation accounting for 30% of the annual renewable energy requirement. Affected utilities must
file an annual RES implementation plan for review and approval by the ACC. TEP plans to meet this requirement
through a combination of owned resources and Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs). See Note 2 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K and Rates and Regulations below for additional
information regarding RES.

Owned Renewable Resources

As of December 31, 2015, TEP owned 46 MW of photovoltaic (PV) solar generating capacity. In 2016, TEP plans to
complete an additional solar project adding 5 MW of PV solar generating capacity. The solar generating facilities are
located on properties held under easements and leases. In December 2015, TEP also acquired a 5 MW concentrated
solar project which does not increase capacity but displaces the equivalent amount of steam produced by burning
fossil fuel.

Renewable Power Purchase Agreements

As of December 31, 2015, TEP has renewable PPAs for 175 MW of capacity measured in direct current (DC) from
solar resources, 80 MW of capacity measured in alternating current (AC) from wind resources and 4 MW of capacity
measured in AC from a landfill gas generation plant. The solar PPAs contain options that allow TEP to purchase all or
part of the related project at a future period.

Power Purchases

TEP purchases power from other utilities and power marketers. TEP may enter into contracts to purchase: (i) energy
under long-term contracts to serve retail load and long-term wholesale contracts; (ii) capacity or energy during periods
of planned outages or for peak summer load conditions; and (iii) energy for resale to certain wholesale customers
under load and resource management agreements.

TEP typically uses generation from its gas-fired units, supplemented by power purchases, to meet the summer peak
demands of its retail customers. Some of these power purchases are price-indexed to natural gas. Due to its increasing
seasonal gas and purchased power usage, TEP hedges a portion of its total natural gas exposure with fixed price
contracts for a maximum of three years. TEP also purchases energy in the daily and hourly markets to meet higher
than anticipated demands, to cover unplanned generation outages, or when doing so is more economical than
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generating its own energy.
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TEP is a member of a regional reserve-sharing organization and has reliability and power sharing relationships with
other utilities. These relationships allow TEP to call upon other utilities during emergencies, such as plant outages and
system disturbances, and reduce the amount of reserves TEP is required to carry.

PEAK DEMAND AND FUTURE RESOURCES

Peak Demand

(in MW) 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Retail Customers 2,222 2,218 2,230 2,290 2,334
Firm Sales to Other Utilities 638 673 484 286 322
Coincident Peak Demand (A) 2,860 2,891 2,714 2,576 2,656
Total Generating Resources 2,452 2,240 2,240 2,267 2,262
Other Resources (I 913 932 775 683 1,009
Total TEP Resources (B) 3,365 3,172 3,015 2,950 3,271
Total Margin (B) — (A) 505 281 301 374 615

Reserve Margin (% of Coincident Peak
Demand)

(1) Other Resources include firm power purchases and interruptible retail and wholesale loads.

The chart above shows the relationship over a five-year period between peak demand and energy resources. Total
margin is the difference between total energy resources and coincident peak demand, and the reserve margin is the
ratio of margin to coincident peak demand. The reserve margin in 2015 was in compliance with reliability criteria set
forth by the Western Electricity Coordinating Council, a regional council of North American Reliability Corporation
(NERO).

Peak demand occurs during the summer months due to the cooling requirements of retail customers. Retail peak
demand varies from year-to-year due to weather, economic conditions, and other factors. Retail peak demand has
primarily declined over the five-year period due to weak economic conditions and the implementation of energy
efficiency programs and distributed generation.

Forecasted retail peak demand for 2016 is 2,109 MW compared with actual peak demand of 2,222 MW in 2015. TEP’s
2016 estimated retail peak demand is based on weather patterns observed over a 10-year period and other factors,
including estimates of customer usage and planned curtailment of mining customers. TEP believes existing generation
capacity and PPAs are sufficient to meet expected demand in 2016 and established reserve margin criteria.

Future Resources

At December 31, 2015, approximately 49% of TEP's generating capacity was fueled by coal. Existing and proposed
federal environmental regulations, as well as potential changes in state regulation, may increase the cost of operating
coal-fired generating facilities. TEP is executing strategies and evaluating additional steps to reduce its dependency on
coal generation while still meeting its peak load requirements. In August 2015, TEP exhausted its existing coal supply
at Unit 4 of the H. Wilson Sundt Generating Station (Sundt Unit 4). TEP expects to continue operating Sundt Unit 4
on natural gas as a primary fuel source.

See Part II, Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Factors
Affecting Results of Operations for additional information regarding TEP's generating facilities.

18 % 10 % 11 % 15 % 23 %
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FUEL SUPPLY
Fuel and Purchased Power Summary
Resource information is provided below:

Average Cost per kWh (cents per Percentage of Total kWh Resources

kWh)

2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013
Coal 2.44 2.50 2.66 60 % 68 % 75 %
Gas 3.35 4.99 4.57 19 % 9 % 8 %
Purchased Power 4.05 4.79 4.83 21 % 23 % 17 %
All Sources 3.31 3.64 3.54 100 % 100 % 100 %

Coal

The coal used for electric generation is low-sulfur, bituminous or sub-bituminous coal from mines in Arizona and
New Mexico. The table below provides information on the existing coal contracts that supply our generating stations.
The average cost of coal per million metric British thermal unit (MMBtu), including transportation, was $2.34 in

2015, $2.43 in 2014, and $2.57 in 2013.

2015 Coal Contract Avg.

Station Coal Supplier Consumption L Sulfur Coal Obtained From

. Expiration
(tons in 000s) Content
. . Peabody Lee Ranch Mine/El Segundo
M

Springerville CoalSales 2,676 2020 1.0% Mine

Four Corners @  BHP Billiton 378 2031 0.7% Navajo Mine

San Juan ® San Juan Coal Co. 1,079 2022 0.8% San Juan Mine

. Peabody .
Navajo CoalSales 510 2019 0.6% Kayenta Mine

(1) Peabody has a pending sale of the Lee Ranch Mine/El Segundo Mine to Bowie Resources Partners.
Beginning in July 2016 through June 2031, the coal for Four Corners will be purchased from the Navajo
2 Transitional Energy Company (NTEC). NTEC purchased the mine located near Four Corners from BHP Billiton
and will begin overseeing the mine operation in 2016.
(3> BHP Billiton sold San Juan Coal Co. to Westmoreland Coal Company, effective January 31, 2016.
TEP Operated Generating Facilities
The coal supplies for Springerville Units 1 and 2 are transported approximately 200 miles by railroad from
northwestern New Mexico. TEP expects coal reserves to be sufficient to supply the estimated requirements for
Springerville Units 1 and 2 for their estimated remaining lives.
TEP no longer uses coal as a primary fuel source for Sundt Unit 4.
Coal Generating Facilities Operated by Others
TEP also participates in jointly-owned coal-fired generating facilities at the Four Corners Generating Station (Four
Corners), the Navajo Generating Station (Navajo), and the San Juan Generating Station (San Juan). Four Corners,
which is operated by Arizona Public Service Company (APS), and San Juan, which is operated by Public Service
Company of New Mexico (PNM), are mine-mouth generating stations located adjacent to the coal reserves. Navajo,
which is operated by SRP, obtains its coal supply from the nearby Kayenta coal mine and receives deliveries on a
dedicated electric rail delivery system. Effective January 31, 2016, Westmoreland Coal Company purchased San Juan
Coal Company (SJCC) from BHP Billiton and has also agreed to a new coal supply agreement extending through June
30, 2022. TEP expects coal reserves available to these three jointly-owned generating facilities to be sufficient for the
remaining lives of the stations.
Natural Gas Supply
TEP uses generation from its facilities fueled by natural gas, in addition to energy from its coal-fired facilities and
purchased power, to meet the summer peak demands of its retail customers and local reliability needs. The average
cost of natural gas per MMBtu, including transportation, was $3.49 in 2015, $5.17 in 2014, and $4.55 in 2013.
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TEP purchases capacity from El Paso Natural Gas (EPNG) for transportation from the San Juan and Permian Basins
to its Sundt plant under firm transportation agreements. TEP also purchases firm gas transportation for Gila River Unit
3 from EPNG and Transwestern Pipeline Co., and for Luna Generating Station (Luna) from EPNG. TEP purchases
gas from Southwest Gas Corporation under a retail tariff for North Loop’s 94 MW of internal combustion turbines and
receives distribution service under a transportation agreement for DeMoss Petrie, a 75 MW internal combustion
turbine.

TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION

TEP's transmission system is part of the Western Interconnection, which includes the interconnected transmission
systems of 14 western states, two Canadian provinces and parts of Mexico. TEP's transmission system, together with
contractual rights on other transmission systems, enables TEP to integrate and access generation resources to meet its
customer load requirements. TEP's transmission and distribution systems included approximately 2,170 miles of
transmission lines, and 7,557 miles of distribution lines as of December 31, 2015.

In 2015, TEP completed construction and placed into service a 500-Kilo-volt (kV) transmission line extending from
the Pinal Central substation to TEP’s Tortolita substation northwest of Tucson. The transmission line was built to
provide additional transmission capacity from the Palo Verde area into TEP’s northern service territory.

RATES AND REGULATION

The ACC and the FERC each regulate portions of the utility accounting practices and rates of TEP. The ACC
regulates rates charged to retail customers, the siting of generation and transmission facilities, the issuance of debt,
transactions with affiliated parties, and other utility matters. The ACC also enacts other regulations and policies that
can affect business decisions and accounting practices. The FERC regulates terms and prices of transmission services
and wholesale electricity sales.

2015 Rate Case

In November 2015, TEP filed a general rate case with the ACC requesting a Base Rate increase of $110 million and
various rate design changes. See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this From 10-K
and Part II, Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Factors
Affecting Results of Operations for key provisions regarding the 2015 Rate Case.

Purchased Power and Fuel Adjustment Clause

The Purchased Power and Fuel Adjustment Clause (PPFAC) allows TEP to recover its fuel, transmission, and
purchased power costs, including demand charges, and the costs of contracts for hedging fuel and purchased power
costs for its retail customers. The PPFAC consists of a forward component and a true-up component.

The true-up component reconciles any over/under collected amounts from the preceding 12-month period and is
credited to or recovered from customers in the subsequent year.

TEP’s PPFAC also includes the recovery of the following costs and/or credits: lime costs used to control sulfur dioxide
(SO,) emissions at Springerville; sulfur credits received from TEP’s coal suppliers; broker fees; revenues from
short-term wholesale sales; and all of the proceeds from the sale of SO, allowances.

At December 31, 2015, TEP had over-collected fuel and purchased power costs by $18 million.

Renewable Energy Standards and Tariff

The ACC’s RES requires TEP and other affected utilities to increase their use of renewable energy each year until it
represents at least 15% of their total annual retail energy requirements in 2025, with distributed generation accounting
for 30% of the annual renewable energy requirement. Affected utilities must file an annual RES implementation plan
for review and approval by the ACC. The approved cost of carrying out those plans is recovered from retail customers
through the RES surcharge until such costs are reflected in TEP’s Base Rates. The associated lost revenues attributable
to meeting distributed generation targets will be partially recovered through the Lost Fixed Cost Recovery Mechanism
(LFCR). See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional
information.

In July 2015, TEP submitted its application for the 2016 RES implementation plan that includes a budget of

$57 million, which will be partially offset by applying approximately $9 million of previously recovered carryover
funds. TEP proposed to recover $48 million through the RES surcharge. The budget will fund the following: the
above market cost of renewable energy purchases; previously awarded performance-based incentives for customer
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installed distributed generation; depreciation and a return on TEP's investments in company-owned solar projects; and
various other program costs. TEP expects to receive a
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decision on the application in the first half 2016. TEP expects to recognize approximately $9 million of revenue in
2016 as a return on company-owned solar projects.

The percentage of retail kilowatt-hour (kWh) sales attributable to the 2015 RES renewable energy requirement was
8.6%, exceeding the overall 2015 requirement of 5.0%. TEP expects to meet the 2016 RES renewable energy
requirement of 6.0% of retail kWh sales. Compliance is determined through the ACC's review of TEP's annual RES
implementation plan. As TEP no longer pays incentives to obtain distributed generation Renewable Energy Credits
(REC), which are used to demonstrate compliance with the distributed generation requirement, TEP has requested a
waiver of the RES distributed generation requirements in its 2016 RES implementation plan.

Energy Efficiency Standards

In 2010, the ACC approved new Energy Efficiency Standards (EE Standards) designed to require electric utilities to
implement cost-effective programs to reduce customers' energy consumption. The EE Standards require increasing
cumulative annual targeted retail kWh savings equal to 22% by 2020. Since the implementation of the EE Standards,
TEP’s cumulative annual energy savings are approximately 9.3% of retail kWh sales in 2015. Compliance with the EE
Standards is determined through the ACC's review of the company's annual energy efficiency implementation plan.

In February 2016, the ACC approved TEP’s 2016 energy efficiency implementation plan. Under the 2016 plan, TEP
has been approved to recover approximately $14 million from retail customers and will offer customers new and
existing DSM programs. Energy savings realized through the programs will count toward Arizona’s EE Standards and
the associated lost revenue will be partially recovered through the LFCR. See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional information.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The EPA regulates the amount of SO,, nitrogen oxide (NO,), carbon dioxide (CO,), particulate matter, mercury and
other by-products produced by power plants. TEP may incur added costs to comply with future changes in federal and
state environmental laws, regulations, and permit requirements at its power plants. Environmental laws and
regulations are subject to a range of interpretations, which may ultimately be resolved by the courts. Because these
laws and regulations continue to evolve, TEP is unable to predict the impact of the changing laws and regulations on
its operations and consolidated financial results. TEP expects to recover the cost of environmental compliance from its
ratepayers.

National Ambient Air Quality Standards

In October 2015, the EPA released the final rule for the 8-hour Ozone NAAQS or Ozone Standard. The EPA lowered
the standard from 75 parts per billion (ppb) to 70ppb. If Pima County does not meet the standard, the county will be
designated as a “non-attainment” area and will need to develop a plan to bring the air-shed into compliance. A
“non-attainment” designation may slow economic growth in the region and impact our ability to site new local
generation.

Implementation of the rule is scheduled as follows:

States’ recommendation of area designations (attainment, non-attainment, or unclassified) by October 2016.

EPA's response to states’ designation recommendation by June 2017.

€PA's finalization of area designations by October 2017, based on 2014-2016 air quality data.

Effluent Limitation Guidelines

In September 2015, as part of the Clean Water Act the EPA published the final Effluent Limitation Guidelines setting
technology standards and limitations for steam electric power plant discharges. The rule sets the first federal limits on
the levels of toxic metals in wastewater that can be discharged from power plants, based on technology improvements
in the steam electric power industry over the last three decades. TEP is evaluating the effects of this rule on its
facilities including Navajo, San Juan, and Four Corners. Since the majority of TEP's facilities are zero discharge, TEP
does not anticipate a significant financial impact.

TEP believes it is in material compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Refer to Part II, Item 7. Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Environmental Laws and Regulations of
this Form 10-K for additional information related to environmental laws and regulations impacting TEP's liquidity and
capital resources and Liquidity and Capital Resources for TEP's forecasted environmental-related capital expenditures.
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EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 2015, TEP had 1,478 employees, of which approximately 688 were represented by the International
Brotherhood of Electrical Workers IBEW) Local No. 1116. A new collective bargaining agreement between the
IBEW and TEP was entered into in January 2016 and expires in January 2019.

SEC REPORTS AVAILABLE ON TEP'S WEBSITE

TEP makes available its annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K,
and all amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practical after we electronically file or furnish them to the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). These reports are available free of charge through TEP’s website address
at www.tep.com/about/investors/.

UNS Energy’s code of ethics, which applies to the Board of Directors and all officers and employees of UNS Energy
and its subsidiaries, including TEP, and any amendments or any waivers made to the code of ethics, is also available
on TEP’s website at www.tep.com/about/investors/.

TEP is providing the address of TEP’s website solely for the information of investors and does not intend the address
to be an active link. Information contained at TEP’s website is not part of, or incorporated by reference into, any report
or other filing filed with the SEC by TEP.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The business and financial results of TEP are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, including those set forth
below. These risks and uncertainties fall primarily into five major categories: revenues, regulatory, environmental,
financial, and operational.

REVENUES

National and local economic conditions can negatively affect the results of operations, net income, and cash flows at
TEP.

Economic conditions have contributed significantly to a reduction in TEP’s retail customer growth and lower energy
usage by the company’s residential, commercial, and industrial customers. As a result of weak economic conditions,
TEP’s average retail customer base grew by less than 1% in each year from 2011 through 2015 compared with average
increases of approximately 1% in each year from 2005 to 2009. TEP estimates that a 1% change in annual retail sales
could impact pre-tax net income and pre-tax cash flows by approximately $6 million.

New technological developments and compliance with the ACC's EE Standards and RES will continue to have a
significant impact on retail sales, which could negatively impact TEP’s results of operations, net income, and cash
flows.

Research and development activities are ongoing for new technologies that produce power or reduce power
consumption. These technologies include renewable energy, customer-owned generation, and appliances, equipment,
and control systems. Continued development and use of these technologies and compliance with the ACC's EE
Standards could further impact the results of operations, net income, and cash flows of TEP.

The revenues, results of operations, and cash flows of TEP are seasonal, and are subject to weather conditions and
customer usage patterns, which are beyond the company’s control.

TEP typically earns the majority of its operating revenue and net income in the third quarter because retail customers
increase their air conditioning usage during the summer. Conversely, TEP’s first quarter net income is typically limited
by relatively mild winter weather in its retail service territory. Cool summers or warm winters may reduce customer
usage, adversely affecting operating revenues, cash flows, and net income by reducing sales.

TEP is dependent on a small segment of large customers for future revenues. A reduction in the electricity sales to
these customers would negatively affect our results of operations, net income, and cash flows.

TEP sells electricity to mines, military installations, and other large industrial customers. In 2015, 35% of TEP’s retail
kWh sales were to 592 industrial and mining customers. Retail sales volumes and revenues from these customer
classes could
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decline as a result of, among other things: global, national, and local economic conditions; curtailments of customer
operations due to declines in commodity prices; decisions by the federal government to close military bases; the
effects of energy efficiency and distributed generation; or the decision by customers to self-generate all or a portion of
their energy needs. A reduction in retail kWh sales to TEP’s large customers would negatively affect our results of
operations, net income, and cash flows.

REGULATORY

TEP is subject to regulation by the ACC, which sets the company’s Retail Rates and oversees many aspects of its
business in ways that could negatively affect the company’s results of operations, net income, and cash flows.

The ACC is a constitutionally created body composed of five elected commissioners. Commissioners are elected
state-wide for staggered four-year terms and are limited to serving a total of two terms. As a result, the composition of
the commission, and therefore its policies, are subject to change every two years.

TEP’s Retail Rates consist of Base Rates and various rate adjustors that allow for timely recovery of certain costs
between rate cases. The ACC is charged with setting Retail Rates that allow TEP to recover its costs of service and an
opportunity to earn a reasonable rate of return. In setting TEP’s Retail Rates, the ACC could disallow the recovery of
costs or not provide for the timely recovery of costs. The decisions made by the ACC on such matters impact the net
income and cash flows of TEP.

Changes in federal energy regulation may negatively affect the results of operations, net income, and cash flows of
TEP.

TEP is subject to the impact of comprehensive and changing governmental regulation at the federal level that
continues to change the structure of the electric and gas utility industries and the ways in which these industries are
regulated. TEP is subject to regulation by the FERC. The FERC has jurisdiction over rates for electric transmission in
interstate commerce and rates for wholesale sales of electric power, including terms and prices of transmission
services and sales of electricity at wholesale.

As a result of the Energy Policy Act of 2005, owners and operators of bulk power systems, including TEP, are subject
to mandatory transmission standards developed and enforced by NERC and subject to the oversight of the FERC.
Compliance with modified or new transmission standards may subject TEP to higher operating costs and increased
capital costs. Failure to comply with the mandatory transmission standards could subject TEP to sanctions, including
substantial monetary penalties.

ENVIRONMENTAL

TEP is subject to numerous environmental laws and regulations that may increase its cost of operations or expose it to
environmentally-related litigation and liabilities. Many of these regulations could have a significant impact on TEP
due to its reliance on coal as its primary fuel for electric generation.

Numerous federal, state, and local environmental laws and regulations affect present and future operations. Those
laws and regulations include rules regarding air emissions, water use, wastewater discharges, solid waste, hazardous
waste, and management of coal combustion residuals.

These laws and regulations can contribute to higher capital, operating, and other costs, particularly with regard to
enforcement efforts focused on existing power plants and new compliance standards related to new and existing power
plants. These laws and regulations generally require us to obtain and comply with a wide variety of environmental
licenses, permits, authorizations, and other approvals. Both public officials and private individuals may seek to
enforce applicable environmental laws and regulations. Failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations may
result in litigation, and the imposition of fines, penalties, and a requirement by regulatory authorities for costly
equipment upgrades.

Existing environmental laws and regulations may be revised and new environmental laws and regulations may be
adopted or become applicable to our facilities. Increased compliance costs or additional operating restrictions from
revised or additional regulation could have an adverse effect on our results of operations, particularly if those costs are
not fully recoverable from our customers. TEP’s obligation to comply with the EPA’s Best Available Retrofit
Technology (BART) determinations as a participant in the San Juan, Four Corners, and Navajo plants, coupled with
the financial impact of future climate change legislation, other environmental regulations and other business
considerations, could jeopardize the economic viability of these plants or the ability of individual participants to meet

26



Edgar Filing: TUCSON ELECTRIC POWER CO - Form 10-K

their obligations and willingness to continue their participation in these plants. TEP cannot predict the ultimate
outcome of these matters.

TEP also is contractually obligated to pay a portion of the environmental reclamation costs incurred at generating
stations in which it has a minority interest and is obligated to pay similar costs at the mines that supply these
generating stations. While TEP has recorded the portion of its costs that can be determined at this time, the total costs
for final reclamation at these sites are unknown and could be substantial.
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Federal regulations limiting greenhouse gas emissions require a shift in generation from coal to natural gas and
renewable generation and could increase TEP's cost of operations.

In August 2015, the EPA issued the Clean Power Plan (CPP) limiting CO, emissions from existing and new fossil
fueled power plants. The CPP establishes state-level CO, emission rates and mass-based goals that apply to fossil
fuel-fired generation. The plan requires CO, emission reductions for existing facilities by 2030 and establishes interim
goals that begin in 2022. The CPP will require a shift in generation from coal to natural gas and renewables and could
lead to the early retirement of coal generation in Arizona within the 2022 to 2030 compliance time-frame. TEP will
continue to work with the other Arizona and New Mexico utilities, as well as the appropriate regulatory agencies, to
develop compliance strategies. TEP is unable to determine how the final CPP rule will impact its facilities until the
plans are developed and approved by the EPA.

Early closure of TEP's coal-fired generation plants resulting from environmental regulations could result in TEP
recognizing impairments in respect of such plants and increased cost of operations if recovery of our remaining
investments in such plants and the costs associated with such early closures were not permitted through rates charged
to customers.

TEP's coal-fired generating stations may be required to be closed before the end of their useful lives in response to
recent or future changes in environmental regulation, including potential regulation relating to greenhouse gas
emissions. If any of the coal-fired generation plants, or coal handling facilities, from which TEP obtains power are
closed prior to the end of their useful life, TEP could be required to recognize an impairment of its assets and incur
added expenses relating to accelerated depreciation and amortization, decommissioning, reclamation and cancellation
of long-term coal contracts of such generating plants and facilities. Closure of any of such generating stations may
force TEP to incur higher costs for replacement capacity and energy. TEP may not be permitted full recovery of these
costs in the rates it charges its customers. As of December 31, 2015, approximately 49% of TEP's generating capacity
is fueled by coal.

FINANCIAL

The Third-Party Owners of Springerville Unit 1 have and may continue to refuse to pay some, or all, of their pro-rata
share of the costs and expenses associated with Springerville Unit 1.

TEP owns 49.5% of Springerville Unit 1 and two separate third-parties own the remaining 50.5%. Starting in January
2015, TEP is obligated to operate Springerville Unit 1 for these Third-Party Owners under existing agreements. TEP
and the Third-Party Owners disagree on several key aspects of these agreements, including the allocation of
Springerville Unit 1 operating and maintenance expenses, capital improvement costs, and transmission rights. In
addition, since late 2014 the Third-Party Owners have filed separate complaints at the FERC, in New York State
court, and with the American Arbitration Association that include allegations that TEP violated certain provisions of
the governing agreements in relation to TEP’s operation of Springerville Unit 1. Because of these disagreements and
the pending litigation, the Third-Party Owners have and may continue to refuse to pay some or all of their pro-rata
share of such Springerville Unit 1 costs and expenses. As of December 31, 2015, TEP has billed the Third-Party
Owners approximately $23 million for their pro-rata share of Springerville Unit 1 expenses and $4 million for their
pro-rata share of capital expenditures, none of which had been paid as of February 17, 2016. The Third-Party Owners’
share of estimated 2016 operations and maintenance costs for Springerville Unit 1 is approximately $27 million and
their share of estimated 2016 capital expenditures is approximately $9 million.

Volatility or disruptions in the financial markets, or unanticipated financing needs, could: increase our financing costs;
limit our access to the credit markets; affect our ability to comply with financial covenants in our debt agreements;
and increase our pension funding obligations. Such outcomes may adversely affect our liquidity and our ability to
carry out our financial strategy.

We rely on access to the bank markets and capital markets as a significant source of liquidity and for capital
requirements not satisfied by the cash flow from our operations. Market disruptions such as those experienced in 2008
and 2009 in the United States and abroad may increase our cost of borrowing or adversely affect our ability to access
sources of liquidity needed to finance our operations and satisfy our obligations as they become due. These
disruptions may include turmoil in the financial services industry, including substantial uncertainty surrounding
particular lending institutions and counterparties we do business with, unprecedented volatility in the markets where
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our outstanding securities trade, and general economic downturns in our utility service territories. If we are unable to
access credit at competitive rates, or if our borrowing costs dramatically increase, our ability to finance our operations,
meet our short-term obligations, and execute our financial strategy could be adversely affected.

Changing market conditions could negatively affect the market value of assets held in our pension and other retiree
plans and may increase the amount and accelerate the timing of required future funding contributions.
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Plant closings or changes in power flows into our service territory could require us to redeem or defease some or all of
the tax-exempt bonds issued for our benefit. This could result in increased financing costs.

TEP has financed a substantial portion of utility plant assets with the proceeds of pollution control revenue bonds and
industrial development revenue bonds issued by governmental authorities. Interest on these bonds is, subject to certain
exceptions, excluded from gross income for federal tax purposes. This tax-exempt status is based, in part, on
continued use of the assets for pollution control purposes or the local furnishing of energy within TEP’s two-county
retail service area.

As of December 31, 2015, there were outstanding approximately $309 million aggregate principal amount of
tax-exempt bonds that financed pollution control facilities at TEP’s generating units. Should certain of TEP’s
generating units be retired and dismantled prior to the stated maturity dates of the related tax-exempt bonds, it is
possible that some or all of the bonds financing such facilities would be subject to mandatory early redemption by
TEP. Of the total amount outstanding, $37 million of the principal amount of the bonds can currently be redeemed at
par upon notice to holders, and $272 million principal amount of the bonds have early redemption dates or final
maturities ranging from 2019 to 2022.

In addition, as of December 31, 2015, there were outstanding approximately $307 million aggregate principal amount
of tax-exempt bonds that financed local furnishing facilities. Depending on changes that may occur to the regional
generation mix in the desert southwest, to the regional bulk transmission network, or to the demand for retail energy in
TEP’s local service area, it is possible that TEP would no longer qualify as a local furnisher of energy within the
meaning of the Internal Revenue Code. In recent years, reductions in retail demand in the winter months have made it
increasingly difficult for TEP to continue to qualify as a local furnisher of electricity. If TEP could no longer qualify
as a local furnisher of energy, all of TEP’s tax-exempt local furnishing bonds would be subject to mandatory early
redemption by TEP or defeasance to the earliest possible redemption date. Of the total tax-exempt local furnishing
bonds outstanding, $100 million of the principal amount of the bonds can currently be redeemed at par upon notice to
holders, and $207 million principal amount of the bonds have early redemption dates ranging from 2020 to 2023.
TEP’s net income and cash flows can be adversely affected by rising interest rates.

At December 31, 2015, TEP had $137 million of tax-exempt variable rate debt obligations. The interest rates are set
weekly or monthly. The average weekly interest rates (including Letters of Credit (LOCs) and remarketing fees)
ranged from 0.93% - 1.42% in 2015. The average monthly interest rates ranged from 0.79% - 0.87%. A 100 basis
point increase in the average interest rates on this debt over a twelve-month period would increase TEP’s interest
expense by approximately $1 million.

TEP is also subject to risk resulting from changes in the interest rate on its borrowings under the 2015 Credit
Agreement. Such borrowings may be made on a spread over London Interbank Offer Rate (LIBOR) or an Alternate
Base Rate.

If short-term interest rates rise, the resulting increase in the cost of variable rate borrowings would negatively impact
our results of operations, net income, and cash flows. Likewise, if capital market conditions result in higher long-term
interest rates, TEP’s borrowing costs would increase on any new long-term debt needed to finance capital expenditures
or to refinance existing long-term debt.

OPERATIONAL

The operation of electric generating stations, and transmission and distribution systems, involves risks that could
result in reduced generating capability or unplanned outages that could adversely affect TEP’s results of operations, net
income, and cash flows.

The operation of electric generating stations, and transmission and distribution systems, involves certain risks,
including equipment breakdown or failure, fires, weather, and other hazards, interruption of fuel supply, and lower
than expected levels of efficiency or operational performance. Unplanned outages, including extensions of planned
outages due to equipment failure or other complications, occur from time to time and are an inherent risk of our
business. If TEP’s generating stations and transmission and distribution systems operate below expectations, TEP’s
operating results could be adversely affected and/or TEP's capital spending could be increased.

TEP receives power from certain generating facilities that are jointly owned and operated by third parties. Therefore,
TEP may not have the ability to affect the management or operations at such facilities which could adversely affect
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TEP’s results of operations, net income, and cash flows.

Certain of the generating stations from which TEP receives power are jointly owned with, or are operated by, third
parties. TEP may not have the sole discretion or any ability to affect the management or operations at such facilities.
As a result of this reliance on other operators, TEP may not be able to ensure the proper management of the operations

and maintenance of the plants. Further, TEP may have no ability or a limited ability to make determinations on how
best to manage the changing regulations which may
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affect such facilities. In addition, TEP will not have sole discretion as to how to proceed in the face of requirements
relating to environmental compliance which could require significant capital expenditures or the closure of such
generating stations. A divergence in the interests of TEP and the co-owners or operators, as applicable, of such
generating facilities could negatively impact the business and operations of TEP.

We may be subject to physical attacks.

As operators of critical energy infrastructure, we may face a heightened risk of physical attacks on our electric
systems. Our electric generation, transmission, and distribution assets and systems are geographically dispersed and
are often in rural or unpopulated areas which make them especially difficult to adequately detect, defend from, and
respond to such attacks.

If, despite our security measures, a significant physical attack occurred, we could have our operations disrupted,
property damaged, experience loss of revenues, response costs, and other financial loss; and be subject to increased
regulation, litigation, and damage to our reputation, any of which could have a negative impact on our business and
results of operations.

We may be subject to cyber attacks.

We may face a heightened risk of cyber attacks. Our information and operations technology systems may be
vulnerable to unauthorized access due to hacking, viruses, acts of war or terrorism, and other causes. Our operations
technology systems have direct control over certain aspects of the electric system and, in addition, our utility business
requires access to sensitive customer data, including personal and credit information, in the ordinary course of
business.

If, despite our security measures, a significant cyber breach occurred, we could have our operations disrupted,
property damaged, and customer information stolen; experience loss of revenues, response costs, and other financial
loss; and be subject to increased regulation, litigation, and damage to our reputation, any of which could have a
negative impact on our business and results of operations.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Transmission facilities owned by TEP and by third parties are located in Arizona and New Mexico and transmit the
output from TEP’s electric generating stations at Four Corners, Navajo, San Juan, Springerville, Gila River, and Luna
to the Tucson area for use by TEP’s retail customers. The transmission system is interconnected at various points in
Arizona and New Mexico with other regional utilities. See Part I, Item 1. Business, General for additional information
regarding the transmission facilities.
TEP's electric generating stations (except as noted below), administrative headquarters, warehouses and service
centers are located on land owned by TEP. The electric distribution and transmission facilities owned by TEP are
located:
on property owned by TEP;
under or over streets, alleys, highways, and other places in the public domain, as well as in national forests and
state lands, under franchises, easements, or other rights which are generally subject to termination;
under or over private property as a result of easements obtained primarily from the record holder of title; or
over American Indian reservations under grant of easement by the Secretary of the Interior or lease by American
Indian tribes.
It is possible that some of the easements, and the property over which the easements were granted, may have title
defects or liens existing at the time the easements were acquired.
Springerville is located on property held by TEP under a term patent with the State of Arizona. TEP, under separate
sale and leaseback arrangements, leases a 50% undivided interest in the Springerville Common Facilities (which do
not include land).
Four Corners and Navajo are located on properties held under easements from the United States and under leases from
the Navajo Nation. TEP, individually and in conjunction with PNM in connection with San Juan, has acquired land
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rights, easements and leases for the plant, transmission lines and a water diversion facility located on land owned by
the Navajo
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Nation. TEP also has acquired easements for transmission facilities related to San Juan, Four Corners, and Navajo
located on reservation lands of the Zuni, Navajo, and Tohono O’odham Nations. TEP, in conjunction with PNM and
Samchully Power & Utilities 1 LLC, holds an undivided ownership interest in the property on which Luna is located.
TEP’s rights under these various easements and leases may be subject to defects such as:

possible conflicting grants or encumbrances due to the absence of, or inadequacies in, the recording laws or record
systems of the Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) and the American Indian tribes;

possible inability of TEP to legally enforce its rights against adverse claimants and the American Indian tribes without
Congressional consent; or

failure or inability of the American Indian tribes to protect TEP’s interests in the easements and leases from disruption
by the U.S. Congress, Secretary of the Interior, or other adverse claimants.

These possible defects have not interfered, and are not expected to materially interfere, with TEP’s interest in and
operation of its facilities.

Under separate ground lease agreements, TEP leased parcels of land for the following photovoltaic facilities:

The Solar Zone of the University of Arizona Tech Park in Pima County, Arizona; and

Bright Tucson Community Solar Blocks in Pima County, Arizona.

In December 2014, TEP placed in service an additional photovoltaic facility in Cochise County, Arizona, for which
TEP entered into a 30-year easement agreement. The easement is to facilitate the operations of a solar photovoltaic
renewable energy generation system on behalf of the Department of the Army, located at Fort Huachuca in Cochise
County.

See Item 1. Business, General for additional information regarding generating facilities.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Springerville Unit 1 Proceedings

Upon the termination of the Springerville Unit 1 Leases on January 1, 2015, 50.5% of Springerville Unit 1, or 195
MW of capacity, continued to be owned by third parties, Wilmington Trust Company and William J. Wade, as Owner
Trustee and Co-trustee under a separate trust agreement with each of the remaining two owner participants, Alterna
Springerville LLC (Alterna) and LDVF1 TEP LLC (LDVF1) (Alterna and LDVF]1, together with the Owner Trustees
and Co-trustees, the Third-Party Owners). TEP is not obligated to purchase any of the Third-Party Owners’
Springerville Unit 1 power.

Commencing on January 1, 2015, with the termination of the leases, TEP is obligated to operate the unit for the
Third-Party Owners under existing agreements. In 2014, TEP and the Third-Party Owners engaged in discussions
regarding the post-lease operation of Springerville Unit 1 and related cost sharing arrangements, but did not reach
agreement on several key points.

In November 2014, the Springerville Unit 1 Third-Party Owners filed a complaint (FERC Action) against TEP at the
FERC alleging that TEP had not agreed to wheel power and energy for the Third-Party Owners in the manner
specified in the existing Springerville Unit 1 facility support agreement between TEP and the Third-Party Owners and
for the cost specified by the Third-Party Owners. The Third-Party Owners requested an order from the FERC
requiring such wheeling of the Third-Party Owners’ energy from their Springerville Unit 1 interests beginning in
January 2015 to the Palo Verde switchyard and for the price specified by the Third-Party Owners. In February 2015,
the FERC issued an order denying the Third-Party Owners complaint. In March 2015, the Third-Party Owners filed a
request for rehearing in the FERC Action, which the FERC denied in October 2015. In December 2015, the
Third-Party Owners appealed the FERC’s order denying the Third-Party Owners' complaint to the U.S. Court of
Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. In December 2015, TEP filed an unopposed motion to intervene in the Ninth Circuit
appeal.

On December 19, 2014, the Third-Party Owners filed a complaint against TEP in the Supreme Court of the State of
New York, New York County (New York Action). In response to motions filed by TEP to dismiss various counts and
compel arbitration of certain of the matters alleged, and the court’s subsequent ruling on the motions, the Third-Party
Owners have amended the complaint three times, dropping certain of the allegations and raising others in the New
York Action and in the arbitration proceeding described below. As amended, the New York Action alleges, among
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other things, that TEP failed to properly operate, maintain, and make capital investments in Springerville Unit 1
during the term of the leases and that TEP has breached
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the lease transaction documents by refusing to pay certain of the Third-Party Owners’ claimed expenses. The third
amended complaint seeks $71 million in liquidated damages and direct and consequential damages in an amount to be
determined at trial. The Third-Party Owners have also agreed to stay their claim that TEP has not agreed to wheel
power and energy as required pending the outcome of the FERC Action. In November 2015, the Third-Party Owners
filed a motion for summary judgment on their claim that TEP has failed to pay certain of the Third-Party Owners’
claimed expenses.

In December 2014 and January 2015, Wilmington Trust Company, as Owner Trustees and Lessors under the leases of
the Third-Party Owners, sent a notice to TEP that alleged that TEP had defaulted under the Third-Party Owners’
leases. The notices demanded that TEP pay liquidated damages totaling approximately $71 million. In letters to the
Owner Trustees, TEP denied the allegations in the notices.

In April 2015, TEP filed a demand for arbitration with the American Arbitration Association (AAA) seeking an award
of the Owner Trustees and Co-Trustees' share of unreimbursed expenses and capital expenditures for Springerville
Unit 1. In June 2015, the Third-Party Owners filed a separate demand for arbitration with the AAA alleging, among
other things, that TEP has failed to properly operate, maintain and make capital investments in Springerville Unit 1
since the leases have expired. The Third-Party Owners’ arbitration demand seeks declaratory judgments, damages in an
amount to be determined by the arbitration panel and the Third-Party Owners’ fees and expenses. TEP and the
Third-Party Owners have since agreed to consolidate their arbitration demands into one proceeding. In August 2015,
the Third-Party Owners filed an amended arbitration demand adding claims that TEP has converted the Third-Party
Owners’ water rights and certain emission reduction payments and that TEP is improperly dispatching the Third-Party
Owners’ unscheduled Springerville Unit 1 power and capacity. In October 2015, the arbitration panel granted TEP’s
motion for interim relief, ordering the Owner Trustees and Co-Trustees to pay TEP their pro-rata share of
unreimbursed expenses and capital expenditures for Springerville Unit 1 during the pendency of the arbitration. The
arbitration panel also denied the Third-Party Owners’ motion for interim relief which had requested that TEP be
enjoined from dispatching the Third-Party Owners’ unscheduled Springerville Unit 1 power and capacity. TEP has
been scheduling, when economical, the Third-Party Owners’ entitlement share of power from Springerville Unit 1, as
permitted under the Springerville Unit 1 facility support agreement, since June 14, 2015. The arbitration hearing is
scheduled for July 2016.

In November 2015, TEP filed a petition to confirm the interim arbitration order in the Supreme Court of the State of
New York naming the Owner Trustee and Co-Trustee as respondents. The petition seeks an order from the court
confirming the interim arbitration order under the Federal Arbitration Act. In December 2015, the Owner Trustees
filed an answer to the petition and a cross-motion to vacate the interim arbitration order.

As of December 31, 2015, TEP has billed the Third-Party Owners approximately $23 million for their pro-rata share
of Springerville Unit 1 expenses and $4 million for their pro-rata share of capital expenditures, none of which had
been paid as of February 17, 2016.

TEP cannot predict the outcome of the claims relating to Springerville Unit 1, and, due to the general and non-specific
scope and nature of the claims, TEP cannot determine estimates of the range of loss, if any, at this time. TEP intends
to vigorously defend itself against the claims asserted by the Third-Party Owners and to vigorously pursue the claims
it has asserted against the Owner Trustees and Co-Trustees.

TEP and the Third-Party Owners have agreed to stay these litigation matters relating to Springerville Unit 1 in
furtherance of settlement negotiations. However, there is no assurance that a settlement will be reached or that the
litigation will not continue.

See Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K and Part II, Item 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Factors Affecting Results of
Operations for additional information regarding Springerville Unit 1.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.

36



16

Edgar Filing: TUCSON ELECTRIC POWER CO - Form 10-K

37



Edgar Filing: TUCSON ELECTRIC POWER CO - Form 10-K

PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS, AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

TEP’s common stock is wholly-owned by UNS Energy and is not listed for trading on any stock exchange.

Dividends

TEP paid dividends to UNS Energy of $50 million in 2015 and $40 million in 2014 and 2013.
TEP can pay dividends if it maintains compliance with its 2015 Credit Agreement, the 2010 Reimbursement
Agreement, and the 2013 Covenants Agreement which all contain substantially the same financial covenants. At
December 31, 2015, TEP was in compliance with the terms of all financial covenants and agreements.
The ACC's approval of the acquisition of UNS Energy by Fortis, in August 2014, contained a condition restricting
subsidiary dividend payments to UNS Energy by TEP to no more than 60 percent of TEP's annual net income for the
earlier of five years or until such time that TEP's equity capitalization reaches 50 percent of total capital as accounted
for in accordance with GAAP. The ratios used to determine the dividend restrictions will be calculated for each
calendar year and reported to the ACC annually beginning on April 1, 2016. As of December 31, 2015, TEP's
dividend payments were still restricted as the 50 percent of total capital threshold had not yet been reached.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(in thousands)

Income Statement Data

Operating Revenues

Net Income

Balance Sheet Data

Total Utility Plant, Net

Total Assets (1

Long-Term Debt, Net (D

Non-Current Capital Lease Obligations
Cash Flow Data

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Net Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Other Data

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges @

2015

$1,306,544
127,794

$3,558,229
4,249,478

$1,451,720
55,324

$364,934
(502,891 )
119,471

3.74

2014

$1,269,901
102,338

$3,425,190
4,119,830

$1,361,828
69,438

$313,663
(517,638
252,810

2.56

2013

$1,196,690
101,342

$2,944,455
3,490,085

$1,213,367
131,370

$346,191
(259,662
(140,937

2.67

2012

$1,161,660
65,470

$2,750,421
3,413,638

$1,213,246
262,138

$267,919
(227,881
11,987

2.10

2011

$1,156,386
85,334

$2,650,652
3,247,647

$1,072,037
352,720

$268,294
(312,011 )
51,452

240

Total Assets and Long-term Debt, Net were adjusted to reflect the reclassifications made as a result of the recently
() adopted accounting pronouncements. See Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this
Form 10-K for additional information regarding recently adopted accounting pronouncements.
For purposes of this computation, earnings are defined as pre-tax earnings from continuing operations before
() Minority interest, or income/loss from equity method investments, plus interest expense and amortization of debt
discount and expense related to indebtedness. Fixed charges are interest expense, including amortization of debt
discount, interest on operating lease payments, and expense on indebtedness, including capital lease obligations.
See Part II, Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for

additional information.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis explains the results of operations, the general financial condition, and the
outlook for TEP. It includes the following:

outlook and strategies;

operating results during 2015 compared with the same periods of 2014, and 2014 compared with 2013;

factors affecting our results and outlook;

Yiquidity, capital needs, capital resources, and contractual obligations;

dividends; and

eritical accounting estimates.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis includes financial information prepared in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America (GAAP), as well as certain non-GAAP financial
measures. The non-GAAP financial measures should be viewed as a supplement to, and not a substitute for, financial
measures presented in accordance with GAAP. Non-GAAP financial measures as presented herein may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis should be read in conjunction with Item 6 of this Form 10-K and the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. For information on factors that may cause
our actual future results to differ from those we currently seek or anticipate, see Forward-Looking Information at the
front of this report and Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors for additional information.

References in this report to "we" and "our" are to TEP.

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

TEP's financial prospects and outlook are affected by many factors including: global, national, regional, and local
economic conditions; volatility in the financial markets; environmental laws and regulations; and other regulatory
factors. Our plans and strategies include the following:

Achieving a constructive outcome in our pending rate case proceeding that provides TEP recovery of its full cost of
service and an opportunity to earn an appropriate return on its rate base investments, updated rates to provide more
accurate price signals and a more equitable allocation of costs to TEP's customers, and enables TEP to continue to
provide safe and reliable service.

Continuing to focus on our long-term generation resource strategy, including shifting from coal to natural gas,
renewables, and energy efficiency while providing rate stability for our customers, mitigating environmental impacts,
complying with regulatory requirements, leveraging our existing utility infrastructure, and maintaining financial
strength.

Developing strategic responses to new environmental regulations and potential new legislation, including new carbon
emission standards to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from existing power plants. We are evaluating TEP's existing
mix of generation resources and defining steps to achieve environmental objectives that protect the financial stability
of our utility business and the interests of our customers.

Strengthening the underlying financial condition of TEP by achieving constructive regulatory outcomes,
strengthening our capital structure, sustaining our credit ratings, and promoting economic development in our service
territory.

Focusing on our core utility business through operational excellence, investing in utility rate base, emphasizing
customer service, and maintaining a strong community presence.
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2015 Operational and Financial Highlights

The year ended December 31, 2015 included the following notable items:

In January 2015, TEP purchased an additional 24.8% undivided ownership interest in Springerville Unit 1, bringing
its total ownership interest to 49.5%;

In January 2015, TEP purchased existing unsecured tax-exempt industrial development revenue bonds in the amount
of $130 million using funds borrowed from the term loan portion of the 2014 Credit Agreement;

{n February 2015, TEP issued and sold $300 million of unsecured notes;

In April 2015, TEP purchased an additional 86.7% undivided ownership interest in the Springerville Coal Handling
Facilities, and in May 2015, TEP sold a 17.05% undivided ownership interest in the Springerville Coal Handling
Facilities to SRP;

4n June 2015, TEP terminated the 2014 Credit Agreement;

{n June 2015, TEP received an equity contribution of $180 million from UNS Energy;

In October 2015, TEP entered into a new unsecured credit agreement (2015 Credit Agreement) that provides for a
#250 million revolving credit and letter of credit (LOC) facility. The new credit agreement matures in 2020 and
replaces the 2010 Credit Agreement;

In November 2015, TEP filed a general rate case with the ACC that requests, among other things, a Base Rate
increase of $110 million. The application also requests that new rates become effective no later than January 1, 2017;
and

In December 2015, TEP completed construction and placed into service a 500-kV transmission line extending from
the Pinal Central substation to TEP’s Tortolita substation northwest of Tucson.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion provides the significant items that affected TEP's results of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013. The significant items affecting net income are presented on an after-tax basis.
2015 compared with 2014

TEP reported net income of $128 million in 2015 compared with $102 million in 2014. The increase of $26 million,
or 25%, was primarily due to:

$16 million in lower O&M resulting primarily from acquisition related costs and outages at Springerville Units 1 and
2 that were incurred in 2014, partially offset by higher O&M related to Gila River, labor costs, and outside services;
$6 million in higher transmission revenue resulting primarily from an increase in sales volume on favorably priced
contracts; and

&4 million in lower interest expense primarily due to a reduction in the balance of capital lease obligations.

2014 compared with 2013

TEP reported net income of $102 million in 2014 compared with $101 million in 2013. The increase of $1 million, or
1%, was primarily due to:

$25 million in higher revenues including a non-fuel Base Rate increase that was effective on July 1, 2013, an increase
tn LFCR revenues, higher long-term wholesale revenues due in part to an increase in the average market price and
higher transmission revenue; and

&7 million in lower interest expense, primarily due to a reduction in the balance of capital lease obligations.

The increase was partially offset by:

$22 million in higher O&M for acquisition related costs, higher generating plant maintenance expense, and increased
rent expense associated with the Navajo lease amendment;
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$5 million in higher income taxes primarily generated by a non-recurring $11 million tax benefit recorded in June
2013 to recover previously recorded income tax expense as a result of the 2013 TEP Rate Order. This amount is
partially offset by a $2 million increase in the valuation allowance in 2013 and a $3 million increase in investment tax
credits recorded in 2014. See Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for
additional information regarding income taxes; and

$4 million in higher depreciation and amortization expenses, resulting primarily from an increase in asset base in the
current year.
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Utility Sales and Revenues

The table below provides a summary of retail kWh sales, revenues, and weather data during 2015, 2014 and 2013:
Year Ended

Electric Retail Sales (kWh in millions)
Residential

Commercial

Industrial

Mining

Public Authorities

Total Electric Retail Sales

Retail Margin Revenues (in millions)
Residential

Commercial

Industrial

Mining

Public Authorities

Total by Customer Class

LFCR Revenues

DSM Performance Bonus

Other Retail Margin Revenues

Total Retail Margin Revenues (Non-GAAP)

(1)

Fuel and Purchased Power Revenues
DSM and RES Surcharge Revenues
Total Retail Revenues (GAAP)

Average Retail Margin Rate (Cents / kWh) )

Residential

Commercial

Industrial

Mining

Public Authorities

Total Average Margin Rate by Customer
Class

Total Average Retail Margin Rate )
Average Fuel and Purchased Power Rate
Average DSM and RES Rate

Total Average Retail Rate

Weather Data

Cooling Degree Days

Year Ended December 31,

10-Year Average

Heating Degree Days

Year Ended December 31,

10-Year Average

* Not meaningful

2015

3,724
2,124
2,063
1,109
33

9,053

$281
185
103
38

2
609
12

3

5

629

344
49
$1,022

7.55
8.71
4.99
3.43
5.61

6.73

6.95
3.80
0.54
11.29

1,576
1,520

1,072
1,317

2014

3,727
2,170
2,098
1,137
33

9,165

$280
188
104
38

2
612
11

2

1

626

303
41
$970

7.51
8.66
4.96
3.34
6.06

6.68

6.80
3.31
0.48
10.59

1,557
1,515

930
1,335

Increase

(Decrease)

Percent()

0.1
(2.1
1.7
(2.5

(1.2

04
(1.6
(1.0

0.5
9.1
50.0

*

0.5

13.5
19.5
54

0.5
0.6
0.6
2.7
(7.4

0.7

2.2
14.8
12.5
6.6

15.3

)%
)%
)%
)%
%
)%

%
)%
)%

%

%
)%

%

%

%

%
%
%

%
%
%
%
)%

%

%
%
%
%

%

%

Year Ended

2013

3,867
2,187
2,114
1,079
32

9,279

$271
181
97
34

2
585
2

1

588

300
46
$934

7.02
8.28
4.61
3.14
5.56

6.30

6.31
3.24
0.52
10.07

1,631
1,491

1,449
1,404

Increase

(Decrease)

Percent()

(3.6
0.8
0.8
54
3.1
1.2

33
39
7.2
11.8

4.6

%

100.0

%

6.5

1.0
(10.9
39

7.0
4.6
7.6
6.4
9.0

6.0

7.8
22
.7
52

4.5
*

(35.8
k

)%
)%
)%
%
%
)%

%
%
%
%
%
%

%

%
)%
%

%
%
%
%
%

%

%
%
)%
%

)%

)%

(1) Retail Margin Revenues, a non-GAAP financial measure, should not be considered as an alternative to Total Retail
Revenues, which is determined in accordance with GAAP. Retail Margin Revenues exclude: (i) revenues collected
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from retail customers that are
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directly offset by expenses recorded in other line items; and (ii) revenues collected from third parties that are unrelated

to kWh sales to retail customers. We believe the change in Retail Margin Revenues between periods provides useful

information because it demonstrates the underlying revenue trend and performance of our core utility business. Retail

Margin Revenues represents the portion of retail operating revenues from kWh sales, LFCR Revenues, DSM

Performance Bonus, and certain other retail margin revenues available to cover the non-fuel operating expenses of our

core utility business.

(@) Calculated on un-rounded data and may not correspond exactly to data shown in table.

3) Total Average Retail Margins Rates include revenues related to LFCR Revenues, DSM Performance Bonus, and
Other Retail Margin Revenues included in the Total Retail Margin Revenues.

Retail Revenues were higher in 2015 compared with 2014 primarily due to the increase in the PPFAC rate and higher

Retail Margin Revenues. Retail Margin Revenues were higher primarily due to higher LFCR revenues, DSM

Performance Bonus, and Other Retail Margin Revenues related to adjustor mechanisms.

Retail Revenues were higher in 2014 compared with 2013 primarily due to higher Retail Margin Revenues and

increased LFCR revenues. The increase in Retail Margin Revenues resulted from a non-fuel Base Rate increase

effective July 1, 2013. These increases were partially offset by lower sales volume due to milder weather.

Wholesale Sales and Transmission Revenues

Year Ended December 31,
(in millions) 2015 2014 2013
Long-Term Wholesale Revenues $36 $28 $26
Transmission Revenues 27 16 15
Short-Term Wholesale Revenues 104 114 92
Total Electric Wholesale Sales $167 $158 $133

Long-Term Wholesale Revenues increased by $8 million, or 29%, in 2015 compared with 2014 primarily due to new
wholesale agreements partially offset by unfavorable wholesale market prices. Transmission Revenues increased by
$11 million, or 69%, in 2015 compared with 2014 primarily due to a new long-term transmission agreement with
UNS Electric related to Gila River and contract renewals resulting in favorable pricing.

Long-Term Wholesale Revenues increased by $2 million, or 8%, in 2014 compared with 2013 primarily due to
favorable market prices for wholesale power. There were no significant changes in transmission revenues in 2014
compared to 2013.

The majority of revenues from short-term wholesale sales are related to ACC jurisdictional assets and are credited
against the fuel and purchased power costs eligible for recovery in the PPFAC.

Other Revenues

Year Ended December 31,
(in millions) 2015 2014 2013
Springerville Units 3 and 4 Revenue () $91 $112 $102
Other Revenue 27 29 28
Total Other Revenue $118 $141 $130

0 Represents revenues and reimbursements from Tri-State, the lessee of Springerville Unit 3, and SRP, the owner of
Springerville Unit 4, to TEP related to the operation of these plants.

In addition to reimbursements related to Springerville Units 3 and 4, TEP’s other revenues include inter-company

revenues from its affiliates, UNS Gas, Inc., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of UNS Energy, (UNS Gas) and

UNS Electric, for corporate services provided by TEP, and miscellaneous service-related revenues such as rent on

power pole attachments, damage claims, and customer late fees. See Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional information regarding related party transactions.

There were no significant changes in Other Revenue in 2015 compared with 2014, as well as no significant changes in

Other Revenue in 2014 compared with 2013.
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Operating Expenses
Generating Output and Fuel and Purchased Power Expense
TEP’s fuel and purchased power expense and energy resources for 2015, 2014, and 2013 are detailed below:

Generation and Purchased Power Fuel and Purchased Power Expense

(kWh)
(in millions) 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013
Coal-Fired Generation 8,584 9,271 10,254 $209 $232 $273
Gas-Fired Generation 2,723 1,210 1,007 91 60 46
Utility Owned Renewable Generation 65 48 38 — — —
Reimbursed Fuel Expense for o o . 5 5 7
Springerville Units 3 and 4 ()
Total Generation 11,372 10,529 11,299 305 297 326
Total Purchased Power 3,079 3,195 2,329 125 153 112
Transmission and Other PPFAC
Recoverable Costs o o o e 18 12
Increase (Decrease) to Reflect PPFAC
Recovery Treatment o o o 40 (i ) (12 )
Total Generation and Purchased Power 14,451 13,724 13,628 $495 $457 $438
Less Line Losses and Company Use (719 ) (859 ) (885 )
Total Energy Sold 13,732 12,865 12,743
0 Springerville Unit 3 and 4 Fuel Expense is reimbursed by Tri-State and

SRP.
Fuel and Purchased Power Expense increased by $38 million, or 8%, in 2015 compared with 2014 primarily due to an
increase in the PPFAC charge and additional generation and transmission costs associated with Gila River Unit 3. The
increase was partially offset by favorable purchased power costs (see table below) and decreased coal generation at
Springerville Unit 1 as a result of the lease expiration in January 2015.
Fuel and Purchased Power Expense increased by $19 million, or 4%, in 2014 compared with 2013 primarily due to the
increase in purchased power volumes resulting from outages at Springerville and Sundt generating stations in 2014.
The increase was partially offset by a decrease in generation expense as a result of the outages.
See the table below for information on the average fuel cost of generated and purchased kWh:

(cents per kWh) 2015 2014 2013
Coal 2.44 2.50 2.66
Gas 3.35 4.99 4.57
Purchased Power 4.05 4.79 4.83
All Sources 3.31 3.64 3.54

Operations and Maintenance Expense
The table below summarizes the items included in Operations and Maintenance (O&M) expense:

(in millions) 2015 2014 2013
Reimbursed Expenses - Springerville Units 3 and 4 () $65 $84 $70
Reimbursed Expenses - Customer Funded Renewable Energy and 75 73 26
DSM Programs @)

Other Operating and Maintenance Expense ) 255 272 239
Total Operations and Maintenance Expense $345 $379 $335

(1) Expenses related to Springerville Units 3 and 4 are reimbursed with corresponding amounts recorded in other
revenue.

(@) These expenses are being collected from customers and the corresponding amounts are recorded in retail revenue.

3y The Third-Party Owners' share of expenses related to Springerville Unit 1 is included in Other Operating and
Maintenance Expense.
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Operating and Maintenance expenses decreased by $34 million, or 9%, in 2015 compared with 2014. Springerville
Units 3 and 4 expenses, which are reimbursed by third party owners, decreased primarily due to outages incurred in
2014. Other Operating and Maintenance Expense decreased primarily due to acquisition related costs and outages at
Springerville Units 1 and 2 that occurred in 2014, partially offset by higher O&M related to Gila River, labor costs
and outside services.

Operating and Maintenance expenses increased by $44 million, or 13%, in 2014 compared with 2013. Springerville
Units 3 and 4 expenses, which are reimbursed by third party owners, increased primarily due to outages incurred in
2014. Other Operating and Maintenance Expense increased primarily due to acquisition related costs and outages at
Springerville Units 1 and 2 that occurred in 2014.

FACTORS AFFECTING RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
2015 Rate Case
In November 2015, TEP filed a general rate case with the ACC to: (i) update and improve its rate design and tariffs to
provide more accurate price signals and a more equitable allocation of its fixed costs to its customers; (ii) provide TEP
with an opportunity to recover its full cost of service, including an appropriate return on its rate base investments; and
(iii) enable TEP to continue to provide safe and reliable service. The rate application is based on a test year ended June
30, 2015. The filing requests that new rates be implemented by January 1, 2017.
The key provisions of the rate case include:
a Base Rate increase of $110 million, or 12%, compared with adjusted test year revenues;
2 7.34% return on original cost rate base of $2.1 billion;
a capital structure for rate making purposes of approximately 50% common equity and 50% long-term debt;
a cost of equity of 10.35% and an average cost of debt of 4.32%;
arequest to apply excess depreciation reserves against the unrecovered net book value (NBV) of San Juan Unit 2 and
the Sundt Coal Handling Facilities due to early retirement;
a request for authority to begin using the Third-Party Owners' portion of Springerville Unit 1 that is available to TEP
for dispatch to serve retail customer needs and to recover the related operating costs through the PPFAC; and
rate design changes that would reduce the reliance on volumetric sales to recover fixed costs, and a new net metering
tariff that would ensure that customers who install distributed generation pay an equitable price for their electric
service.
TEP cannot predict the outcome of this proceeding or whether its rate request will be adopted by the ACC in whole or
in part.
Generating Resources
At December 31, 2015, approximately 49% of TEP's generating capacity was fueled by coal. Existing and proposed
federal environmental regulations, as well as potential changes in state regulation, may increase the cost of operating
coal-fired generating facilities. TEP is executing strategies and evaluating additional steps to reduce its dependency on
coal generation.
In August 2015, TEP exhausted its existing coal supply at Unit 4 of the H. Wilson Sundt Generating Station (Sundt
Unit 4). Currently, TEP is operating Sundt Unit 4 on natural gas as a primary fuel source.
TEP's ability to further reduce its coal-fired generating capacity will depend on several factors, including, but not
limited to:
The impact of the Clean Power Plan on current coal-fired generating facilities; and

The ability to resolve Springerville Unit 1 legal proceedings relating to the Third-Party

Owners.
See Part I, Item 1. Business, General for additional information regarding TEP's generating facilities.
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Springerville Unit 1

TEP leased Unit 1 of the Springerville Generating Station and an undivided one-half interest in certain Springerville
Common Facilities (collectively Springerville Unit 1) under seven separate lease agreements (Springerville Unit 1
Leases) that were accounted for as capital leases. The leases expired in January 2015. At that time, TEP purchased a
leased interest comprising 24.8% of Springerville Unit 1, representing 96 MW of capacity, for an aggregate purchase
price of $46 million. Following this purchase, TEP owns 49.5% of Springerville Unit 1, or 192 MW of capacity.

The remaining 50.5% of Springerville Unit 1, or 195 MW of capacity, is owned by Wilmington Trust Company and
William J. Wade, as Owner Trustee and Co-trustee under a separate trust agreement with each of the remaining two
owner participants, Alterna Springerville LLC (Alterna) and LDVF1 TEP LLC (LDVF1) (Alterna and LDVF1,
together with the Owner Trustees and Co-trustees, the Third-Party Owners). TEP is not obligated to purchase any of
the Third-Party Owners’ generating output. TEP is obligated to operate the unit for the Third-Party Owners. Owner
Trustees and Co-Trustees are obligated to compensate TEP for their pro rata share of expenses for the unit. TEP
estimates the Third-Party Owners’ share of 2016 operations and maintenance expense will be $27 million and their
estimated share of 2016 capital expenditures will be $9 million.

In April 2015, TEP filed a demand for arbitration seeking an award of the Owner Trustees and Co-Trustees' share of
unreimbursed expense and capital expenditures for Springerville Unit 1. In October 2015, the arbitration panel granted
TEP’s motion for interim relief, ordering the Owner Trustees and Co-Trustees to pay TEP their pro-rata share of
unreimbursed expenses and capital expenditures for Springerville Unit 1 during the pendency of the arbitration. The
arbitration panel also denied the Third-Party Owners’ motion for interim relief which had requested that TEP be
enjoined from dispatching the Third-Party Owners’ unscheduled Springerville Unit 1 power and capacity. TEP has
been scheduling, when economical, the Third-Party Owners’ entitlement share of power from Springerville Unit 1, as
permitted under the Springerville Unit 1 facility support agreement, since June 14, 2015. As of December 31, 2015,
TEP has billed the Third-Party Owners approximately $23 million for their pro-rata share of Springerville Unit 1
expenses and $4 million for their pro-rata share of capital expenditures, none of which had been paid as of

February 17, 2016.

See Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K and Part I, Item 3. Legal
Proceedings for additional information regarding the legal proceedings relating to the Third-Party Owners.

Potential Plant Retirements

TEP's 2014 Integrated Resource Plan (IRP), which was acknowledged by the ACC in April 2015, reflected plans to
reduce its overall coal capacity by 492 MW (32% of TEP's existing coal fleet) by 2018. TEP's 2014 IRP included
retiring certain coal-fired generating facilities at San Juan Generating Station (San Juan) and coal handling facilities at
the H. Wilson Sundt Generating Station (Sundt) earlier than their current estimated useful lives. These facilities
currently do not have the requisite emission control equipment to meet proposed Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) regulations. TEP plans to seek regulatory recovery for amounts that would not otherwise be recovered if and
when any assets are retired. TEP plans to file a preliminary IRP in March 2016 and is required to file its next IRP by
April 2017.

See Part I, Item 1. Business, Environmental Matters for additional information regarding the impact of environmental
matters on plant operations.

Springerville Coal Handling Facilities Capital Lease Purchase

TEP previously leased interests in the coal handling facilities at the Springerville Generating Station (Springerville
Coal Handling Facilities) under two separate lease agreements (Springerville Coal Handling Facilities Leases). The
lease agreements had an initial term that expired in April 2015 and provided TEP the option to renew the leases or to
purchase the leased interests at the aggregate fixed price of $120 million. In April 2015, TEP exercised its option to
purchase the facilities.

Upon the expiration of the lease term, TEP purchased an 86.7% undivided ownership interest in the Springerville Coal
Handling Facilities bringing TEP's total ownership interest to 100%. With the completion of the purchase, SRP was
obligated to buy a 17.05% undivided interest in the Springerville Coal Handling Facilities from TEP for
approximately $24 million. This transaction was completed in May 2015. Tri-State, is obligated to either: 1) buy a
17.05% undivided interest in the facilities for approximately $24 million or 2) continue to make payments to TEP for
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the use of the facilities. Tri-State has until April 2016 to exercise its purchase option.

Sales to Mining Customers

TEP's largest mining customer is taking initial steps to curtail production in 2016 due to the decline in commodity
prices. TEP cannot predict the extent to which this customer will curtail production, how long commodity prices will
remain low, or the
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total impact the prices will have on mining production in the future. At December 31, 2015, mining customers made
up 8% of TEP's total electric sales.

The proposed Rosemont Copper Mine near Tucson, Arizona is in the permitting stage. If the Rosemont Copper Mine
is constructed and reaches full production, it will become TEP's largest retail customer with an estimated load of
approximately 85 to 120 MW.

Interest Rates

See Part II, Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk for information regarding interest
rate risks and its impact on earnings.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Liquidity

Cash flows may vary during the year, with cash flows from operations typically the lowest in the first quarter and
highest in the third quarter due to TEP’s summer peaking load. As a result of the varied seasonal cash flow, we will
use, as needed, our revolving credit facility to assist in funding business activities. We believe that we have sufficient
liquidity under our revolving credit facilities to meet short-term working capital needs and to provide credit
enhancement as necessary under energy procurement and hedging agreements.

Available Liquidity

(in millions) As of December 31,
2015

Cash and Cash Equivalents $56

Amount Available under Revolving Credit Facility () 250

Total Liquidity $306

1y TEP's revolving credit facility, which matures in 2020, provides for a $250 million revolving credit commitment
with a LOC sublimit of $50 million.

Future Liquidity Requirements

We expect to meet all of our financial obligations and other anticipated cash outflows for the foreseeable future. These

obligations and anticipated cash outflows include, but are not limited to, dividend payments, debt maturities, and

obligations included in the Contractual Obligations and forecasted Capital Expenditures tables below.

See Part III, Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk for additional information regarding

TEP's market risks and Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for

additional information regarding TEP's financing arrangements.

Summary of Cash Flow

The table below presents net cash provided by (used for) operating, investing and financing activities:

Increase Increase
Year Ended (Decrease) Year Ended (Decrease)
(in millions) 2015 2014 Percent 2013 Percent
Operating Activities $365 $314 16.2 % $346 (9.2 V%
Investing Activities (503 ) (518 ) (2.9 )% (260 ) 99.2 %
Financing Activities 120 253 (52.6 )% (141 ) 279.4 %
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (18 ) 49 (136.7 )% (55 ) 189.1 %
Cash, Beginning of Year 74 25 196.0 % 80 (68.8 )%
Cash, End of Year $56 $74 (24.3 Y% $25 196.0 %

Cash Flows for both 2015 and 2014 included unusually large capital expenditures. These capital requirements were
met with a combination of equity contributions from UNS Energy and long-term borrowings as discussed in
Financing Activities below.
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In 2015, we issued long-term debt and used the proceeds to repay revolving and term loans under our credit
agreements and pay a portion of the purchase price for interests in the Springerville Coal Handling Facilities. In
addition, we received an equity contribution from UNS Energy and used the proceeds to repay the outstanding
balances under our revolving credit facilities and redeem long-term variable rate tax-exempt bonds which were called
for redemption in June 2015.
In 2014, we received an equity contribution from UNS Energy and used the proceeds to pay for the purchase of both
Gila River Unit 3 and Springerville Unit 1 leased assets.
Operating Activities
2015 compared with 2014
In 2015, net cash flows from operating activities increased by $51 million compared to 2014 primarily due to:
$39 million of higher cash receipts from retail and wholesale sales, net of fuel and purchased power costs paid driven
primarily by an increase in the average PPFAC rate; and
$34 million in lower cash paid for acquisition-related costs and incentive compensation primarily due to the 2014
acquisition.
The increase in net cash flows from operating activities was partially offset by $16 million of higher cash paid for
pension and retiree funding.
2014 compared with 2013
In 2014, net cash flows from operating activities decreased by $32 million compared to 2013 primarily due to:
$27 million of higher cash paid for acquisition-related costs and incentive compensation primarily due to the 2014
acquisition; and
&6 million of higher cash paid for capital lease interest.
Investing Activities
2015 compared with 2014
In 2015, net cash flows used for investing activities decreased by $15 million compared with 2014 primarily due to:
&164 million purchase, in December 2014, of a 75% interest in Gila River Unit 3; and

$20 million purchase, in December 2014, of a 10.6% interest in Springerville

Unit 1.
The decrease in net cash flows used for investing activities was partially offset by:
$120 million purchase, in April 2015, of an additional 86.7% undivided ownership interest in the Springerville Coal
Handling Facilities partially offset by $24 million of cash received for the sale, in May 2015, of a 17.05% undivided
ownership interest in the Springerville Coal Handling Facilities to SRP;
$46 million purchase, in January 2015, of an additional 24.8% undivided ownership interest in Springerville Unit 1
increasing our total ownership interest to 49.5%;
&11 million in lower cash receipts for contributions in aid of construction received; and
&10 million of higher capital expenditures to fund system reinforcement through replacements and betterments.
2014 compared with 2013
In 2014, net cash flows used for investing activities increased by $258 million compared with 2013 primarily due to:
#164 million purchase, in December 2014, of a 75% interest in Gila River Unit 3;
$71 million of higher capital expenditures to fund the construction of new solar projects and improvements to our
generating facilities; and

$20 million purchase, in December 2014, of a 10.6% interest in Springerville

Unit 1.
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Financing Activities

2015 compared with 2014

In 2015, net cash flows from financing activities decreased by $133 million compared with 2014 primarily due to:
$209 million in higher cash payments due to the purchase of $130 million in fixed rate tax-exempt long-term debt in
January 2015, and the retirement of $79 million in variable rate tax-exempt bonds in August 2015;

&170 million in lower proceeds borrowed and higher repayments under TEP's revolving credit facilities;

#45 million in lower cash proceeds from UNS Energy's equity contributions; and

&10 million in higher cash dividend payments.

The decrease in net cash flows from financing activities was partially offset by:

&152 million in lower cash payments due to the expiration of capital lease obligations in 2015; and

&150 million in higher cash proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt, in February 2015.

2014 compared with 2013

In 2014, net cash flows from financing activities increased by $394 million compared with 2013 primarily due to:
$225 million in higher cash proceeds from UNS Energy's equity contributions made to complete the purchases for
interest in Gila River Unit 3 and Springerville Unit 1;

€149 million in higher cash proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt; and

&85 million in higher cash borrowings (net of repayments) under TEP's revolving credit facilities.

The increase in net cash flows from financing activities was partially offset by $66 million in higher cash payments of
capital lease obligations.

External Sources of Liquidity

Short-Term Investments

TEP’s short-term investment policy governs the investment of excess cash balances. We regularly review and update
this policy in response to market conditions. At December 31, 2015, TEP's short-term investments included
highly-rated and liquid money market funds.

Access to Revolving Credit Facilities

We have access to working capital through a revolving credit agreement with lenders. The 2015 Credit Agreement
provides for a $250 million revolving credit commitment and LOC facility, due in October 2020. The LOC sublimit is
$50 million. TEP expects that amounts borrowed under the credit agreement will be used for working capital and
other general corporate purposes and that LOCs will be issued from time to time to support energy procurement and
hedging transactions. No amounts were drawn under the 2015 Credit Agreement at December 31, 2015.

In June 2015, the 2014 Credit Agreement was terminated. In October 2015, the 2010 Credit Agreement was
terminated.

For details on TEP's credit facilities see Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form
10-K for additional information.

Debt Financing

We use debt financing to lower our overall cost of capital. We are exposed to adverse changes in interest rates to the
extent that we rely on variable rate financing. Our cost of capital is also affected by our credit ratings

In April 2015, we filed a financing application with the ACC. The application requests extending and expanding the
existing financing authority to TEP by: (i) extending authority from December 2016 to December 2020; (ii) increasing
the outstanding long-term debt limitation from $1.7 billion to $2.2 billion; (iii) allowing parent equity contributions of
up to $400 million; and (iv) extending current interest rate hedging authority. The ACC issued an order granting such
authority in January 2016.
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As discussed in Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors of this Form 10-K, we may need to redeem or defease certain
tax-exempt bonds outstanding. To the extent that is required, we would need to issue new taxable debt or enter into a
new bank financing.

We have no new financing planned for 2016. TEP has, from time to time, refinanced or repurchased portions of its
outstanding debt before scheduled maturity. Depending on market conditions, TEP may refinance other debt issuances
or make additional debt repurchases in the future. For details on changes to or maturities on long-term debt, see Note
6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional information.

Debt Restrictive Covenants

The 2015 Credit Agreement, the 2010 Reimbursement Agreement, and the 2013 Covenants Agreement contain
pricing based on TEP’s credit ratings. A change in TEP’s credit ratings can cause an increase or decrease in the amount
of interest TEP pays on its borrowings, and the amount of fees it pays for its LOCs and unused commitments. Also,
under certain agreements, should TEP fail to maintain compliance with covenants, lenders could accelerate the
maturity of all amounts outstanding. At December 31, 2015, TEP was in compliance with these covenants.

TEP conducts its wholesale marketing and risk management activities under certain master agreements whereby TEP
may be required to post credit enhancements in the form of cash or a LOC due to exposures exceeding unsecured
credit limits provided to TEP, changes in contract values, a change in TEP’s credit ratings, or if there has been a
material change in TEP’s creditworthiness. As of December 31, 2015, TEP had posted less than $1 million in LOCs for
credit enhancement with wholesale counterparties.

We do not have any provisions in any of our debt or lease agreements that would cause an event of default or cause
amounts to become due and payable in the event of a credit rating downgrade.

Credit Ratings

Our credit ratings affect our access to capital markets and supplemental bank financing. At December 31, 2015, TEP’s
credit ratings for senior unsecured debt were A3 from Moody’s and BBB+ from both Standard & Poor’s and Fitch. As
of February 2016, at TEP's request for commercial reasons, Fitch withdrew its rating on TEP.

TEP's credit ratings are dependent on a number of factors, both quantitative and qualitative, and are subject to change
at any time. The disclosure of these credit ratings is not a recommendation to buy, sell, or hold TEP securities. Each
rating should be evaluated independently of any other ratings.

Dividends

TEP declared and paid $50 million in dividends to UNS Energy in 2015 and $40 million in 2014 and 2013.

The ACC's approval of the acquisition of UNS Energy by Fortis, in August 2014, contained a condition restricting
subsidiary dividend payments to UNS Energy by TEP to no more than 60 percent of TEP's annual net income for the
earlier of five years or until such time that TEP's equity capitalization reaches 50 percent of total capital as accounted
for in accordance with GAAP. The ratios used to determine the dividend restrictions will be calculated for each
calendar year and reported to the ACC annually beginning on April 1, 2016. As of December 31, 2015, TEP had not
yet reached the 50 percent of total capital and was therefore still restricted by the condition contained in the ACC's
approval order.

Capital Expenditures

TEP's routine capital expenditures include funds used for system reinforcement, replacements and betterments, and
costs to comply with environmental rules and regulations. In 20135, total capital expenditures of $500 million, included
the purchase of an undivided ownership interest in Springerville Unit 1 and the remaining ownership interest in the
Springerville Coal Handling facilities. In 2014, total capital expenditures of $507 million, included the purchase of
interest in Gila River Unit 3 and an undivided ownership interest in Springerville Unit 1. Construction for a new
500-kilovolt (kV) transmission line in Pinal County that began in December 2014 and concluded in late 2015, totaled
$79 million.
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With the exception of 2017, we expect capital requirements to remain stable from 2016 through 2020. TEP's
forecasted capital expenditures are summarized below:

(in millions) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Generation Facilities:

Environmental Compliance $39 $27 $11 $2 $2
Renewable Energy 27 27 27 27 27
Springerville Common Lease Purchase — 38 — — —
Other Generation Facilities 34 82 31 36 39
Total Generation Facilities 100 174 69 65 68
Transmission and Distribution 122 112 159 154 163
General and Other (D 52 46 56 57 54
Total Capital Expenditures $274 $332 $284 $276 $285

(1) General and Other primarily includes cost for information technology as well as fleet, facilities and communication
equipment.

These estimates are subject to continuing review and adjustment. Actual capital expenditures may differ from these

estimates due to changes in business conditions, construction schedules, environmental requirements, state or federal

regulations and other factors. We expect to pay for forecasted capital expenditures with cash on hand, internally

generated funds, and short-term revolver borrowings.

Contractual Obligations

The following chart displays TEP’s contractual obligations by maturity and by type of obligation as of December 31,

2015:

Payments Due by Period
(in millions) Total Less than 1 1-3 Years  3-5 Years More than

Year 5 Years
Long-Term Debt
Principal $1,466 $— $100 $117 $1,249
Interest @) 769 59 120 116 474
Capital Lease Obligations 3 77 17 30 30 —
Operating Leases: 4
Land Easements and Rights-of-Way 82 1 2 2 77
Operating Leases Other 9 1 2 2 4
Purchase Obligations:
Fuel, Including Transportation 5)(©) 580 78 125 90 287
Purchased Power 28 28 — — —
Transmission 38 6 12 7 13
Renewable Purchase Power Agreements (7(®) 1,054 61 122 121 750
RES Performance-Based Incentives (9 107 8 16 16 67
Acquisition of Springerville Common Facilities 100 106 — 38 — 68
Other Long-Term Liabilities: 1 (12)
Restricted and Performance-Based Stock Units 2 — 2 — —
Pension & Other Post Retirement Obligations (13 77 16 11 13 37
Total Contractual Obligations $4,395 $275 $580 $514 $3,026

$37 million of TEP’s variable rate bonds are backed by an LOC issued pursuant to the 2010 Reimbursement
Agreement, which expires in December 2019. Although the variable rate bond matures in 2032, the above table
reflects a redemption or repurchase of such bond in 2019 as though the LOC terminates without replacement upon

() expiration of the 2010 Reimbursement Agreement. TEP's 2013 tax-exempt variable rate IDRBs, which have an
aggregate principal amount of $100 million and mature in 2032, are subject to mandatory tender for purchase in
2018. Total long-term debt is not reduced by $11 million of related unamortized debt issuance costs or $3 million
of unamortized original issue discount.
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«2) Excludes interest on revolving credit facilities and includes interest on TEP's 2013 tax-exempt IDRBs through the
end of the current five-year term.
Effective with commercial operation of Springerville Unit 3 in July 2006 and Unit 4 in December 2009, Tri-State
and SRP began reimbursing TEP for various operating costs related to the common facilities on an ongoing basis.
The common facilities included assets leased by TEP under the Springerville Common and Springerville Coal
Handling Facilities Leases. Upon expiration of the Springerville Coal Handling Lease in April 2015, TEP
(3) purchased the interests in those assets. SRP then purchased an undivided interest in those coal handling assets from
TEP. Tri-State and SRP each continue to reimburse TEP for their shares of common assets owned or leased by
TEP. TEP was reimbursed for $11 million of operation costs in 2015, and absent a purchase of an interest in the
coal handling facilities by Tri-State, will be reimbursed $10 million of operation costs in 2016. Capital Lease
Obligations do not reflect any reduction associated with this reimbursement. Our capital lease obligation balances
decline over time as scheduled capital lease payments are made by TEP.
) TEP's operating lease expense is primarily for rail cars, office facilities, land easements, and rights-of-way with
varying terms, provisions, and expiration dates.
Contemporaneously with the sale of SJICC's stock in January 2016, the existing coal sale agreement terminated and
a new Coal Supply Agreement (CSA) became effective. The new CSA is between SJICC and PNM and continues
5) through June 30, 2022. TEP is not a party to the new CSA, but has minimum purchase obligations under
restructured ownership agreements at San Juan. Estimated future payments, not included in the table above, are
$21 million in 2016, $23 million in 2017, $24 million in 2018 and 2019, $23 million in 2020, and $22 million
through the end of the contract.
Excludes TEP’s liability for final environmental reclamation at the coal mines which supply the Navajo, San Juan
(6 and Four Corners generating stations as the timing of payment has not been determined. See Note 7 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional information regarding TEP’s share of
reclamation costs.
TEP enters into long-term renewable power purchase agreements which require TEP to purchase 100% of certain
(7 renewable energy generation facilities output once commercial operation status is achieved. While TEP is not
required to make payments under these contracts if power is not delivered, the table above includes estimated
future payments based on expected power deliveries.
In February 2016, a facility achieved commercial operation status. The related contract expires in 2036. Estimated
®) future payments, not included in the table above, are $3 million in each of 2016 through 2020 and $43 million
through the end of the contract.
TEP has entered into REC purchase agreements to purchase the environmental attributes from retail customers
with solar installations. Payments for the RECs are termed Performance-Based Incentives (PBIs) and are paid in
©) contractually agreed upon intervals (usually quarterly) based on metered renewable energy production. PBIs are
recoverable through the RES tariff. See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this
Form 10-K for additional information regarding TEP's RES tariff.
The Springerville Common Facilities Leases have an initial term to December 2017 for one lease and January
(10) 2021 for the other two leases, subject to optional renewal periods of two or more years through 2025. Instead of
extending the leases, TEP may exercise its fixed-price purchase options.
(1) Excludes asset retirement obligations of $33 million expected to occur through 2066.
(12) Excludes unrecognized tax benefits of $5 million. At this time we are unable to make a reasonably reliable
estimate of the timing of payments in individual years in connection with these tax liabilities.
These obligations represent TEP’s expected contributions to pension plans in 2016, expected benefit payments for
its unfunded Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP), and expected retiree benefit costs to cover medical
(13) and life insurance claims as determined by the plans’ actuaries. Due to the significant impact that returns on plan
assets and changes in discount rates might have on payment obligation amounts, other contributions are excluded
beyond 2016.
We expect to pay for forecasted capital expenditures with cash on hand, internally generated funds, and short-term
revolver borrowings.
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Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

Other than the unrecorded contractual obligations in the table above, we do not have any arrangements or
relationships with entities that are not consolidated into the financial statements.

Income Tax Position

Prior year tax legislation and the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2016, include provisions that make qualified
property placed in service between 2010 and 2019 eligible for bonus depreciation for tax purposes. In addition, the
IRS issued new guidance related to the treatment of expenditures to maintain, replace, or improve property. These
provisions are an acceleration of tax benefits TEP otherwise would have received over 20 years and have created net
operating loss
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carryforwards that can be used to offset future taxable income. As a result, TEP did not pay any federal or state
income taxes in 2015 and does not expect to make any payments until 2020.

Environmental Matters

The EPA regulates the amount of sulfur dioxide (SO,), nitrogen oxide (NO,), carbon dioxide (CO,), particulate
matter, mercury and other by-products produced by power plants. TEP may incur added costs to comply with future
changes in federal and state environmental laws, regulations, and permit requirements at its power plants.
Environmental laws and regulations are subject to a range of interpretations, which may ultimately be resolved by the
courts. Because these laws and regulations continue to evolve, TEP is unable to predict the impact of the changing
laws and regulations on its operations and consolidated financial results. Complying with these changes may reduce
operating efficiency. TEP capitalized $33 million in 2015, $11 million in 2014, and $5 million in 2013 in costs to
comply with environmental rules and regulations. In addition, we recorded O&M expenses of $6 million in 2015, $5
million in 2014, and $8 million in 2013. TEP expects to recover the cost of environmental compliance from its
ratepayers.

Hazardous Air Pollutant Requirements

In February 2012, the EPA issued final rules for the control of mercury emissions and other hazardous air pollutants
from power plants. Based on the EPA's final Mercury and Air Toxics Standards (MATS) rules, additional emission
control equipment would have been required by April 2015. TEP, as operator of the Springerville and Sundt
generating stations, and the operators of Navajo and Four Corners received extensions until April 2016 to comply with
the MATS rules.

In June 2015, the U.S. Supreme Court reversed and remanded the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals decision in Michigan
v. EPA to uphold the MATS rules requiring power plants to control mercury and other emissions. The Supreme Court
held that the EPA did not adequately consider “cost” before determining that MATS was “appropriate and necessary.” The
D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals remanded the rules to the EPA for further consideration.

At this time, despite the U.S. Supreme Court ruling, the MATS rules remain in force and effect. TEP will proceed
with its planned MATS compliance activity at each of our facilities. Additionally, Arizona has an Arizona-specific
mercury rule in place that will become effective and applicable to our Arizona facilities in the event the Federal rule is
struck down. Our compliance strategy is intended to ensure compliance with both the Federal and the State rule, as

applicable.

TEP's share of the estimated mercury emission control costs to comply with the MATS rules includes the following:
(in millions) Navajo Springerville()
Capital Expenditures $1 $5

Annual O&M Expenses $1 $1

Compliance Year 2016 2016

Total capital expenditures and annual O&M expenses represent amounts for Springerville Units 1 and 2, with
estimated costs split equally between the two units. In January 2015, TEP completed the purchase of 24.8% of
() Springerville Unit 1, bringing its total ownership interest to 49.5%. With the completion of the purchase, the
Third-Party Owners are responsible for 50.5% of environmental costs attributable to Springerville Unit 1. TEP will
continue to be responsible for 100% of environmental costs attributable to Springerville Unit 2.
TEP expects no additional capital expenditures or O&M expenses will be incurred to comply with the MATS rules at
Four Corners, Sundt, and San Juan Generating Stations.
Regional Haze Rules
The EPA's Regional Haze Rules require emission controls known as BART for certain industrial facilities emitting air
pollutants that reduce visibility in national parks and wilderness areas. The rule calls for all states to establish goals
and emission reduction strategies for improving visibility. States must submit these goals and strategies to the EPA for
approval. Because Navajo and Four Corners are located on land leased from the Navajo Nation, they are not subject to
state oversight; the EPA oversees regional haze planning for these power plants.
In the western U.S., Regional Haze BART determinations have focused on controls for NO,, often resulting in a
requirement to install Selective Catalytic Reduction (SCR). Complying with the BART rule, and with other future
environmental rules, may make it economically impractical to continue operating all or a portion of the Navajo, San
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Juan, and Four Corners power plants or for individual owners to continue to participate in these power plants. The

BART provisions do not apply to Springerville Units 1 and 2 since they were constructed in the 1980s, after the time
frame as designated by the rules. Other provisions of the
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Regional Haze Rules requiring further emission reductions are not likely to impact Springerville operations until after
2018. TEP cannot predict the ultimate outcome of these matters.
TEP's estimated NO, emissions control costs involved in meeting these rules are:

(in millions) Navajo San Juan Four Corners  Sundt
Capital Expenditures $28 $12 $44 $12
Annual O&M Expenses $1 $1 $2 $6
Compliance Year 2030 2016 2018 2017
Navajo

In August 2014, the EPA published a final Federal Implementation Plan (FIP) which provides that one unit at Navajo
will be shut down by 2020, SCR (or the equivalent) will be installed on the remaining two units by 2030, and
conventional coal-fired generation will cease by December 2044. The final BART rule includes options that
accommodate potential ownership changes at the plant. The plant has until December 2019 to notify the EPA of how
it will comply with the FIP.

San Juan

In October 2014, the EPA published a final rule approving a revised State Implementation Plan (SIP) covering BART
requirements for San Juan, which includes the closure of Units 2 and 3 by December 2017 and the installation of
Selective Non-Catalytic Reduction (SNCR) on Units 1 and 4 by February 2016. TEP owns 50% of Units 1 and 2 at
San Juan. The SIP approval references a New Source Review permit issued by the New Mexico Environment
Department in November 2013 which, among other things, calls for balanced draft upgrades on San Juan Unit 1 to
reduce particulate matter emissions. PNM, the operator of San Juan, is currently installing SNCR. Balanced draft
modifications to San Juan Unit 1were completed in June 2015. TEP’s share of the balanced draft upgrades was
approximately $22 million. In December 2015, PNM obtained New Mexico Public Regulation Commission approval
to shut down Units 2 and 3 at San Juan.

At December 31, 2015, the net book value of TEP's share in San Juan Unit 2, including construction work in progress,
was $104 million. Consistent with the 2013 Rate Order, TEP has requested authorization from the ACC to apply
excess depreciation reserves against the unrecovered net book value in its 2015 Rate Case.

Four Corners

In December 2013, APS, on behalf of the co-owners of Four Corners, notified the EPA that they have chosen an
alternative BART compliance strategy; as a result, APS closed Units 1, 2, and 3 in December 2013 and agreed to the
installation of SCR on Units 4 and 5 by July 2018. TEP owns 7% of Four Corners Units 4 and 5.

Sundt

In June 2014, the EPA issued a final rule that would require TEP to either: (i) install, by mid-2017, SNCR and dry
sorbent injection if Unit 4 of the H. Wilson Sundt Generating Station (Sundt) continues to use coal as a fuel source; or
(i1) permanently eliminate coal as a fuel source as a better-than-BART alternative by the end of 2017. Under the rule,
TEP is required to notify the EPA of its decision by March 2017.

At December 31, 2015, the net book value of the Sundt coal handling facilities was $16 million. In August 2015, TEP
exhausted its existing coal supply at Sundt and has been operating Sundt with natural gas as a primary fuel source.
TEP expects to retire the Sundt coal handling facilities earlier than expected, and has requested to apply excess
depreciation reserves against the unrecovered net book value in its 2015 Rate Case. The estimated NO, emissions
control costs in the table above will not be expended if Sundt's coal handling facilities are retired early.

Greenhouse Gas Regulation

In August 2015, the EPA issued the Clean Power Plan (CPP) limiting CO, emissions from existing and new fossil
fueled power plants. The CPP establishes state-level CO, emission rates and mass-based goals that apply to fossil
fuel-fired generation. The plan targets CO, emissions reductions for existing facilities by 2030 and establishes interim
goals that begin in 2022. States are required to develop and submit a final compliance plan, or an initial plan with an
extension request, to the EPA by September 2016. States that receive an extension must submit a final completed plan
to the EPA by September 2018. TEP will continue to work with the other Arizona and New Mexico utilities, as well
as the appropriate regulatory agencies, to develop the state compliance plans. TEP is unable to determine how the
final CPP rule will impact its facilities until state plans are developed and approved by the EPA. TEP cannot predict
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the ultimate outcome of these matters.
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The EPA incorporated the compliance obligations for existing power plants located on Indian nations, like the Navajo
Nation, in the existing sources rule and a newly proposed Federal Plan using a compliance method similar to that of
the states. The proposed Federal Plan would be implemented for any Indian nation and/or state that does not submit a
plan or that does not have an EPA or approved state plan. TEP will work with the participants at Four Corners and
Navajo to determine how this revision may impact compliance and operations at both facilities. TEP has submitted
comments on the proposed Federal Plan impacting our facilities, including Four Corners and Navajo stating, among
other things, that the EPA should not regulate the greenhouse gases on the Navajo Nation because it is not appropriate
or necessary. The reduction of greenhouse gases achieved due to the shutdowns resulting from Regional Haze
compliance will be equivalent to those required under the CPP rule. TEP cannot predict the ultimate outcome of these
matters.

TEP's compliance requirements under the CPP are subject to the outcomes of potential proceedings and litigation
challenging the rule. In February 2016, the Supreme Court granted a stay effectively ordering the EPA to stop CPP
implementation efforts until legal challenges to the regulation have been resolved. The ruling introduces uncertainty
as to whether and when the states and utilities will have to comply with the CPP rule. TEP will continue to work with
the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality to determine what, if any, actions need to be taken in light of the
ruling. TEP anticipates that the ruling will likely delay the requirement to submit a plan or request an extension under
the CPP by September 2016.

Coal Combustion Residuals Regulation

In April 2015, the EPA issued a final rule requiring all coal ash and other coal combustion residuals to be treated as a
solid waste under Subtitle D of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act for disposal in landfills and/or surface
impoundments while allowing for the continued recycling of coal ash. TEP does not own or operate any
impoundments. Under the rule, the Springerville Generating Station (Springerville) ash landfill is classified as an
existing landfill and is not subject to the lateral expansion requirements. However, TEP will incur additional costs for
site preparation and monitoring at Springerville to be fully compliant with the rule. TEP’s share of the cost at
Springerville is estimated to be $2 million, the majority of which is expected to be capital expenditures. TEP currently
estimates its share of the costs to be $5 million at Four Corners, $3 million at Navajo, and less than $1 million at San
Juan, the majority of which are expected to be capital expenditures.

See Capital Expenditures above for TEP's actual and forecasted environmental-related cost.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to apply accounting policies
and to make estimates and assumptions that affect results of operations and the amounts of assets and liabilities
reported in the financial statements and related notes. Management believes that the areas described below require
significant judgment in the application of accounting policy or in making estimates and assumptions that are
inherently uncertain and that may change in subsequent periods. Additional information on TEP’s other significant
accounting policies can be found in Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form
10-K.

Accounting for Regulated Operations

We account for our regulated electric operations based on accounting standards that allow the actions of our
regulators, the ACC and the FERC, to be reflected in our financial statements. Regulator actions may cause us to
capitalize certain costs that would otherwise be included as an expense, or in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income (AOCI), in the current period by unregulated companies. Regulatory assets represent incurred costs that have
been deferred because they are probable of future recovery in customer rates. Regulatory liabilities generally represent
expected future costs that have already been collected from customers. We evaluate regulatory assets and liabilities
each period and believe future recovery or settlement is probable. Our assessment includes consideration of recent rate
orders, historical regulatory treatment of similar costs, and changes in the regulatory and political environment. If
management's assessment is ultimately different than actual regulatory outcomes, the impact on our results of
operation, financial position, and future cash flows could be material.
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At December 31, 2015, regulatory liabilities net of regulatory assets totaled $96 million at TEP. There are no current
or expected proposals or changes in the regulatory environment that impact our ability to apply accounting guidance
for regulated operations. If we conclude, in a future period, that our operations no longer meet the criteria in this
guidance, we would reflect our regulatory pension assets in AOCI and recognize the impact of other regulatory assets
and liabilities in the income statement, both of which would be material to our financial statements. See Note 2 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional information regarding
regulatory matters.
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Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations

We are required to record the fair value of a liability for a legal obligation to retire a long-lived tangible asset in the
period in which the liability is incurred. This includes obligations resulting from conditional future events. We incur
legal obligations as a result of environmental regulations imposed by State and Federal regulators, contractual
agreements and other factors. To estimate the liability, management must use significant judgment and assumptions
in: determining whether a legal obligation exists to remove assets; estimating the probability of a future event for a
conditional obligation; estimating the fair value of the cost of removal; estimating when final removal will occur; and
estimating the credit-adjusted risk-free interest rates to be used to discount the future liabilities. Changes that may
arise over time with regard to these assumptions and determinations will change amounts recorded in the future as
expense for asset retirement obligations. TEP defers costs associated with the majority of its legal AROs as regulatory
assets because these costs are included in depreciation rates approved for recovery by the ACC. Deferred costs are
amortized over the life of the underlying asset.

TEP identified legal obligations to retire generation plant assets specified in land leases for its jointly-owned Navajo
and Four Corners Generating Stations. The land on which these stations reside is leased from the Navajo Nation. The
provisions of the leases require the lessees to remove the facilities upon request of the Navajo Nation at expiration of
the leases. TEP also has certain environmental obligations at the Luna, San Juan, Sundt and Springerville Generating
Stations. TEP estimates that its share of the AROs to remove the Navajo and Four Corners facilities and settle the
Luna, San Juan, Sundt, Gila River and Springerville environmental obligations will be approximately $157 million at
the retirement dates. Additionally, TEP entered into ground lease agreements with certain land owners for the
installation of photovoltaic (PV) assets. The provisions of the PV ground leases require TEP to remove the PV
facilities upon expiration of the leases. TEP's ARO related to the PV assets is estimated to be approximately $30
million at the retirement dates. No other legal obligations to retire generation plant assets were identified.

TEP has various transmission and distribution lines that operate under leases and rights-of-way that contain end dates
and may contain site restoration clauses. TEP operates transmission and distribution lines as if they will be operated in
perpetuity and would continue to be used or sold without land remediation. As such, there are no AROs for these
assets.

The total net present value of TEP's ARO liability was $32 million at December 31, 2015. ARO liabilities are reported
in Regulatory and Other Liabilities—Other on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional information regarding AROs.

Additionally, the authorized depreciation rates for TEP include a component designed to accrue the future costs of
retiring assets for which no legal obligations exist. The accumulated balances at December 31, 2015 represent
non-legal asset retirement obligation accruals, less actual removal costs incurred, net of salvage proceeds realized, and
are included in Regulatory and Other Liabilities, Regulatory Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. See Note
2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional information.

Pension and Other Retiree Benefit Plan Assumptions

TEP records plan assets, obligations, and expenses related to pension and other retiree benefit plans based on actuarial
valuations, which include key assumptions on discount rates, expected returns on plan assets, compensation increases,
and health care cost trend rates. These actuarial assumptions are reviewed annually and modified as appropriate. The
effect of modifications is generally recorded or amortized over future periods. We believe that the assumptions used in
recording obligations are reasonable based on prior experience, market conditions, and the advice of plan actuaries.
Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K discusses the assumptions used in
the calculation of pension plan and other retiree plan obligations.

TEP is required to recognize the underfunded status of its defined benefit pension and other retiree plans as a liability.
The underfunded status is the difference between the fair value of the plans assets and the projected benefit obligation
for pension plans or accumulated retiree benefit obligation for other retiree benefit plans. As the funded status,
discount rates, and actuarial facts change, the liability will vary significantly in future years. TEP records the
underfunded amount for its pension and other retiree obligations as a liability and a regulatory asset to reflect expected
recovery of pension and other retiree obligations through the rates charged to retail customers.
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At December 31, 2015, TEP discounted its future pension plan obligations at rates between 4.5% and 4.6% and its
other retiree plan obligations at a rate of 4.2%. The discount rate for future pension plan and other retiree plan
obligations is determined annually based on the rates currently available on high-quality, non-callable, long-term
bonds. The discount rate is based on a corporate yield curve using an average yield between the 60t and 90t
percentile of AA-graded U.S. corporate bonds with future cash flows that match the timing and amount of expected
future benefit payments. For TEP’s pension plans, a 25-basis point change in the discount rate would increase or
decrease the Projected Benefit Obligation (PBO) by approximately $15

35

65



Edgar Filing: TUCSON ELECTRIC POWER CO - Form 10-K

million and the plan expense by $1 million. For TEP’s other retiree benefit plan, a 25-basis point change in the
discount rate would increase or decrease the Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation (APBO) by
approximately $2 million.

We measured service and interest costs utilizing a single weighted-average discount rate derived from the yield curve
used to measure the plan obligations. As discussed in Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8
of this Form 10-K, at the end of 2015, we changed our approach to determine the service and interest cost components
of pension and other postretirement benefit expense for future years. For 2016, we elected to measure service and
interest costs by applying the specific spot rates along that yield curve to the plan's liability cash flows. We believe the
new approach provides a more precise measurement of service and interest costs by aligning the timing of the plans'
liability cash flows to the corresponding spot rates on the yield curve. The use of this approach reduces 2016 service
and interest cost by $4 million with a corresponding increase to regulatory assets. This change does not affect the
measurement of our plan obligations nor the funded status of our plans.

TEP calculates the market-related value of pension plan assets using the fair value of the assets on the measurement
date. TEP assumed that its pension plans’ assets would generate a long-term rate of return of 7% at December 31,
2015. In establishing its assumption as to the expected return on assets, TEP reviews the asset allocation and develops
return assumptions for each asset class based on advice from an investment consultant and the pension’s actuary that
includes both historical performance analysis and forward-looking views of the financial markets. Pension expense
decreases as the expected rate of return on assets increases. A 25-basis point change in the expected return on assets
would impact pension expense in 2015 by $1 million.

TEP adopted the RP-2014 mortality table projected with improvement scale MP-2015 with 15 year convergence and
0.75% long term rate to measure December 31, 2015 pension obligations, whereas RP-2000 mortality table with Scale
BB was utilized for the December 31, 2014 measurement.

TEP used a current year health care cost trend rate of 7.6% in valuing its retiree benefit obligation at December 31,
2015. This rate reflects both market conditions and historical experience. Assumed health care cost trend rates have a
significant effect on the amounts reported for health care plans. A one-percentage point change in assumed health care
cost trend rates would increase the retiree benefit obligation by approximately $6 million and decrease the retiree
benefit obligation by approximately $5 million. In addition, a one-percentage point change in assumed health care cost
trend rates would change the related 2016 plan expense by approximately $1 million.

In 2016, TEP will incur pension costs of approximately $11 million and other retiree benefit costs of approximately
$5 million. TEP expects to charge approximately $13 million of these costs to O&M expense, and $3 million to
capital. TEP expects to make pension plan contributions of $10 million in 2016. In 2009, TEP established a VEBA
trust to fund its other retiree benefit plan. In 2016, TEP expects to make benefit payments to retirees under the retiree
benefit plan of approximately $5 million and contributions to the VEBA trust of approximately $1 million, net of
distributions.

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Commodity Derivative Contracts

TEP enters into forward contracts to purchase or sell capacity or energy at contract prices over a given period of time,
typically for one month, three months, or one year, within established limits to meet forecasted load requirements or to
take advantage of favorable market opportunities. In general, TEP enters into forward purchase contracts when market
conditions provide the opportunity to purchase energy for its load at prices that are below the marginal cost of its
supply resources or to supplement its own resources (e.g., during plant outages and summer peaking periods). TEP
enters into forward sales contracts when it forecasts that it will have excess supply and the market price of energy
exceeds its marginal cost. TEP enters into forward gas commodity price swap agreements to lock in fixed prices on a
portion of forecasted gas purchases and to hedge the price risk associated with forward PPAs that are indexed to
natural gas prices.

For all commodity derivative instruments that do not meet the normal purchase or normal sale scope exception, we
recognize derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and measure those
instruments at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on commodity derivative contracts entered into for retail
customer load are recorded as either a regulatory asset or regulatory liability on the balance sheet based on our ability
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to recover the costs of hedging activities entered into to mitigate energy price risk for retail customers. There are no
current or expected proposals or changes in the regulatory environment that impact the probability of future recovery
of these assets through the PPFAC mechanism.

The market prices used to determine fair values for TEP’s derivative instruments at December 31, 2015, are estimated
based on various factors including broker quotes, exchange prices, over the counter prices, and time value.
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TEP manages the risk of counterparty default by performing financial credit reviews, setting limits, monitoring
exposures, requiring collateral when needed, and using a standardized agreement, which allows for the netting of
current period exposures to and from a single counterparty.

Interest Rate Swaps

TEP hedges the cash flow risk associated with unfavorable changes in the variable interest rates tied to LIBOR on the
Springerville Common Facilities Lease. As of December 31, 2015, approximately $29 million of variable rate lease
debt for the Springerville Common Facilities Lease had been hedged through an interest rate swap agreement through
January 2020.

Revenue Recognition

TEP’s retail revenues, which are recognized in the period that electricity is delivered and consumed by customers,
include unbilled revenue based on an estimate of kWh delivered at the end of each period. Unbilled revenues are
dependent upon a number of factors that require management’s judgment including estimates of retail sales and
customer usage patterns. The unbilled revenue is estimated by comparing the estimated kWh delivered to the kWh
billed to our retail customers. The excess of estimated kWh delivered over kWh billed is then allocated to the retail
customer classes based on estimated usage by each customer class. We then record revenue for each customer class
based on the various Retail Rates for each customer class. Due to the seasonal fluctuations of TEP’s actual load, the
unbilled revenue amount increases during the spring and summer and decreases during the fall and winter. A
provision for uncollectible accounts, associated with retail revenues, is recorded as a component of O&M expense.
Plant Asset Depreciable Lives

TEP has significant investments in electric generation assets and electric transmission and distribution assets. We
calculate depreciation expense based on our estimate of the useful lives of our plant assets and expected net removal
costs. The useful lives of plant assets are further detailed in Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in
Item 8 of this Form 10-K. Changes to depreciation estimates resulting from a change of estimated service life or
removal costs could have a significant impact on the amount of depreciation expense recorded in the income
statement. The ACC approves depreciation rates for all generation and distribution assets. Depreciation rates for such
assets cannot be changed without the ACC's approval. TEP's transmission assets are subject to the jurisdiction of the
FERC. See Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional
information regarding depreciation rates.

Income Taxes

Due to the differences between GAAP and income tax laws, many transactions are treated differently for income tax
purposes than they are in the financial statements. We account for this difference by recording deferred income tax
assets and liabilities using the effective income tax rate at our balance sheet date. Income tax liabilities are allocated to
TEP based on TEP's taxable income and deductions as reported in the FortisUS, Inc. consolidated tax return.

A valuation allowance is established against deferred tax assets for which management believes it is more likely than
not that the deferred asset will not be realized. In making this judgment, management evaluates all available evidence
and gives more weight to objective verifiable evidence. At December 31, 2015, TEP had a $4 million valuation
allowance. See Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for additional
information.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

For a discussion of new accounting pronouncements affecting TEP, refer to Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market Risks

TEP’s primary market risks include fluctuations in interest rates, returns on marketable securities, commodity prices
and volumes, and counterparty credit. Fluctuations in interest rates can affect earnings and cash flows. We enter into
interest rate swaps and financing transactions to manage changes in interest rates. Fluctuations in commodity prices
and volumes and counterparty credit losses may temporarily affect cash flows, but are not expected to affect earnings
due to expected recovery through regulatory mechanisms.

See Forward-Looking Information for additional information.

Risk Management Committee

We have a Risk Management Committee responsible for the oversight of commodity price risk and credit risk related
to the wholesale energy marketing and power procurement activities of TEP. Our Risk Management Committee,
which meets on a quarterly basis and as needed, consists of officers from the finance, accounting, legal, wholesale
marketing, and generation operations departments of TEP. To limit TEP’s exposure to commodity price risk, the Risk
Management Committee sets trading and hedging policies and limits, which are reviewed frequently to respond to
constantly changing market conditions. To limit TEP’s exposure to credit risk, the Risk Management Committee
reviews counterparty credit exposure as well as credit policies and limits.

Interest Rate Risk

Long-Term Debt

TEP is exposed to interest rate risk resulting from changes in interest rates on certain of its variable rate debt
obligations. TEP had $137 million in tax-exempt variable rate debt outstanding at December 31, 2015. The
outstanding debt included one series of bonds for which interest rates are reset weekly and one series of bonds for
which interest rates are reset monthly. The weighted average weekly rate (including LOC fees and remarketing fees)
was 1.24% in 2015 and 1.46% in 2014. The average weekly interest rate ranged from 0.93% - 1.42% in 2015 and
1.40% - 1.75% in 2014. The monthly rate is based on a percentage of an index equal to one-month LIBOR plus a
credit spread. The average monthly rate was 0.81% in 2015 and 0.87% in 2014. The monthly rate ranged from 0.79%
- 0.87% in 2015 and 0.85% - 0.95% in 2014.

Although short-term interest rates were low and stable in 2015 and 2014, TEP may still be subject to volatility in its
tax-exempt variable rate debt. A 100 basis point increase in average interest rates on this debt, over a twelve month
period, would result in a decrease in TEP’s pre-tax net income of approximately $1 million.

TEP can manage its exposure to variable interest rate risk by entering into interest rate swaps and financing
transactions to rebalance its mix of variable rate and fixed rate long-term debt. TEP has a fixed-for-floating interest
rate swap in place to hedge floating interest rate risk associated with a portion of its Springerville Common Facilities
lease debt. The notional amount of the swap is $29 million at December 31, 2015. The notional amount of lease debt
that was unhedged as of December 31, 2015 was $13 million. TEP did not have any other interest rate swaps at
December 31, 2015.

Interest Rate Swap

To adjust the value of TEP’s interest rate swap, classified as a cash flow hedge, to fair value in Other Comprehensive
Income (Loss), TEP recorded the following net unrealized gains:

(in millions) 2015 2014 2013

Net Unrealized Gains $1 $2 $4

Revolving Credit Facilities

TEP is subject to interest rate risk resulting from changes in interest rates on borrowings under its credit agreements.
The interest paid on borrowings is variable. Revolving credit borrowings may be made on the basis of a spread over
LIBOR or an Alternate Base Rate. As a result, TEP may experience significant volatility in the rates paid on LIBOR
borrowings under its revolving credit facilities.

Marketable Securities Risk
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The majority of TEP’s pension plan assets, as well as assets associated with other employee benefit obligations, are
investments in equity and debt securities. These investments are exposed to price fluctuations in equity markets and
changes in interest rates. Of the assets held for employee benefit obligations, the pension plan assets comprise the
largest portion. The pension plan assets will help fund defined retirement benefits for substantially all of our
employees. Declines in the values of these assets could increase required employer contributions, which would
adversely affect cash flows. Declines in values could also increase the reported pension expense, adversely affecting
TEP’s results of operations.

Commodity Price Risk

TEP is exposed to commodity price risk primarily relating to changes in the market price of electricity, natural gas,
and coal. This risk is mitigated through hedging practices and a PPFAC mechanism which fully recovers the actual
retail fuel and purchased power costs incurred on a timely basis from TEP’s retail customers. The PPFAC mechanism
has a forward component and a true-up component. The forward component of the PPFAC rate is based on forecasted
fuel and purchased power costs. The true-up component reconciles actual fuel and purchased power costs with the
amounts collected in the prior year and any amounts under/over-collected will be collected from/credited to
customers. If the actual price of power is higher than the forecasted PPFAC rate, TEP's operating cash flows are
reduced by the price difference until the subsequent 12-month period when the true-up component is adjusted to allow
the recovery of this difference.

Purchases and Sales of Energy

To manage its exposure to energy price risk, TEP enters into forward contracts to buy or sell energy at a specified
price and future delivery period. Generally, TEP commits to future sales based on expected excess generating
capability, forward prices and generation costs, using a diversified market approach to provide a balance between
long-term, mid-term, and spot energy sales. TEP generally enters into forward purchases during its summer peaking
period to ensure it can meet its load and reserve requirements, and account for other contracts and resource
contingencies. TEP also enters into limited forward purchases and sales to optimize its resource portfolio and take
advantage of geographical differences in price. These positions are managed on both a volumetric and dollar basis and
are closely monitored using risk management policies and procedures overseen by the Risk Management Committee.
For example, the risk management policies provide that TEP should not take a short physical position in the third
quarter and must have owned generation backing up all physical forward sales positions at the time the sale is made.
TEP’s risk management policies also place limits on the duration of transactions in both gas and power.

TEP enters into some forward contracts considered to be normal purchases and sales of electric energy and are
therefore not accounted for as derivatives. TEP records revenues on its “normal sales” and expenses on its “normal
purchases” in the period in which the energy is delivered. TEP also enters into forward contracts that are not considered
to be “normal purchases and sales” and therefore are accounted for as derivatives. When TEP has derivative forward
contracts, it marks them to market using actively quoted prices obtained from brokers for power traded
over-the-counter at Palo Verde and at other southwestern U.S. trading hubs. TEP believes that these broker quotations
used to calculate the mark-to-market values represent accurate measures of the fair values of TEP’s positions because
of the short-term nature of TEP’s positions, as limited by risk management policies, and the liquidity in the short-term
market.

Long-Term Wholesale Sales

TEP has several long-term wholesale agreements for the sale of energy. Sales under some of these agreements are
based on indexed energy prices. Changes in the price of power affect TEP's revenue and income from these
agreements.

Natural Gas

TEP is also subject to commodity price risk from changes in the price of natural gas. In addition to energy from its
coal-fired facilities, TEP typically uses power purchases, supplemented by generation from its gas-fired units to meet
the summer peak demands of its retail customers and to meet local reliability needs. Some of these purchased power
contracts are indexed to natural gas prices. Short-term and spot power purchase prices are also closely correlated to
natural gas prices. Due to its increasing gas and purchased power usage, TEP hedges a portion of its total natural gas
exposure from plant fuel, gas-indexed power purchases, and spot market purchases with various instruments up to
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three years in advance. TEP purchases its remaining gas fuel and power needs in the spot and short-term markets.

As required by fair value accounting rules, for the year ended December 31, 2015, TEP considered the impact of
non-performance risk in the measurement of fair value of its derivative assets and derivative liabilities net of collateral
posted.
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To adjust the value of its commodity derivatives to fair value, TEP adjusted regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities
as follows:

(in millions) 2015 2014 2013
U.nre.a‘li.zed Net Gain (Loss) Recorded to Regulatory (Assets) $6 $(18 ) $—
Liabilities

The table below displays the valuation methodologies and maturities of TEP’s power and gas derivative contracts by
source of fair value:
Unrealized Gain (Loss) of TEP’s Hedging Activities

Maturity 0 — 6 Maturity 6 — 12 Maturity r[rj?ltrilal‘ ed
months months over 1 yr. Jeatz
Gain (Loss)

(in millions) December 31, 2015
Prices Actively Quoted $(7 ) $(1 ) $2 ) $(10 )
Prices Based on Models and Other Valuation a )y — . a )
Methods
Total $8 ) $(1 ) $Q2 ) $(11 )

Sensitivity Analysis of Derivatives

TEP uses sensitivity analysis to measure the impact of favorable and unfavorable changes in market prices on the fair
value of its derivative forward contracts. TEP records unrealized gains and losses as either a regulatory asset or
regulatory liability. As contracts settle, the unrealized gains and losses are reversed and realized gains or losses are
recorded to the PPFAC. For TEP's non-cash flow power hedges, a 10% change in the market price of power would
affect unrealized positions reported as a regulatory asset or regulatory liability by approximately $1 million; for gas
swaps and collar contracts, a 10% change in the market price of energy would affect unrealized positions reported as a
regulatory asset or liability by approximately $3 million.

Coal

TEP is subject to commodity price risk from changes in the price of coal used to fuel its coal-fired generating plants.
This risk is mitigated through the use of long term coal supply agreements with limited price volatility.

TEP's coal supply contract for Springerville Units 1 and 2 expires in 2020, at which time a new coal purchase
agreement will be negotiated. TEP expects coal reserves from the Lee Ranch - El Segundo mine, which supplies
Springerville Units 1 and 2 to be sufficient to supply the estimated requirements for the units presently estimated
remaining lives. The current coal price is determined by the cost of Powder River Basin coal delivered to Springerville
Unit 3 subject to a floor and ceiling.

TEP participates in jointly-owned generating facilities at Four Corners, Navajo, and San Juan, where coal supplies are
received under contracts administered by the operating agents. The coal contracts at Four Corners and Navajo expire
in 2031 and 2019, respectively. The new coal supply contract with Westmoreland for San Juan, effective January 31,
2016, expires in 2022. At December 31, 2015, TEP had contracts to purchase coal for use at the jointly-owned
facilities and expected its estimated average annual cost for the next three years to be $51 million and $22 million
thereafter through 2031. Contemporaneous with the new San Juan coal supply contract in January 2016, additional
estimated minimum purchase obligations are $21 million in 2016, $23 million in 2017, $24 million in 2018 and 2019,
$23 million in 2020, and $22 million through the end of the contract.

See Part II, Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,
Liquidity and Capital Resources and Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form
10-K for additional information.

Credit Risk

TEP is exposed to credit risk in its energy-related marketing activities related to potential non-performance by
counterparties. We manage the risk of counterparty default by performing financial credit reviews, setting limits,
monitoring exposures, requiring collateral when needed, and using standard agreements which allow for the netting of
current period exposures to and from a single counterparty. We calculate counterparty credit exposure by adding any
outstanding receivable (net of amounts payable if a netting agreement exists) to the mark-to-market value of any
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forward contracts. If exposure exceeds credit limits or contractual collateral thresholds, we may request that a
counterparty provide credit enhancement in the form of cash collateral or an LOC.

TEP has entered into short-term and long-term transactions with several financial institution counterparties with terms
of one month through three years. As of December 31, 2015, the credit exposure to TEP from financial institution
counterparties was less than $1 million.
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As of December 31, 2015, TEP’s total credit exposure related to its wholesale marketing and gas hedging activities
was approximately $10 million. TEP did not have any exposure to non-investment grade counterparties.

At December 31, 2015, TEP posted no cash collateral and less than $1 million in LOCs as credit enhancements with
its counterparties, and did not hold any collateral from its counterparties.
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ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

TEP’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of TEP’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015. In
making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the 2013 COSO Internal Control — Integrated
Framework.

Based on management’s assessment using those criteria, management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2015,
TEP’s internal control over financial reporting was effective.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of Tucson Electric Power Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Tucson Electric Power Company as of

December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in
stockholder’s equity and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2015. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provided
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Tucson Electric Power Company at December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the consolidated results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2015, in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Ernst & Young LLP

Calgary, Canada

February 18, 2016
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder of Tucson Electric Power Company

In our opinion, the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholder’s equity and
cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2013 present fairly, in all material respects, the results of operations and
cash flows of Tucson Electric Power Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2013, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers

LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Phoenix, Arizona

February 25, 2014, except for the effects of the revision discussed in Note 1 (not presented herein) to the consolidated
financial statements appearing under Item 8 of the Company’s 2014 annual report on Form 10-K, as to which the date
is August 14, 2014
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TUCSON ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Amounts in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
Operating Revenues
Electric Retail Sales $1,021,543 $970,145 $934,357
Electric Wholesale Sales 167,020 158,323 132,500
Other Revenues 117,981 141,433 129,833
Total Operating Revenues 1,306,544 1,269,901 1,196,690
Operating Expenses
Fuel 305,559 297,537 325,903
Purchased Power 124,764 152,922 112,452
Transmission and Other PPFAC Recoverable Costs 24,798 18,179 12,233
Increase (Decrease) to Reflect PPFAC Recovery Treatment 39,787 (11,194 ) (12,458 )
Total Fuel and Purchased Power 494,908 457,444 438,130
Operations and Maintenance 345,356 378,877 335,321
Depreciation 138,093 126,520 118,076
Amortization 19,261 28,567 31,294
Taxes Other Than Income Taxes 49,623 47,805 43,498
Total Operating Expenses 1,047,241 1,039,213 966,319
Operating Income 259,303 230,688 230,371
Other Income (Deductions)
Interest Income 93 208 120
Other Income 6,647 8,598 5,770
Other Expense (2,833 ) (12,735 ) (10,715 )
Appreciation (Depreciation) in Value of Investments (142 ) 1,371 2,833
Total Other Income (Deductions) 3,765 (2,558 ) (1,992 )
Interest Expense
Long-Term Debt 61,159 60,577 56,378
Capital Leases 3,994 10,249 25,140
Other Interest Expense 1,134 810 87
Interest Capitalized (2,732 ) (3,755 ) (2,554 )
Total Interest Expense 63,555 67,881 79,051
Income Before Income Taxes 199,513 160,249 149,328
Income Tax Expense 71,719 57911 47,986
Net Income $127,794 $102,338 $101,342

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TUCSON ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Amounts in thousands)
Year Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013
Comprehensive Income
Net Income $127,794 $102,338 $101,342
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Net Changes in Fair Value of Cash Flow Hedges:

Net of Income Tax (Expense) Benefit of ($821), ($1,140), and ($1,793) 1,261 1,675 2,738
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Adjustments:

Net of Income Tax (Expense) Benefit of ($63), $1,068, and ($572) 101 (1,725 ) 916
Total Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Tax 1,362 (50 ) 3,654
Total Comprehensive Income $129,156 $102,288 $104,996

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TUCSON ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income To Net Cash Flows from Operating

Activities:

Depreciation Expense

Amortization Expense

Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs

Provision for Springerville Unit 1 - Third-Party Owners Unrealized Revenue

Use of Renewable Energy Credits for Compliance

Deferred Income Taxes

Pension and Retiree Expense

Pension and Retiree Funding

Allowance for Equity Funds Used During Construction
LFCR and DSM Revenues

Increase (Decrease) to Reflect PPFAC Recovery Treatment
Fortis Acquisition Direct Customer Benefit

Change in Current Assets and Current Liabilities:

Accounts Receivable

Materials, Supplies, and Fuel Inventory

Accounts Payable

Regulatory Liabilities

Other, Net

Net Cash Flows—Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Capital Expenditures

Purchase of Gila River Unit 3

Purchase of Springerville Coal Handling Facilities Lease Assets
Purchase of Springerville Unit 1 Lease Assets

Proceeds from Sale of Springerville Coal Handling Facilities
Purchase of Intangibles - Renewable Energy Credits

Return of Investments in Springerville Lease Debt
Contributions in Aid of Construction

Other, Net

Net Cash Flows—Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Borrowings Under Revolving Credit Facilities
Repayments of Borrowings Under Revolving Credit Facilities
Proceeds from Borrowings Under Term Loan

Repayments of Borrowings Under Term Loan

Proceeds from Issuance of Long-Term Debt

Repayments of Long-Term Debt

Dividends Paid to Parent

Payments of Capital Lease Obligations

Payment of Debt Issue/Retirement Costs

Contribution from Parent

Year Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013

$127,794  $102,338  $101,342

138,093 126,520 118,076
19,261 28,567 31,294

3,043 2,626 2,452
22,627 — —
19,731 17,818 15,990

72,026 59,024 58,100
18,588 13,648 19,878

(30,682 ) (14,388 ) (27,636
(5,352 ) (6,677 ) (4,526
(14,646 ) (12,937 ) (2,575
39,787 (11,194 ) (12,458
— 18,870 —
(25,690 ) (14,261 ) 824
(8,758 ) 666 16,145
(23,149 ) 10,712 334
2,977 ) 8,388 3,331

15,238 (16,057 ) 25,620
364,934 313,663 346,191

(333,841 ) (323,524 ) (252,848
— (163,938 ) —
(120,312 ) — —
(45,753 ) (19,608 ) —
23,656 — —
(29,184 ) (28,334 ) (23,280
— — 9,104
4,517 15,903 3,959
1,974 ) 1,863 3,403

(502,891 ) (517,638 ) (259,662

148,000 275,000 78,000
(233,000 ) (190,000 ) (78,000
130,000 — —

(130,000 ) — —
299,019 149,168 —
(208,600 ) — —
(50,000 ) (40,000 ) (40,000
(13,464 ) (165,145 ) (99,621
(3,942 ) (1,856 ) (1,865

180,000 225,000 —

)
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Other, Net 1,458 643

Net Cash Flows—Financing Activities 119,471 252,810
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (18,486 ) 48,835
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period 74,170 25,335
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period $55,684 $74,170

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TUCSON ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in thousands, except share data)

ASSETS

Utility Plant

Plant in Service

Utility Plant Under Capital Leases

Construction Work in Progress

Total Utility Plant

Less Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization

Less Accumulated Amortization of Capital Lease Assets
Total Utility Plant, Net

Investments and Other Property

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable, Net
Fuel Inventory

Materials and Supplies
Regulatory Assets
Derivative Instruments
Assets Held for Sale, Net
Other

Total Current Assets
Regulatory and Other Assets
Regulatory Assets
Derivative Instruments
Other

Total Regulatory and Other Assets
Total Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

(Continued)
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December 31,
2015

$5,618,435
131,705
102,028
5,852,168
(2,194,301 )
(99,638 )
3,558,229

39,569

55,684
136,682
34,600
94,003
51,841
1,808
21,550
25,904
422,072

212,312
430

16,866
229,608
$4,249,478

2014

$5,175,148
667,157
109,070
5,951,375
(2,052,216 )
(473,969 )
3,425,190

37,599

74,170
131,799
36,368
86,750
69,383
1,633
21,010
421,113

223,192
300

12,436
235,928
$4,119,830
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TUCSON ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in thousands, except share data)

CAPITALIZATION AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Capitalization

Common Stock Equity:

Common Stock (No Par Value, 75,000,000 Shares Authorized, 32,139,434 Shares
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 and 2014)
Capital Stock Expense

Accumulated Earnings

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
Total Common Stock Equity

Preferred Stock (No Par Value, 1,000,000 Shares Authorized, None Outstanding at
December 31, 2015 and 2014)

Capital Lease Obligations

Long-Term Debt, Net

Total Capitalization

Current Liabilities

Current Obligations Under Capital Leases
Borrowings Under Revolving Credit Facilities
Accounts Payable

Accrued Taxes Other than Income Taxes
Accrued Employee Expenses

Accrued Interest

Regulatory Liabilities

Customer Deposits

Derivative Instruments

Other

Total Current Liabilities

Regulatory and Other Liabilities

Deferred Income Taxes, Net

Regulatory Liabilities

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits
Derivative Instruments

Other

Total Regulatory and Other Liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies

Total Capitalization and Other Liabilities
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

(Concluded)
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December 31,
2015

2014

$1,296,539  $1,116,539

(6,357 )
189,317
(4,564 )
1,474,935

55,324
1,451,720
2,981,979

14,114
86,274
37,577
27,718
14,246
53,077
20,349
12,174
7,533
273,062

468,024
307,286
120,336
4,067
94,724
994,437

(6,357
111,523
(5,926
1,215,779

69,438
1,361,828
2,647,045

173,822
85,000
113,413
36,110
15,679
21,021
38,847
20,339
18,874
9,673
532,778

389,540
321,186
138,319
6,288
84,674
940,007

)
)

$4,249,478  $4,119,830

84



Edgar Filing: TUCSON ELECTRIC POWER CO - Form 10-K

TUCSON ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
(Amounts in thousands)

Capital Accumulated Accumulated Total
Common ) Other ,
Stock Earnings . Stockholder's
Stock L Comprehensive .

Expense (Deficit) Loss Equity
Balances at December 31, 2012 $888,971 $(6,357 ) $(12,157 ) $(9,530 ) $860,927
Net Income 101,342 101,342
g;ger Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of 3.654 3.654
Dividends Declared to Parent (40,000 ) (40,000 )
Balances at December 31, 2013 888,971 (6,357 ) 49,185 (5,876 ) 925,923
Net Income 102,338 102,338
g;ger Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of (50 ) (50 )
Dividends Declared to Parent (40,000 ) (40,000 )
Contribution from Parent 225,000 225,000
Other 2,568 2,568
Balances at December 31, 2014 1,116,539 (6,357 ) 111,523 (5,926 ) 1,215,779
Net Income 127,794 127,794
%tll)l(er Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of 1362 1362
Dividends Declared to Parent (50,000 ) (50,000 )
Contribution from Parent 180,000 180,000
Balances at December 31, 2015 $1,296,539 $(6,357 ) $189,317 $ (4,564 ) $1,474,935

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Table of Contents
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

Tucson Electric Power Company (TEP) is a regulated utility that generates, transmits, and distributes electricity to
approximately 417,000 retail electric customers in a 1,155 square mile area in southeastern Arizona. TEP also sells
electricity to other utilities and power marketing entities, located primarily in the western United States. TEP is a
wholly owned subsidiary of UNS Energy Corporation (UNS Energy), a utility services holding company. UNS
Energy is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Fortis Inc. (Fortis).

References in these notes to "we" and "our" are to TEP.

FORTIS ACQUISITION OF UNS ENERGY

UNS Energy, the parent of TEP, was acquired by Fortis for $60.25 per share of UNS Energy common stock in cash,
effective August 15, 2014. The Arizona Corporation Commission's (ACC) approval was subject to certain
stipulations, including, but not limited to, the following:

TEP will provide credits on retail customers' bills totaling approximately $19 million over five years: $6 million in
year one and $3 million annually in years two through five. The monthly bill credits will be applied each year from
October through March effective October 1, 2014;

Dividends paid from TEP to UNS Energy cannot exceed 60 percent of TEP's annual net income for the earlier of five
years or until such time that TEP's equity capitalization reaches 50 percent of total capital; and

Fortis making an equity investment of at least $220 million to UNS Energy and its regulated subsidiaries, including
TEP. Following the UNS Energy acquisition, Fortis exceeded the investment requirement by contributing $287
million to UNS Energy through December 31, 2014. UNS Energy then contributed $225 million to TEP.

As a result of the acquisition being completed, TEP recorded approximately $15 million, through August 2014, as its
allocated share of acquisition-related expenses, in addition to the customer bill credits discussed above.
Acquisition-related expenses, reported in Operations and Maintenance and Other Expense, include investment banker
fees, legal expenses, and accelerated expenses for certain share-based compensation awards. See Note 9 for additional
information regarding share-based compensation.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

TEP's consolidated financial statements and disclosures are presented in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) in the United States which includes specific accounting guidance for regulated
operations. See Note 2 for additional information regarding regulatory matters. The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of TEP and its subsidiaries. In the consolidation process, accounts of the parent and subsidiaries
are combined and intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated. TEP jointly owns several generating
stations and transmission facilities with non-affiliated entities. TEP's proportionate share of jointly owned facilities is
recorded as Utility Plant on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, and our proportionate share of the operating costs
associated with these facilities is included on the consolidated statements of income. See Note 3 for additional
information regarding Utility Plant.

TEP did not reflect the impacts of acquisition accounting in its financial statements. All adjustments of assets and
liabilities to fair value and the resultant goodwill associated with the acquisition were recorded by FortisUS Inc., a
wholly owned subsidiary of Fortis.

Certain amounts from prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. Most notably,
in 2014, TEP elected to change its method of reporting cash flows from the direct to the indirect method to conform to
Fortis' presentation election.

RECENTLY ADOPTED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In 2015, we adopted accounting guidance that:

limits the circumstances under which a disposal may be reported as a discontinued operation and requires new
disclosures. The adoption of this guidance did not have any impact on our disclosures, financial condition, results of
operations, or cash flows as we did not have any activities that required application of this accounting guidance.
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requires debt issuance costs to be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying value of the
associated debt liability, rather than as deferred charges. The adoption of this standard resulted in reclassification of

51

87



Edgar Filing: TUCSON ELECTRIC POWER CO - Form 10-K

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

debt issuance costs from Other Current Assets and Other Assets to Long-Term Debt on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. TEP will continue to account for debt issuance costs related to line-of-credit arrangements as an asset. TEP
reclassified $11 million at December 31, 2014 from Other Current Assets and Other Assets to Long-Term Debt to
conform to the current year presentation.

simplifies the presentation of deferred taxes by requiring deferred tax assets and liabilities to be classified as
noncurrent on the balance sheet. The adoption of this standard resulted in a reclassification of deferred income taxes
from Deferred Income Taxes - Current Assets to Deferred Income Taxes - Regulatory and Other Liabilities. TEP
reclassified $102 million at December 31, 2014 from Deferred Income Taxes - Current Assets to Deferred Income
Taxes - Regulatory and Other Liabilities to conform to the current year presentation.

USE OF ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Management uses estimates and assumptions when preparing financial statements under GAAP. These estimates and
assumptions affect:

assets and liabilities on our balance sheets at the dates of the financial statements;

our disclosures about contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements; and

our revenues and expenses in our income statements during the periods presented.

Because these estimates involve judgments based upon our evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances, actual
results may differ from the estimates.

ACCOUNTING FOR REGULATED OPERATIONS

We apply accounting standards that recognize the economic effects of rate regulation. As a result, we capitalize
certain costs that would be recorded as expense or in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (AOCI) by
unregulated companies. Regulatory assets represent incurred costs that have been deferred because they are probable
of future recovery in the rates charged to retail customers or to wholesale customers through transmission tariffs.
Regulatory liabilities generally represent expected future costs that have already been collected from customers or
amounts that are expected to be returned to customers through future rate reductions.

Estimates of recovering deferred costs and returning deferred credits are based on specific ratemaking decisions or
precedent for each item. Regulatory assets and liabilities are amortized consistent with the treatment in the rate setting
process. We evaluate regulatory assets each period and believe recovery is probable. If future recovery of costs ceases
to be probable, the assets would be written off as a charge to current period earnings or AOCI. See Note 2 for
additional information regarding regulatory matters.

TEP applies regulatory accounting as the following conditions exist:

An independent regulator sets rates;

The regulator sets the rates to recover the specific enterprise’s costs of providing service; and

Rates are set at levels that will recover the entity’s costs and can be charged to and collected from customers.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

We consider all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity of three months or less at acquisition to be cash
equivalents.

RESTRICTED CASH

Cash balances that are restricted regarding withdrawal or usage based on contractual or regulatory considerations are
reported in Investments and Other Property on the balance sheets. Restricted cash was $4 million at December 31,
2015 and $2 million at December 31, 2014.
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ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

We record an Allowance for Doubtful Accounts to reduce accounts receivable for amounts estimated to be
uncollectible. The allowance is determined based on historical bad debt patterns, retail sales, and economic conditions.
Accounts receivable are charged-off in the period in which the receivable is deemed uncollectible. The change in the
balance of the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts in our Consolidated Balance Sheets is summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(in millions) 2015 2014 2013
Beginning of Period $5 $5 $5
Increases:
Charged to Operating Revenues 23 — —
Charged to Operating Expenses 2 2 2
Write-offs 3 ) 2 ) 2 )
End of Period $27 $5 $5

The Allowance for Doubtful Accounts increased in 2015 due to Third-Party Owners' claims at Springerville Unit 1.
See Note 7 for additional information regarding the Third-Party Owners' claims.
INVENTORY
We value materials, supplies, and fuel inventory at the lower of weighted average cost or market, unless evidence
indicates that the weighted average cost (even if in excess of market) will be recovered in retail rates. We capitalize
handling and procurement costs (such as labor, overhead costs, and transportation costs) as part of the cost of the
inventory. Materials and Supplies consist of generation, transmission, and distribution construction and repair
materials.
UTILITY PLANT
Utility Plant includes the business property and equipment that supports electric service, consisting primarily of
generation, transmission, and distribution facilities. We report utility plant at original cost. Original cost includes
materials and labor, contractor services, construction overhead (when applicable), and an Allowance for Funds Used
During Construction (AFUDC), less contributions in aid of construction.
We record the cost of repairs and maintenance, including planned major overhauls, to Operations and Maintenance
(O&M) expense in the income statement as costs are incurred.
When a unit of regulated property is retired, we reduce accumulated depreciation by the original cost plus removal
costs less any salvage value. There is no income statement impact.
AFUDC and Capitalized Interest
AFUDC reflects the cost of debt and equity funds used to finance construction and is capitalized as part of the cost of
regulated utility plant. AFUDC amounts are capitalized and amortized through depreciation expense as a recoverable
cost in Retail Rates. The capitalized interest that relates to debt is recorded as a reduction in Interest Expense in the
income statement. The capitalized cost for equity funds is recorded as Other Income in the income statement.
The average AFUDC rates on regulated construction expenditures are included in the table below:

2015 2014 2013
Average AFUDC Rates 6.12 % 7.30 % 7.38 %
Depreciation
We compute depreciation for owned utility plant on a group method straight-line basis at depreciation rates based on
the economic lives of the assets. See Note 3 for additional information regarding Utility Plant. The ACC approves
depreciation rates for all generation and distribution assets. Transmission assets are subject to the jurisdiction of the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). Depreciation rates are based on average useful lives and include
estimates for salvage value and removal costs.
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Below are the summarized average annual depreciation rates for all utility plant:

2015 2014 2013
Average Annual Depreciation Rates 2.83 % 2.99 % 3.16 %
Utility Plant Under Capital Leases
TEP finances the facilities at Springerville used in common with Springerville Unit 1 and Unit 2 (Springerville
Common Facilities) with capital leases. The capital lease expense incurred consists of Amortization Expense and
Interest Expense—Capital Leases. See Note 3 for additional information regarding Utility Plant and Note 6 for
additional information related to the lease terms.
Computer Software Costs
We capitalize costs incurred to purchase and develop internal use computer software and amortize those costs over the
estimated economic life of the product. If the software is no longer useful, we immediately charge capitalized
computer software costs to expense.
ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS
TEP has identified legal Asset Retirement Obligations (AROs) related to the retirement of certain generation assets.
Additionally, TEP incurred AROs related to its photovoltaic assets as a result of entering into various ground leases or
easement agreements. We record a liability for a legal ARO in the period in which it is incurred if it can be reasonably
estimated. When a new obligation is recorded, we capitalize the cost of the liability by increasing the carrying amount
of the related long-lived asset. We record the increase in the liability due to the passage of time by recognizing
accretion expense in O&M expense and depreciate the capitalized cost over the useful life of the related asset or, when
applicable, the terms of the lease subject to ARO requirements. TEP defers costs associated with the majority of its
legal AROs as regulatory assets based on the ACC's approval of these costs in TEP's depreciation rates.
Depreciation rates also include a component for estimated future removal costs that have not been identified as legal
obligations. We recover those amounts in the rates charged to retail customers and have recorded an obligation for
estimated costs of removal as regulatory liabilities.
EVALUATION OF ASSETS FOR IMPAIRMENT
We evaluate long-lived assets and investments for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate the carrying
value of the assets may be impaired. If expected future cash flows (without discounting) are less than the carrying
value of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized if the impairment is other-than-temporary and the loss is not
recoverable through rates.
DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS
We defer the costs to issue debt and amortize such costs to interest expense on a straight-line basis over the life of the
debt as this approximates the effective interest method. Deferred debt issuance costs are presented in the balance sheet
as a direct deduction from the carrying value of the associated debt liability. These costs include underwriters’
commissions, discounts or premiums, and other costs such as legal, accounting, regulatory fees, and printing costs.
TEP accounts for debt issuance costs related to line-of-credit arrangements as an asset.
We defer and amortize the gains and losses on reacquired debt associated with regulated operations to interest expense
over the remaining life of the original debt.
OPERATING REVENUES
We recognize revenues related to the sale of energy when services or commodities are delivered to customers. The
billing of electric sales to retail customers is based on the reading of their meters, which occurs on a systematic basis
throughout the month. Operating revenues include an estimate for unbilled revenues from service that has been
provided but not billed by the end of an accounting period. At the end of the month, amounts of energy delivered since
the last meter reading are estimated and the corresponding unbilled revenue is calculated using average customer
Retail Rates.
For purchased power and wholesale sales contracts that are settled financially, TEP nets the sales contracts with the
purchase power contracts and reflects the net amount as Electric Wholesale Sales.
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TEP recognizes monthly management fees in Other Revenues as the operator of Springerville Unit 3 on behalf of
Tri-State Generation and Transmission Association, Inc. (Tri-State) and Springerville Unit 4 on behalf of Salt River
Project Agriculture Improvement and Power District (SRP). Additionally, Other Revenues include reimbursements
from Tri-State and SRP for various operating expenses at Springerville and for the use of the Springerville Common
Facilities and the Springerville Coal Handling Facilities. The offsetting expenses are recorded in the respective line
items of the income statements based on the nature of services provided. As the operating agent for Tri-State and SRP,
TEP may earn performance incentives based on unit availability which are recognized in Other Revenues in the period
earned.

The ACC has authorized mechanisms for Lost Fixed Cost Recovery (LFCR) related to kilowatt-hour (kWh) sales lost
due to Energy Efficiency Standards (EE Standards) and distributed generation. We recognize revenues in the period
that verifiable energy savings occur. Revenue recognition related to the LFCR creates a regulatory asset until such
time as the revenue is collected.

PURCHASED POWER AND FUEL ADJUSTMENT CLAUSE

We recover actual fuel, purchased power and transmission costs to provide electric service to retail customers through
base fuel rates and a Purchased Power and Fuel Adjustment Clause (PPFAC); the ACC periodically adjusts the
PPFAC rate at which TEP recovers these costs. The difference between costs recovered through rates and actual fuel,
purchased power, transmission, and other approved costs to provide retail electric service is deferred. Cost
over-recoveries are deferred as regulatory liabilities and cost under-recoveries are deferred as regulatory assets. See
Note 2 for additional information regarding regulatory matters.

RENEWABLE ENERGY AND ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS

The ACC’s Renewable Energy Standard (RES) requires TEP to increase its use of renewable energy each year until it
represents at least 15% of its total annual retail energy requirements in 2025, with distributed generation accounting
for 30% of the annual renewable energy requirement. TEP must file an annual RES implementation plan for review
and approval by the ACC. The approved cost of carrying out this plan is recovered from retail customers through the
RES surcharge. The ACC has also approved recovery of operating costs, depreciation, property taxes, and a return on
investments in company-owned solar projects through the RES tariff until such costs are reflected in retail customer
rates.

TEP is required to implement cost-effective Demand Side Management (DSM) programs to comply with the ACC’s
EE Standards. The EE Standards provide for a DSM surcharge to recover, from retail customers, the costs to
implement DSM programs. The EE Standards require increasing annual targeted retail kWh savings equal to 22% by
2020.

Any RES or DSM surcharge collections above or below the costs incurred to implement the plans are deferred and
reflected in the financial statements as a regulatory asset or liability. TEP recognizes RES and DSM surcharge
revenue in Electric Retail Sales in amounts necessary to offset recognized qualifying expenditures.

RENEWABLE ENERGY CREDITS

The ACC measures compliance with the RES requirements through Renewable Energy Credits (RECs). A REC
represents one kWh generated from renewable resources. When TEP purchases renewable energy, the premium paid
above the market cost of conventional power equals the REC cost recoverable through the RES surcharge. As
described above, the market cost of conventional power is recoverable through the PPFAC.

When RECs are purchased, TEP records the cost of the RECs (an indefinite-lived intangible asset) as Other Assets,
and a corresponding regulatory liability, to reflect the obligation to use the RECs for future RES compliance. When
REC:s are reported to the ACC for compliance with RES requirements, TEP recognizes Purchased Power expense and
Other Revenues in an equal amount. See Note 2 for additional information regarding regulatory matters.

INCOME TAXES

Due to the difference between GAAP and income tax laws, many transactions are treated differently for income tax
purposes than for financial statement presentation purposes. Temporary differences are accounted for by recording
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deferred income tax assets and liabilities on our balance sheets. These assets and liabilities are recorded using enacted
income tax rates expected to be in effect when the deferred tax assets and liabilities are realized or settled. We reduce
deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some
portion or the entire deferred income tax asset will not be realized.

Tax benefits are recognized when it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination by
the tax authorities based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefit recorded is the largest amount that is
more than 50%
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likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement with the tax authority, assuming full knowledge of the position and all
relevant facts. Interest expense accruals relating to income tax obligations are recorded in Other Interest Expense.
Prior to 1990, TEP flowed through to ratepayers certain accelerated tax benefits related to utility plant as the benefits
were recognized on tax returns. Regulatory Assets include income taxes recoverable through future rates, which
reflects the future revenues due to TEP from ratepayers as these tax benefits reverse. See Note 2 for additional
information regarding regulatory matters.

We account for federal energy credits generated prior to 2012 using the grant accounting model. The credit is treated
as deferred revenue, which is recognized over the depreciable life of the underlying asset. The deferred tax benefit of
the credit is treated as a reduction to income tax expense in the year the credit arises. Federal energy credits generated
since 2012 are deferred as Regulatory Liabilities — Noncurrent and amortized as a reduction in Income Tax Expense
over the tax life of the underlying asset. Income Tax Expense attributable to the reduction in tax basis is accounted for
in the year the federal energy credit is generated and is deferred as regulatory assets. All other federal and state
income tax credits are treated as a reduction to Income Tax Expense in the year the credit arises.

Income tax liabilities are allocated to TEP based on its taxable income as reported in the FortisUS Inc. consolidated
tax return.

TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME TAXES

We act as conduits or collection agents for sales taxes, utility taxes, franchise fees, and regulatory assessments. As we
bill customers for these taxes and assessments, we record trade receivables. At the same time, we record liabilities
payable to governmental agencies on the balance sheet for these taxes and assessments. These amounts are not
reflected in the income statements.

FAIR VALUE

As defined under GAAP, fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
between market participants in the principal market or in the most advantageous market when no principal market
exists. Adjustments to transaction prices or quoted market prices may be required in illiquid or disorderly markets in
order to estimate fair value. Different valuation techniques may be appropriate under the circumstances to determine
the value that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction. Market
participants are assumed to be independent, knowledgeable, able and willing to transact an exchange, and not under
duress. Nonperformance or credit risk is considered in determining fair value. Considerable judgment may be required
in interpreting market data used to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, estimates of fair value presented
herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that could be realized in a current or future market exchange. See
Note 11 for additional information regarding fair value.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

We use various physical and financial derivative instruments, including forward contracts, financial swaps, and call
and put options, to meet forecasted load and reserve requirements, to reduce our exposure to energy commodity price
volatility and to hedge our interest rate risk exposure. For all derivative instruments that do not meet the normal
purchase or normal sale scope exception, we recognize derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and measure those instruments at fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value
of a derivative depends on the intended use of the derivative and the resulting designation.

Commodity derivatives used in normal business operations that are settled by physical delivery, among other criteria,
are eligible for and may be designated as normal purchases or normal sales. Normal purchases or normal sales
contracts are not recorded at fair value and settled amounts are recognized as cost of fuel, energy and capacity on the
Consolidated Statements of Income.

For our derivatives designated as hedging contracts, we formally assess, at inception and thereafter, whether the
hedging contract is highly effective in offsetting changes in the hedged item. Also, we formally document hedging
activity by transaction type and risk management strategy.
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For our derivatives not designated as hedging contracts, the settled amount is generally included in regulated rates.

Accordingly, the net unrealized gains and losses associated with interim price movements on contracts that are
accounted for as derivatives and probable of inclusion in regulated rates are recorded as regulatory assets and
liabilities. See Note 11 for additional information regarding derivative instruments.
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PENSION AND OTHER RETIREE BENEFITS

We sponsor noncontributory, defined benefit pension plans for substantially all employees and certain affiliate
employees. Benefits are based on years of service and average compensation. We also provide limited health care and
life insurance benefits for retirees.

We recognize the underfunded status of our defined benefit pension plans as a liability on our balance sheet. The
underfunded status is measured as the difference between the fair value of the pension plans’ assets and the projected
benefit obligation for the pension plans. We recognize a regulatory asset to the extent these future costs are probable
of recovery in the rates charged to retail customers and expect to recover these costs over the estimated service lives of
employees.

Additionally, we maintain a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP) for senior management. Changes in
SERP benefit obligations are recognized as a component of AOCI.

Pension and other retiree benefit expenses are determined by actuarial valuations based on assumptions that we
evaluate annually. See Note 8 for additional information regarding the employee benefit plans.

NOTE 2. REGULATORY MATTERS

The ACC and the FERC each regulate portions of TEP's utility accounting practices and rates. The ACC regulates
rates charged to retail customers, the siting of generation and transmission facilities, the issuance of securities,
transactions with affiliated parties, and other utility matters. The ACC also enacts other regulations and policies that
can affect business decisions and accounting practices. The FERC regulates terms and prices of transmission services
and wholesale electricity sales.

2015 RATE CASE

In November 2015, TEP filed a general rate case with the ACC based on a test year ended June 30, 2015. The filing
requests that new rates be implemented by January 1, 2017.

The key provisions of TEP's general rate case include:

a Base Rate increase of $110 million, or 12%, compared with adjusted test year revenues;

2 7.34% return on original cost rate base of $2.1 billion;

a request to apply excess depreciation reserves against the unrecovered net book value (NBV) of the San Juan
Generating Station (San Juan) Unit 2 and the H. Wilson Sundt Generating Station (Sundt) Coal Handling Facilities
due to early retirement;

a request for authority to begin using the Third-Party Owners' portion of Unit 1 of the Springerville Generating
Station (Springerville Unit 1) that is available to TEP for dispatch to serve retail customers' needs and to recover the
related operating costs through the PPFAC; and

rate design changes that would reduce the reliance on volumetric sales to recover fixed costs and a new net metering
tariff that would ensure that customers who install distributed generation pay an equitable price for their electric
service.

TEP cannot predict the outcome of this proceeding or whether its rate request will be adopted by the ACC in whole or
in part.

COST RECOVERY MECHANISMS

TEP has received regulatory decisions that allow for more timely recovery of certain costs through the recovery
mechanisms described below.

Purchased Power and Fuel Adjustment Clause

TEP's PPFAC rate is adjusted annually each April 1st and goes into effect for the subsequent 12-month period unless
modified by the ACC. The PPFAC rate includes: (i) a forward component which attempts to recover or refund the
difference between forecasted fuel costs and those embedded in the current PPFAC and fuel rates; and (ii) a true-up
component that reconciles the difference between actual costs and those recovered in the preceding 12-month period.
The PPFAC bank balance was over-collected by $18 million at December 31, 2015 and under-collected by $19
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The PPFAC rates during the periods reported were as follows:

Period Cents per kWh
April 2015 through March 2016 0.68
October 2014 through March 2015 (D 0.50
May 2014 through September 2014 (D 0.10
July 2013 through April 2014 @ 0.14 )
January 2013 through June 2013 0.77

() The ACC approved a two-step increase to shift a higher level of recovery into the winter season.
() The effective date of the 2012 PPFAC rate reduction was deferred to coincide with the effective date of the 2013
Rate Order.
San Juan Mine Fire Insurance Proceeds
In September 2011, a fire at the underground mine providing coal to San Juan caused interruptions to mining
operations and resulted in increased fuel costs. The 2013 Rate Order required TEP to defer incremental fuel costs of
$10 million from recovery under the PPFAC pending final resolution of an insurance claim by the San Juan Coal
Company (SJCC) and distribution of insurance proceeds to San Juan participants. TEP received insurance proceeds of
$1 million in 2015 and $8 million in 2014. The insurance proceeds offset the deferred fuel costs and are included in
the Statements of Cash Flows as an operating activity. The remaining $1 million of unreimbursed fuel costs will be
recovered through the PPFAC, in accordance with the 2013 Rate Order.
Renewable Energy Standards
The ACC’s RES requires TEP and other affected utilities to increase their use of renewable energy each year until it
represents at least 15% of their total annual retail energy requirements in 2025, with distributed generation accounting
for 30% of the annual renewable energy requirement. Affected utilities must file an annual RES implementation plan
for review and approval by the ACC. The approved cost of carrying out the plan is recovered from retail customers
through the RES surcharge until such costs are reflected in TEP’s Base Rates. The associated lost revenues attributable
to meeting distributed generation targets will be partially recovered through the LFCR.
In July 2015, TEP submitted its application for the 2016 RES implementation plan that includes a budget of
$57 million, which will be partially offset by applying approximately $9 million of previously recovered carryover
funds. TEP proposed to recover $48 million through the RES surcharge. The budget will fund the following: (i) the
above market cost of renewable energy purchases; (ii) previously awarded performance-based incentives for customer
installed distributed generation; (iii) depreciation and a return on TEP's investments in company-owned solar projects;
and (iv) various other program costs. TEP expects to receive a decision on the application in the first half of 2016.
TEP expects to recognize approximately $9 million of revenue in 2016 as a return on company-owned solar projects.
TEP met the overall 2015 RES renewable energy requirement of 5% of retail Kilowatt-hour (kWh) sales and expects
to meet the 2016 requirement of 6% of retail kWh sales. Compliance is determined through the ACC's review of
TEP's annual RES implementation plan. As TEP no longer pays incentives to obtain distributed generation REC,
which are used to demonstrate compliance with the distributed generation requirement, the company has requested a
waiver of the RES distributed generation requirements in its 2016 RES implementation plan.
Energy Efficiency Standards
In 2010, the ACC approved new EE Standards designed to require electric utilities to implement cost-effective
programs to reduce customers' energy consumption. The EE Standards require increasing cumulative annual targeted
retail kWh savings equal to 22% by 2020. Since the implementation of the EE Standards, TEP’s cumulative annual
energy savings are approximately 9.3% of 2015 retail kWh sales. TEP’s compliance with the EE Standards is governed
by the ACC’s approval of its annual implementation plan.
The EE Standards provide for a DSM surcharge for regulated utilities to recover the costs to implement DSM
programs as well as an annual performance incentive. TEP recorded $3 million in 2015, $2 million in 2014, and less
than $1 million in 2013 related to performance. The performance incentive is recorded in the first quarter of the year
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and is included in Electric Retail Sales on the Consolidated Statements of Income.
In February 2016, the ACC approved TEP’s 2016 energy efficiency implementation plan. Under the 2016 plan, TEP
has been approved to recover approximately $14 million from retail customers and will offer customers new and

existing DSM
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programs. Energy savings realized through the programs will count toward Arizona’s EE Standard and the associated
lost revenue will be partially recovered through the LFCR.

Lost Fixed Cost Recovery Mechanism

The LFCR mechanism provides recovery of certain non-fuel costs that would go unrecovered due to lost retail kWh
sales as a result of implementing ACC approved energy efficiency programs and distributed generation targets. TEP
records a regulatory asset and recognizes LFCR revenues when the amounts are verifiable, regardless of when the lost
retail kWh sales occur. For recovery of the LFCR regulatory asset, TEP is required to file an annual LFCR adjustment
request with the ACC for the LFCR revenues recognized in the prior year. The recovery is subject to a year-over-year
cap of 1% of TEP's total retail revenues.

TEP recorded a regulatory asset and recognized LFCR revenues of $12 million in 2015, $11 million in 2014, and $2
million in 2013 related to reductions in retail kWh sales for the prior years. LFCR revenues are included in Electric
Retail Sales on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Appellate Review of Rate Decisions

In a 2015 appellate challenge to two ACC rate decisions regarding a water company, the Arizona Court of Appeals
considered the question of how the ACC should determine a utility’s “fair value”, as specified in the Arizona
Constitution, in connection with authorizing recovery of costs through rate adjustors outside of a rate case. The Court
reversed the ACC’s method of finding fair value in that case, and raised questions concerning the relationship between
the need for fair value findings and the recovery of capital and certain other utility costs through adjustors. In
February 2016, the Arizona Supreme Court granted the ACC’s request for review of this decision. If the Supreme
Court upholds the decision without modification, certain TEP rate adjustors may be negatively affected which could
have a significant impact on TEP’s ability to recover certain costs between rate cases. TEP filed a brief in support of
the ACC’s petition to the Supreme Court for review of the Court of Appeals’ decision, but cannot predict the outcome
of this matter.
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REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Regulatory assets are either being collected in Retail Rates or are expected to be collected through Retail Rates in a
future period. With the exception of interest earned on under-recovered PPFAC costs and the ECA, we do not earn a
return on regulatory assets. Regulatory liabilities represent items that we either expect to pay to customers through
billing reductions in future periods or plan to use for the purpose for which they were collected from customers.
Regulatory assets and liabilities recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets are summarized below:

December 31,

(in millions) 2015 2014
Regulatory Assets

Pension and Other Retiree Benefits (Note 8) $120 $126
Final Mine Reclamation and Retiree Health Care Costs () 28 29
Income Taxes Recoverable through Future Rates @) 26 31
Property Tax Deferrals (3 21 21
Springerville Unit 1 Leasehold Improvements - Third Party Owners ) 21 —
LFCR and DSM 16 12
Derivatives (Note 11) 12 18
PPFAC — 19
Springerville Purchase Deferrals ©) — 16
Other Regulatory Assets 20 20
Total Regulatory Assets 264 292
Less Current Portion 52 69
Total Non-Current Regulatory Assets $212 $223
Regulatory Liabilities

Net Cost of Removal for Interim Retirements (©) $264 $265
Deferred Investment Tax Credits (7) 32 41
RES 25 28
PPFAC 18 —
Other Regulatory Liabilities 21 26
Total Regulatory Liabilities 360 360
Less Current Portion 53 39
Total Non-Current Regulatory Liabilities $307 $321

Final Mine Reclamation and Retiree Health Care Costs represent costs associated with TEP’s jointly-owned
facilities at San Juan, Four Corners, and Navajo. TEP has the option to recognize its liability associated with final

(D reclamation and retiree health care obligations at present or future value. TEP has elected to recognize these costs
at future value and is permitted to fully recover these costs through the PPFAC when paid. TEP expects to make
continuous payments through 2037.

«2) Income Taxes Recoverable through Future Rates are amortized over the life of the assets. See Note 1 and Note 12
for additional information regarding income taxes.

Property taxes are recorded as a regulatory asset based on historical ratemaking treatment allowing regulated

(3) utilities to recover property taxes on a pay-as-you-go or cash basis. TEP records a liability to reflect the accrual for
financial reporting purposes and an offsetting regulatory asset to reflect recovery for regulatory purposes. This
asset is fully recovered in rates with a recovery period of approximately six months.

) Upon expiration of Springerville Unit 1 capital leases in January 2015, TEP recorded a regulatory asset for
unamortized leasehold improvement costs that relate to third-party ownership interests. These leasehold
improvements, previously recorded in Plant in Service on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, represent investments
TEP made through the end of the lease term to ensure that the Springerville Unit 1 facilities continued providing

102



Edgar Filing: TUCSON ELECTRIC POWER CO - Form 10-K

safe, reliable service to TEP's customers. In the 2013 Rate Order, TEP received ACC authorization to recover

Springerville Unit 1 leasehold improvement costs over a 10-year amortization period.

TEP deferred the increase in lease interest expense relating to the purchase commitments for Springerville Unit 1
() and the Springerville Coal Handling Facilities to a regulatory asset because TEP believes the full purchase price is

recoverable in rate base. See Note 6 for additional information regarding the Springerville leases.

60

103



Edgar Filing: TUCSON ELECTRIC POWER CO - Form 10-K

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Net Cost of Removal for Interim Retirements represents an estimate of the cost of future asset retirement
(6) obligations net of salvage value. These are amounts collected through revenue for the net cost of removal of

interim retirements for transmission, distribution, generation plant, and general and intangible plant which are not

yet expended.

(7y Accumulated Deferred Investment Tax Credit (ITC) represents federal energy credits generated after 2011 that are

amortized over the tax life of the underlying asset.
IMPACTS OF REGULATORY ACCOUNTING

If we determine that we no longer meet the criteria for continued application of regulatory accounting, we would be

required to write off our regulatory assets and liabilities related to those operations not meeting the regulatory
accounting requirements. Discontinuation of regulatory accounting could have a material impact on our financial
statements.

NOTE 3. UTILITY PLANT AND JOINTLY-OWNED FACILITIES
UTILITY PLANT
The following table shows Utility Plant in Service by major class:
December 31,

(in millions) 2015 2014
Plant in Service

Electric Generation Plant $2,612 $2,388
Electric Transmission Plant 1,008 890
Electric Distribution Plant 1,456 1,398
General Plant 358 338
Intangible Plant - Software Costs () ) 172 149
Intangible Plant - Transmission Rights and Other 7 8
Electric Plant Held for Future Use 5 4
Total Plant in Service $5,618 $5,175
Utility Plant under Capital Leases () $132 $667

0 Unamortized computer software costs were $45 million and $31 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.

@ The amortization of computer software costs was $14 million in 2015, $17 million in 2014, and $14 million in
2013.

3) TEP purchased certain Springerville facilities leased interests in 2015 and 2014. See Note 6 for additional
information regarding the Springerville leases.
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Utility Plant under Capital Leases

All utility plant under capital leases is used in generation operations and amortized over the primary lease term. See
Note 6 for additional information regarding capital leases. At December 31, 2015, the utility plant under capital leases
represents an undivided one-half interest in certain Springerville Common Facilities. The following table shows the
amount of lease expense incurred for generation-related capital leases:

Year Ended December 31,
(in millions) 2015 2014 2013
Lease Expense
Interest Expense — Included in:
Capital Leases $4 $10 $25
Operating Expenses — Fuel — 1 2
Amortization of Capital Lease Assets — Included in:
Operating Expenses — Fuel 2 6 5
Operating Expenses — Amortization 6 16 15
Total Lease Expense $12 $33 $47

Utility plant depreciation rates and approximate average remaining service lives based on the most recent depreciation
studies available for the major classes of Utility Plant in Service at December 31, 2015, were as follows:

Annual Average
Depreciation Rate Remaining Life in
) Years

Electric Generation Plant 3.31% 22

Electric Transmission Plant 1.48% 32

Electric Distribution Plant 2.08% 35

General Plant 5.48% 11

Intangible Plant @) Various Various

(1) The depreciation rates represent a composite of the depreciation rates of assets within each major class of utility
plant.
The majority of TEP's investment in intangible plant represents computer software. Computer software is being
2 amortized over its expected useful life of three to five years for smaller application software and average remaining
life of three to eight years for large enterprise software.
GILA RIVER ACQUISITION
In December 2014, TEP and UNS Electric, Inc. (UNS Electric) acquired Gila River Unit 3, a gas-fired combined cycle
unit with a nominal capacity rating of 550 megawatts (MW) located in Gila Bend, Arizona, from a subsidiary of
Entegra Power Group LLC. TEP purchased a 75% undivided interest in Gila River Unit 3 (413 MW) for $164 million,
and UNS Electric purchased the remaining 25% undivided interest.
TEP’s purchase of Gila River Unit 3 was intended to replace the reduction of 195 MW of output from Springerville
Unit 1 and the 170 MW of capacity expected to be retired at San Juan in 2017.
The transaction was accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting which requires that assets acquired and
liabilities assumed be recognized at their fair values as of the acquisition date. The following table summarizes the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date:
(in millions)

Utility Plant, Net $163

Materials and Supplies 2

ARO Obligation Assumed () (1 )
Total Purchase Price $164

6]
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The ARO obligation was recorded at net present value in Regulatory and Other Liabilities - Other on TEP's
Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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JOINTLY-OWNED FACILITIES
In addition to Gila River Unit 3, at December 31, 2015, TEP was a participant in the following jointly-owned
generating stations and transmission systems:

Construction

. e Ownership Plant in . Accumulated  Net Book
(in millions) . Work in ..
Percentage Service Depreciation  Value
Progress
San Juan Units 1 and 2 50.0% $486 $12 $251 $247
Navajo Units 1, 2, and 3 7.5% 148 2 112 38
Four Corners Units 4 and 5 7.0% 102 9 77 34
Luna Energy Facility 33.3% 54 — — 54
Gila River Unit 3 75.0% 198 2 56 144
Gila River Common Facilities 18.8% 25 — 7 18
Springerville Unit 1 (D 49.5% 319 8 174 153
Sprl.n.ger\;ﬂle Coal Handling 65.9% 164 | 65 100
Facility
Transmission Facilities Various 383 1 172 212
Total $1,879 $35 $914 $1,000

TEP is obligated to operate the unit for the Third-Party Owners under existing agreements. The Owner Trustees
«1y and Co-Trustees are obligated to compensate TEP for their pro rata share of expenses. See Note 6 for additional
information regarding the purchase of leased interest. See Note 7 for additional information regarding Springerville
Unit 1.
TEP owns an additional 17.05% undivided interest in the Springerville Coal Handling Facilities classified as
(@ Assets Held for Sale on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. See Note 6 for additional information regarding the
Springerville Coal Handling Facilities lease interests.
As participants in these jointly-owned facilities, we are responsible for our share of operating and capital costs for the
above facilities. We account for our share of operating expenses and utility plant costs related to these facilities using
proportionate consolidation.
RETIREMENTS
San Juan
In October 2014, the EPA published a final rule approving a State Implementation Plan (SIP) covering BART
requirements for San Juan, which includes the closure of Units 2 and 3 by December 2017. TEP is a participant in
San Juan Unit 2. Given the closure of two units and the desire of certain participants to exit their ownership in San
Juan, PNM and the other participants, including TEP, negotiated restructured ownership agreements which became
effective upon the sale of San Juan Coal Company’s (SJCC) stock in January 2016. As a condition of the New Mexico
Public Regulatory Commission’s (NMPRC) approval of the early retirement of San Juan Units 2 and 3, PNM is
required to make a filing with the NMPRC in 2018 to demonstrate the ongoing economic viability of San Juan beyond
2022. Under the new restructured ownership agreements, TEP and the other remaining participants have the option to
exit their remaining ownership interest in San Juan as of June 30, 2022.
At December 31, 2015, the net book value of TEP's share in San Juan Unit 2, including construction work in progress,
was $104 million. Consistent with the 2013 Rate Order, TEP has requested authorization from the ACC to apply
excess depreciation reserves against the unrecovered net book value in its 2015 Rate Case. See Note 2 for additional
information regarding the 2015 Rate Case.
Sundt
In June 2014, the EPA issued a final rule that would require TEP to either: (i) install, by mid-2017, SNCR and dry
sorbent injection if Sundt Unit 4 continues to use coal as a fuel source; or (ii) permanently eliminate coal as a fuel
source as a better-than-BART alternative by the end of 2017. Under the rule, TEP is required to notify the EPA of its

107



Edgar Filing: TUCSON ELECTRIC POWER CO - Form 10-K

decision by March 2017.

At December 31, 2015, the net book value of the Sundt coal handling facilities was $16 million. In August 2015, TEP
exhausted its existing coal supply at Sundt and has been operating Sundt with natural gas as a primary fuel source.
TEP expects to retire the Sundt coal handling facilities earlier than expected, and has requested to apply excess
depreciation reserves against the unrecovered net book value in its 2015 Rate Case. See Note 2 for additional
information regarding the 2015 Rate Case.
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ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS
The accrual of AROs is primarily related to generation and photovoltaic assets and is included in Regulatory and
Other Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The following table reconciles the beginning and ending
aggregate carrying amounts of ARO accruals on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

December 31,

(in millions) 2015 2014
Beginning of Period $28 $22
Liabilities Incurred 4 5
Accretion Expense or Regulatory Deferral 1 1
Revisions to the Present Value of Estimated Cash Flows (1) (1 ) —
End of Period $32 $28

(1) Primarily related to changes in expected cost estimates, in conjunction with changes of asset retirement dates of
generating facilities.

NOTE 4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
The following table presents the components of Accounts Receivable, Net on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
December 31,

(in millions) 2015 2014

Customer $79 $78

Due from Affiliates (Note 5) 7 5

Unbilled 39 37

Other 39 17

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (1) 27 ) (5 )
Accounts Receivable, Net $137 $132

1y The Allowance for Doubtful Accounts increased in 2015 due to the Third-Party Owners' claims at Springerville
Unit 1. See Note 7 for additional information regarding the Third-Party Owners' claims.

NOTE 5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

TEP engages in various transactions with Fortis, UNS Energy and its affiliated subsidiaries including Unisource
Energy Services, Inc. (UES), UNS Electric, UNS Gas, Inc. (UNS Gas) and Southwest Energy Solutions, Inc. (SES)
(collectively, UNS Energy affiliates). These transactions include the sale and purchase of power and transmission
services, common cost allocations, and the provision of corporate and other labor related services.
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The following table presents the components of related party balances included in Accounts Receivable, Net and
Accounts Payable on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

December 31,

(in millions) 2015 2014
Receivables from Related Parties

UNS Electric $6 $4
UNS Gas 1 1
Total Due from Related Parties $7 $5
Payables to Related Parties

SES $2 $2
UNS Electric 2 1
UNS Energy 2 —
Total Due to Related Parties $6 $3

The following table presents the components of related party transactions included on the Consolidated Statements of
Income:

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2015 2014 2013
Wholesale Sales - TEP to UNS Electric (1) $8 $4 $1
Wholesale Sales - UNS Electric to TEP (1) 1 4 2
Control Area Services - TEP to UNS Electric @ 2 3 4
Common Costs - TEP to UNS Energy Affiliates (3 12 13 12
Supplemental Workforce - SES to TEP ) 16 16 16
Corporate Services - UNS Energy to TEP ) 7 14 5
Corporate Services - UNS Energy Affiliates to TEP (©) 1 1 1

() TEP and UNS Electric sell power and transmission services to each other at prevailing market prices.

(2) TEP charges UNS Electric for control area services under a FERC-approved Control Area Services Agreement.
Common costs (information systems, facilities, etc.) are allocated on a cost-causative basis and recorded as

() revenue by TEP. The method of allocation is deemed reasonable by management and is reviewed by the ACC as
part of the rate case process.

@ SES provides supplemental workforce and meter-reading services to TEP based on related party service
agreements. The charges are based on cost of services performed and deemed reasonable by management.
Costs for corporate services at UNS Energy include Fortis management fees, legal fees, and audit fees which are
allocated to its subsidiaries using the Massachusetts Formula, an industry accepted method of allocating common

5) costs to affiliated entities. TEP's allocation is approximately 81% of UNS Energy's allocated costs. In 2015, these
costs included approximately $5 million in Fortis management fees, which began in January 2015 following the
August 2014 acquisition. In 2014, these costs included approximately $12 million in acquisition-related costs
(excluding TEP allocated labor related charges).
Costs for corporate services (e.g., finance, accounting, tax, legal, and information technology) and other labor

©) services for UNS Energy Affiliates are directly assigned to the benefiting entity at a fully burdened cost when
possible.

CONTRIBUTION FROM PARENT

In June 2015, UNS Energy made an equity contribution to TEP of $180 million. TEP used proceeds from the equity

contribution to repay the outstanding balances under TEP's revolving credit facilities. The remaining balance of the

proceeds was used to redeem bonds in August 2015 and to provide additional liquidity to TEP. See Note 6 for

additional information regarding the August 2015 bond redemption. TEP received contributions of $225 million from
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UNS Energy in 2014 and no contributions in 2013.
DIVIDEND PAID
TEP declared and paid $50 million in dividends to UNS Energy in 2015 and $40 million in 2014 and 2013.
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The ACC's approval of the acquisition of UNS Energy by Fortis, in August 2014, contained a condition restricting
subsidiary dividend payments to UNS Energy by TEP to no more than 60 percent of TEP's annual net income for the
earlier of five years or until such time that TEP's equity capitalization reaches 50 percent of total capital as accounted
for in accordance with GAAP. The ratios used to determine the dividend restrictions will be calculated for each
calendar year and reported to the ACC annually beginning on April 1, 2016. As of December 31, 2015, TEP had not
reached the 50 percent of total capital and was therefore still restricted by the condition contained in the ACC's
approval order.

NOTE 6. DEBT, CREDIT FACILITIES, AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt matures more than one year from the date of the financial statements. The following table presents the
components of Long-Term Debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

(dollars in millions) December 31,
Debt () Interest Rate Maturity Date @ 2015 2014
Notes
2011 Notes 5.15% 2021 $250 $250
2012 Notes 3.85% 2023 150 150
2014 Notes 5.00% 2044 150 150
2015 Notes 3.05% 2025 300 —
Tax Exempt Local Furnishings Bonds
1982 Pima A Irvington Project Reset Weekly @ 2022 — 39
1982 Pima A TEP Projects Reset Weekly @ 2022 — 40
2008 Pima B 5.75% 2029 — 130
2010 Pima A 5.25% 2040 100 100
2012 Pima A 4.50% 2030 16 16
2013 Pima A 4.00% 2029 91 91
2013 Apache A Reset Monthly @ 2032 100 100
Tax Exempt Pollution Control Bonds
2009 Pima A 4.95% 2020 80 80
2009 Coconino A 5.13% 2032 15 15
2010 Coconino A Reset Weekly @ 2032 37 37
2012 Apache A 4.50% 2030 177 177
Total Long-Term Debt 1,466 1,375
Less Unamortized Discount and Debt Issuance

14 13
Costs
Total Long-Term Debt, Net $1,452 $1,362

0 As of December 31, 2015, all of TEP's debt is unsecured, with the exception of the 2010 Coconino A variable rate
bonds, which are backed by a LOC.
For variable rate debt for which rates are reset weekly, the weighted average rate (including LOC fees and
remarketing fees) was 1.24% in 2015 and 1.46% in 2014. The average weekly interest rate ranged from 0.93% -

@ 1:42% in 2015 and 1.40% - 1.75% during 2014. For variable rate debt for which rates are reset monthly, the rate is
based on a percentage of an index equal to one-month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus a credit
spread. The average monthly rate was 0.81% in 2015 and 0.87% in 2014. The monthly interest rate ranged from
0.79% - 0.87% in 2015 and 0.85% - 0.95% in 2014.

) The 2010 Coconino A variable rate bonds are backed by an LOC issued pursuant to the 2010 Reimbursement
Agreement, which expires in December 2019. The 2013 Apache A variable rate bonds are subject to mandatory
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tender for purchase in 2018.
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DEBT ISSUANCES AND REDEMPTIONS

Fixed Rate Debt

In February 2015, TEP issued and sold $300 million aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes. TEP may
redeem the notes prior to December 2024, with a make-whole premium plus accrued interest. On or after December
2024, TEP may redeem the notes at par plus accrued interest.

In January 2015, TEP purchased $130 million aggregate principal amount of unsecured tax exempt Industrial
Development Revenue Bonds (IDRBs) issued in June 2008 by the Industrial Development Authority (IDA) of Pima
County, Arizona for the benefit of TEP. The multi-modal bonds mature in September 2029. At December 31, 2015,
TEP had not remarketed the repurchased bonds and as a result the bonds were not recorded in Long-Term Debt on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

In March 2014, TEP issued and sold $150 million of unsecured notes. TEP may redeem the notes prior to September
2043, with a make-whole premium plus accrued interest. After September 2043, TEP may redeem the notes at par
plus accrued interest.

Variable Rate Debt

In August 2015, TEP redeemed two series of variable rate tax-exempt bonds at par with an aggregate principal amount
of $79 million prior to maturity. In September 2015, TEP terminated the associated LOCs issued under a revolving
credit facility.

In September 2014, TEP's interest rate swap entered into in August 2009 expired. The interest rate swap had the
economic effect of converting $50 million of variable rate bonds to a fixed rate of 2.40% from September 2009 to
September 2014.

CREDIT AGREEMENTS

In October 2015, TEP entered into an unsecured credit agreement (2015 Credit Agreement) replacing the 2010 Credit
Agreement. The 2015 Credit Agreement provides for a $250 million revolving credit commitment and LOC facility.
The LOC sublimit is $50 million. TEP expects that amounts borrowed under the credit agreement will be used for
working capital and other general corporate purposes and that LOCs will be issued from time to time to support
energy procurement and hedging transactions. All amounts outstanding under the facility will be due in October 2020,
the termination date. The 2015 Credit Agreement allows for two one-year extensions of the facility if certain
conditions are satisfied.

Interest rates and fees under the 2015 Credit Agreement are based on a pricing grid tied to TEP’s credit ratings. The
interest rate currently in effect on borrowings is LIBOR plus 1.00% for Eurodollar loans or Alternate Base Rate with
no spread for Alternate Base Rate loans.

At December 31, 2015, TEP had no borrowings outstanding included in Current Liabilities on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. As of February 17, 2016, there was $250 million available under the 2015 Credit Agreement's
revolving credit and LOC facilities.

In 2015, TEP terminated both the 2010 and 2014 Credit Agreements. The amended 2010 Credit Agreement provided
for a $200 million revolving credit commitment and LOCs supporting variable-rate, tax-exempt bonds, with an
expiration date of November 2016. The 2014 Credit Agreement, entered into in December 2014, provided for a $130
million term loan commitment and a $70 million revolving credit commitment, with an expiration date of November
2015. At December 31, 2014, TEP had $85 million in total borrowings outstanding under these agreements which
were included in Current Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

2010 REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT

In December 2010, a $37 million LOC was issued to support certain variable rate tax-exempt bonds pursuant to the
2010 Reimbursement Agreement. The LOC had an expiration date of December 2014. In February 2014, the LOC
was amended to extend the expiration date from 2014 to 2019. Fees are payable on the aggregate outstanding amount
of the LOC at a rate of 0.75% per annum based on TEP's current credit ratings.

COVENANT COMPLIANCE
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Certain of our credit and long-term debt agreements contain restrictive covenants, including restrictions on additional
indebtedness, liens to secure indebtedness, mergers, sales of assets, transactions with affiliates, and restricted
payments. At December 31, 2015, we were in compliance with the terms of our long-term debt, 2015 Credit
Agreement, 2013 Covenants Agreement, and 2010 Reimbursement Agreement.
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CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
The following table details Capital Lease Obligation on TEP's Consolidated Balance Sheets:
December 31,

(in millions) 2015 2014
Springerville Unit 1 $— $43
Springerville Coal Handling Facilities — 117
Springerville Common Facilities 69 83
Total Capital Lease Obligations 69 243
Less Current Obligations Under Capital Leases 14 174
Total Capital Lease Obligations, Net $55 $69

Springerville Unit 1 Capital Lease Purchases

In December 2014, TEP purchased a 10.6% leased interest in Springerville Unit 1 representing 41 MW of capacity for
the appraised value of $20 million. In January 2015, upon expiration of the lease term, TEP purchased leased interests
comprising 24.8% of Springerville Unit 1, representing 96 MW of capacity, for an aggregate purchase price of $46
million, the appraised value. Upon purchase of the leased interests, TEP reduced Capital Lease Obligations on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets for the purchase price.

With the completion of the purchases, TEP owns 49.5% of Springerville Unit 1, or 192 MW of capacity. TEP is
obligated to operate the unit for the Third-Party Owners under existing agreements. The Owner Trustees and
Co-Trustees are obligated to compensate TEP for their pro rata share of expenses. See Note 7 for more information
regarding claims relating to Springerville Unit 1.

Springerville Coal Handling Facilities Lease Purchase

In April 2015, upon expiration of the lease, TEP purchased an 86.7% undivided ownership interest in the Springerville
Coal Handling Facilities at the fixed purchase price of $120 million, bringing its total ownership of the assets to
100%. Upon purchase of the leased interest, TEP reduced Capital Lease Obligations on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets for the purchase price.

In May 2015, SRP, the owner of Springerville Unit 4, purchased from TEP a 17.05% undivided interest in the
Springerville Coal Handling Facilities for approximately $24 million.

Tri-State, the lessee of Springerville Unit 3, is obligated to either: (i) buy a 17.05% undivided interest in the facilities
for approximately $24 million; or (ii) continue to make payments to TEP for the use of the facilities. Tri-State has
until April 2016 to exercise its purchase option. At December 31, 2015, Tri-State's 17.05% undivided interest in the
Springerville Coal Handling Facilities is classified as Assets Held for Sale on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Springerville Common Facilities Leases

The Springerville Common Facilities Leases have an initial term to December 2017 for one lease and January 2021
for the other two leases, subject to optional renewal periods of two or more years through 2025. TEP may also
exercise a fixed-price purchase provision. The fixed prices for the acquisition of the interests in the common facilities
are $38 million in 2017 and $68 million in 2021.

TEP entered into agreements with Tri-State, the lessee of Springerville Unit 3, and SRP, the owner of Springerville
Unit 4, that contain the following conditions if the Common Facilities Leases are not renewed:

TEP will exercise the purchase options under these contracts;

SRP will be obligated to buy a portion of these facilities; and

Tri-State will be obligated to either: (i) buy a portion of these facilities; or (ii) continue making payments to TEP for
the use of these facilities.

TEP entered into an interest rate swap in 2006 that hedges a portion of the floating interest rate risk associated with
the Springerville Common Facilities lease debt. The swap has the effect of fixing the benchmark LIBOR rate on a
portion of the amortizing principal balance. The swap matures in January 2020 with interest on the lease debt payable
at a swapped rate of
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5.77% plus an applicable margin per the lease agreement. The lease debt outstanding at December 31, 2015 consisted
of a notional amount of $29 million on which interest was fixed by the swap and a notional amount of $13 million of
debt that was not hedged. The applicable margin was 1.88% and 1.75% at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
TEP recorded the interest rate swap as a cash flow hedge for financial reporting purposes. See Note 11 for additional
information.
DEBT MATURITIES
Long-term debt, including revolving credit facilities classified as long-term, and capital lease obligations mature on
the following dates:

Long-Term Capital
(in millions) Debt Lease

Maturities () Obligations Total
2016 $— $15 $15
2017 — 16 16
2018 100 11 111
2019 37 11 48
2020 80 18 98
Total 2016 - 2020 217 71 288
Thereafter 1,249 — 1,249
Less: Imputed Interest — (2 ) (2 )
Total $1,466 $69 $1,535

$37 million of TEP’s variable rate bonds are backed by an LOC issued pursuant to the 2010 Reimbursement
Agreement, which expires in December 2019. Although the variable rate bond matures in 2032, the above table

(1) reflects a redemption or repurchase of such bond in 2019 as though the LOC terminates without replacement upon
expiration of the 2010 Reimbursement Agreement. TEP's 2013 tax-exempt variable rate IDRBs, which have an
aggregate principal amount of $100 million and mature in 2032, are subject to mandatory tender for purchase in
2018.

(2) Total long-term debt is not reduced by $11 million of related unamortized debt issuance costs and $3 million of
unamortized original issue discount.

NOTE 7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

COMMITMENTS

At December 31, 2015, TEP had the following firm, non-cancellable, minimum purchase obligations and operating
leases:

(in millions) 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter Total
Fuel, Including Transportation $78 $76 $49 $49 $41 $287 $580
Purchased Power 28 — — — — — 28
Transmission 6 6 6 4 3 13 38
Renewable Power Purchase Agreements 61 61 61 61 60 750 1,054
RES Performance-Based Incentives 8 8 8 8 8 67 107
Operating Leases:

Land Easements and Rights-of-Way 1 1 1 1 1 77 82
Operating Leases Other 1 1 1 1 1 4 9
Total Purchase Commitments $183 $153 $126 $124 $114 $1,198 $1,898

Fuel, Including Transportation
TEP has long-term contracts for the purchase and delivery of coal with various expiration dates through 2031.
Amounts paid under these contracts depend on actual quantities purchased and delivered. Some of these contracts
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clause that will affect the future cost. TEP expects to spend more than the minimum purchase obligations to meet its
fuel requirements. TEP's fuel costs are recoverable from customers through the PPFAC.

Contemporaneously with the sale of SJCC's stock in January 2016, the existing coal sale agreement terminated and a
new Coal Supply Agreement (CSA) became effective. The new CSA is between SJCC and PNM and continues
through June 30, 2022. TEP is not a party to the new CSA, but has minimum purchase obligations under restructured
ownership agreements at San Juan. Estimated future payments, not included in the table above, are $21 million in
2016, $23 million in 2017, $24 million in 2018 and 2019, $23 million in 2020, and $22 million through the end of the
contract.

TEP has firm transportation agreements with capacity sufficient to meet its load requirements. These contracts expire
in various years between 2016 and 2040.

Purchased Power and Transmission

TEP has agreements with utilities and other energy suppliers for purchased power to meet system load and energy
requirements, replace generation from company-owned units under maintenance and during outages, and meet
operating reserve obligations. In general, these contracts provide for capacity payments and energy payments based on
actual power taken under the contracts and expire in 2016. Certain of these contracts are at a fixed price per MW and
others are indexed to natural gas prices. The commitment amounts included in the table are based on projected market
prices as of December 31, 2015.

TEP has agreements with other utilities to provide transmission services over lines that are part of the Western
Interconnection, a regional grid in the United States. These contracts expire in various years between 2018 and 2028.
TEP's purchased power and transmission costs are recoverable from customers through the PPFAC mechanism.
Renewable Power Purchase Agreements and RES Performance-Based Incentives

TEP enters into long-term renewable power purchase agreements which require TEP to purchase 100% of certain
renewable energy generation facilities output once commercial operation status is achieved. While TEP is not required
to make payments under these contracts if power is not delivered, the table above includes estimated future payments
based on expected power deliveries. A portion of the cost of renewable energy is recoverable through the PPFAC,
with the balance of costs recoverable through the RES tariff. These contracts expire in various years between 2030
and 2035.

In February 2016, a facility achieved commercial operation status. The related contract expires in 2036. Estimated
future payments, not included in the table above, are $3 million in each of 2016 through 2020 and $43 million through
the end of the contract.

TEP has entered into REC purchase agreements to purchase the environmental attributes from retail customers with
solar installations. Payments for the RECs are termed Performance-Based Incentives (PBIs) and are paid in
contractually agreed-upon intervals (usually quarterly) based on metered renewable energy production. PBIs are
recoverable through the RES tariff.

See Note 2 for additional information regarding TEP's RES tariff.

Operating Leases

Our operating lease expense is primarily for rail cars, office facilities, land easements, and rights-of-way with varying
terms, provisions, and expiration dates. TEP's operating lease expense totaled $3 million in 2015 and 2014 and $2
million in 2013.

CONTINGENCIES

Navajo Generating Station Lease Extension

Navajo Generating Station (Navajo) is located on a site that is leased from the Navajo Nation with an initial lease term
through 2019. The Navajo Nation signed a lease amendment in 2013 that would extend the lease from 2019 through
2044. The participants in Navajo, including TEP, have not signed the lease amendment because certain participants
have expressed an interest in discontinuing their participation in Navajo. Negotiations between the participants are
ongoing, and all parties will likely agree to the terms. To become effective, this lease amendment must be signed by
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all of the participants, approved by the Department of the Interior, and is subject to environmental reviews. Once the
lease amendment becomes effective, the participants will be responsible for additional lease costs from the date the
Navajo Nation signed the lease amendment. TEP owns 7.5% of Navajo. In 2015, TEP recorded additional estimated
lease expense of approximately $1 million with the expectation that the lease amendment will become effective. TEP's
Consolidated Balance Sheets reflect a total liability related
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to the lease amendment of $3 million and $2 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, recorded in
Regulatory and Other Liabilities—Other.

Claims Related to Springerville Generating Station Unit 1

In November 2014, the Springerville Unit 1 Third-Party Owners filed a complaint (FERC Action) against TEP at the
FERC alleging that TEP had not agreed to wheel power and energy for the Third-Party Owners in the manner
specified in the existing Springerville Unit 1 facility support agreement between TEP and the Third-Party Owners and
for the cost specified by the Third-Party Owners. The Third-Party Owners requested an order from the FERC
requiring such wheeling of the Third-Party Owners’ energy from their Springerville Unit 1 interests beginning in
January 2015 to the Palo Verde switchyard and for the price specified by the Third-Party Owners. In February 2015,
the FERC issued an order denying the Third-Party Owners complaint. In March 2015, the Third-Party Owners filed a
request for rehearing in the FERC Action, which the FERC denied in October 2015. In December 2015, the
Third-Party Owners appealed the FERC’s order denying the Third-Party Owners' complaint to the U.S. Court of
Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. In December 2015, TEP filed an unopposed motion to intervene in the Ninth Circuit
appeal.

On December 19, 2014, the Third-Party Owners filed a complaint against TEP in the Supreme Court of the State of
New York, New York County (New York Action). In response to motions filed by TEP to dismiss various counts and
compel arbitration of certain of the matters alleged, and the court’s subsequent ruling on the motions, the Third-Party
Owners have amended the complaint three times, dropping certain of the allegations and raising others in the New
York Action and in the arbitration proceeding described below. As amended, the New York Action alleges, among
other things, that TEP failed to properly operate, maintain, and make capital investments in Springerville Unit 1
during the term of the leases and that TEP has breached the lease transaction documents by refusing to pay certain of
the Third-Party Owners’ claimed expenses. The third amended complaint seeks $71 million in liquidated damages and
direct and consequential damages in an amount to be determined at trial. The Third-Party Owners have also agreed to
stay their claim that TEP has not agreed to wheel power and energy as required pending the outcome of the FERC
Action. In November 2015, the Third-Party Owners filed a motion for summary judgment on their claim that TEP has
failed to pay certain of the Third-Party Owners’ claimed expenses.

In December 2014 and January 2015, Wilmington Trust Company, as Owner Trustees and Lessors under the leases of
the Third-Party Owners, sent notices to TEP that alleged that TEP had defaulted under the Third-Party Owners’ leases.
The notices demanded that TEP pay liquidated damages totaling approximately $71 million. In letters to the Owner
Trustees, TEP denied the allegations in the notices.

In April 2015, TEP filed a demand for arbitration with the American Arbitration Association (AAA) seeking an award
of the Owner Trustees and Co-Trustees' share of unreimbursed expenses and capital expenditures for Springerville
Unit 1. In June 2015, the Third-Party Owners filed a separate demand for arbitration with the AAA alleging, among
other things, that TEP has failed to properly operate, maintain and make capital investments in Springerville Unit 1
since the leases have expired. The Third-Party Owners’ arbitration demand seeks declaratory judgments, damages in an
amount to be determined by the arbitration panel and the Third-Party Owners’ fees and expenses. TEP and the
Third-Party Owners have since agreed to consolidate their arbitration demands into one proceeding. In August 2015,
the Third-Party Owners filed an amended arbitration demand adding claims that TEP has converted the Third-Party
Owners’ water rights and certain emission reduction payments and that TEP is improperly dispatching the Third-Party
Owners’ unscheduled Springerville Unit 1 power and capacity. In October 2015, the arbitration panel granted TEP’s
motion for interim relief, ordering the Owner Trustees and Co-Trustees to pay TEP their pro-rata share of
unreimbursed expenses and capital expenditures for Springerville Unit 1 during the pendency of the arbitration. The
arbitration panel also denied the Third-Party Owners’ motion for interim relief which had requested that TEP be
enjoined from dispatching the Third-Party Owners’ unscheduled Springerville Unit 1 power and capacity. TEP has
been scheduling, when economical, the Third-Party Owners’ entitlement share of power from Springerville Unit 1, as
permitted under the Springerville Unit 1 facility support agreement, since June 14, 2015. The arbitration hearing is
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scheduled for July 2016.

In November 2015, TEP filed a petition to confirm the interim arbitration order in the Supreme Court of the State of
New York naming the Owner Trustee and Co-Trustee as respondents. The petition seeks an order from the court
confirming the interim arbitration order under the Federal Arbitration Act. In December 2015, the Owner Trustees
filed an answer to the petition and a cross-motion to vacate the interim arbitration order.

As of December 31, 2015, TEP has billed the Third-Party Owners approximately $23 million for their pro-rata share
of Springerville Unit 1 expenses and $4 million for their pro-rata share of capital expenditures, none of which had
been paid as of February 17, 2016.

TEP cannot predict the outcome of the claims relating to Springerville Unit 1, and, due to the general and non-specific
scope and nature of the claims, TEP cannot determine estimates of the range of loss, if any, at this time. TEP intends
to vigorously
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defend itself against the claims asserted by the Third-Party Owners and to vigorously pursue the claims it has asserted
against the Third-Party Owners.

TEP and the Third-Party Owners have agreed to stay these litigation matters relating to Springerville Unit 1 in
furtherance of settlement negotiations. However, there is no assurance that a settlement will be reached or that the
litigation will not continue.

Claims Related to San Juan Generating Station

In August 2013, the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) proposed regulations that, among other things, redefine the
term “underground mine” to exclude high-wall mining operations and impose a higher surface mine coal royalty on
high-wall mining. SJCC utilized high-wall mining techniques at its surface mines prior to beginning underground
mining operations in January 2003. If the proposed regulations become effective, SICC may be subject to additional
royalties on coal delivered to San Juan between August 2000 and January 2003 totaling approximately $5 million of
which TEP’s proportionate share would approximate $1 million. TEP owns 50% of Units 1 and 2 at San Juan, which
represents approximately 20% of the total generation capacity at San Juan, and is responsible for its share of any
settlements. TEP cannot predict the final outcome of the BLM’s proposed regulations.

In February 2013, WildEarth Guardians (WEG) filed a Petition for Review in the U.S. District Court of Colorado
against the Office of Surface Mining (OSM) challenging federal administrative decisions affecting seven different
mines in four states issued at various times from 2007 through 2012. In its petition, WEG challenges several unrelated
mining plan modification approvals, which were each separately approved by OSM. Of the fifteen claims for relief in
the WEG Petition, two concern SJCC’s San Juan mine. WEG’s allegations concerning the San Juan mine arise from
OSM administrative actions in 2008. WEG alleges various National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) violations
against OSM, including, but not limited to, OSM’s alleged failure to provide requisite public notice and participation,
alleged failure to analyze certain environmental impacts, and alleged reliance on outdated and insufficient documents.
WEG’s petition seeks various forms of relief, including a finding that the federal defendants violated NEPA by
approving the mine plans, voiding, reversing, and remanding the various mining modification approvals, enjoining the
federal defendants from re-issuing the mining plan approvals for the mines until compliance with NEPA has been
demonstrated, and enjoining operations at the seven mines. SJCC intervened in this matter. SJCC was granted its
motion to sever its claims from the lawsuit and transfer venue to the U.S. District Court for the District of New
Mexico, where this matter is now proceeding. The parties have requested the court to stay this matter until April 2016,
in furtherance of settlement negotiations. If WEG ultimately obtains the relief it has requested, such a ruling could
require significant expenditures to reconfigure operations at the San Juan mine, impact the production of coal, and
impact the economic viability of the San Juan mine and San Juan. TEP cannot currently predict the outcome of this
matter or the range of its potential impact.

Claims Related to Four Corners Generating Station

In October 2011, EarthJustice, on behalf of several environmental organizations, filed a lawsuit in the U.S. District
Court for the District of New Mexico against Arizona Public Service Company (APS) and the other Four Corners
Generating Station (Four Corners) participants alleging violations of the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD)
provisions of the Clean Air Act at Four Corners. In January 2012, EarthJustice amended their complaint alleging
violations of New Source Performance Standards resulting from equipment replacements at Four Corners. Among
other things, the plaintiffs sought to have the court issue an order to cease operations at Four Corners until any
required PSD permits are issued and order the payment of civil penalties, including a beneficial mitigation project. In
April 2012, APS filed motions to dismiss with the court for all claims asserted by EarthJustice in the amended
complaint.

TEP owns 7% of Four Corners Units 4 and 5 and is liable for its share of any resulting liabilities. In June 2015, APS,
the operator of Four Corners, announced a settlement with the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for
outstanding environmental issues related to New Source Review provisions under the Clean Air Act. The settlement
calls for environmental upgrades including Selective Catalytic Reduction (SCR) upgrades already planned for under
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the Regional Haze regulation, environmental mitigation projects, and civil penalties. A consent decree reflecting terms
of the settlement was entered by the court in August 2015, effectively closing the case. TEP's share of the additional
capital, excluding the SCR upgrades, is approximately $2 million over the three year period it will take to construct
the upgrades. TEP’s share of the annual O&M expenses is approximately $1 million. In addition, TEP recorded less
than $1 million for its share of the one-time charges for environmental mitigation projects and civil penalties.

In May 2013, the New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department (NMTRD) issued a notice of assessment for coal
severance tax, penalties, and interest totaling $30 million to the coal supplier at Four Corners. TEP's share of the
assessment is $1 million based on our ownership percentage. In December 2013, the coal supplier and Four Corners’
operating agent filed a claim contesting the validity of the assessment on behalf of the participants in Four Corners,
who will be liable for their share of any
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resulting liabilities. In June 2015, the U.S. District Court ruled in favor of the Four Corners' participants. NMTRD
filed an appeal of the decision in August 2015. TEP cannot predict the final outcome or timing of resolution of these
claims.

Mine Closure Reclamation at Generating Stations Not Operated by TEP

TEP pays ongoing reclamation costs related to coal mines that supply generating stations in which TEP has an
ownership interest but does not operate. TEP is liable for a portion of final reclamation costs upon closure of the
mines servicing Navajo, San Juan, and Four Corners. TEP’s share of reclamation costs at all three mines is expected to
be $43 million upon expiration of the coal supply agreements, which expire between 2019 and 2031. The reclamation
liability recorded was $25 million and $22 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Amounts recorded for final reclamation are subject to various assumptions, such as estimations of reclamation costs,
the dates when final reclamation will occur, and the expected inflation rate. As these assumptions change, TEP will
prospectively adjust the expense amounts for final reclamation over the remaining coal supply agreements’ terms. TEP
does not believe that recognition of its final reclamation obligations will be material to TEP in any single year because
recognition will occur over the remaining terms of its coal supply agreements.

TEP’s PPFAC allows us to pass through final reclamation costs, as a component of fuel cost, to retail customers.
Therefore, TEP classifies these costs as a regulatory asset by increasing the regulatory asset and the reclamation
liability over the remaining life of the coal supply agreements and recovers the regulatory asset through the PPFAC as
final mine reclamation costs are paid to the coal suppliers.

Discontinued Transmission Project

TEP and UNS Electric had initiated a project to jointly construct a 60-mile transmission line from Tucson, Arizona to
Nogales, Arizona in response to an order by the ACC to UNS Electric to improve the reliability of electric service in
Nogales. At this time, TEP and UNS Electric will not proceed with the project based on the cost of the proposed
345-kilo-volt (kV) line, the difficulty in reaching agreement with the United States Forest Service on a path for the
line, and concurrence by the ACC that recent transmission additions by TEP and UNS Electric support elimination of
this project. TEP and UNS Electric plan to maintain the Certificate of Environmental Compatibility (CEC) previously
granted by the ACC for this project in contemplation of using the route to serve future customers and to address
reliability needs. As part of the 2013 TEP Rate Order, TEP agreed to seek recovery of the project costs from the
FERC before seeking rate recovery from the ACC. In 2012, TEP wrote off $5 million of the capitalized costs and
recorded a regulatory asset of $5 million for the balance deemed probable of recovery in TEP's next FERC rate case.
Performance Guarantees

TEP has joint participation agreements with participants at Navajo, San Juan, Four Corners, and the Luna Energy
Facility (Luna). The participants in each of the generating stations, including TEP, have guaranteed certain
performance obligations. Specifically, in the event of payment default, the non-defaulting participants have agreed to
bear a proportionate share of expenses otherwise payable by the defaulting participant. In exchange, the
non-defaulting participants are entitled to receive their proportionate share of the generating capacity of the defaulting
participant. As of December 31, 2015, there have been no such payment defaults under any of the participation
agreements. The Navajo participation agreement expires in 2019, San Juan in 2022, Four Corners in 2041, and Luna
in 2046.

NOTE 8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

PENSION BENEFIT PLANS

TEP has three noncontributory, defined benefit pension plans. Benefits are based on years of service and average
compensation. Two of the plans are for substantially all employees. We fund those plans by contributing at least the
minimum amount required under the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) regulations. We also maintain a Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan (SERP) for executive management.

OTHER RETIREE BENEFIT PLANS
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TEP provides limited health care and life insurance benefits for retirees. Active TEP employees may become eligible
for these benefits if they reach retirement age while working for TEP or an affiliate.
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TEP funds its other retiree benefits for classified employees through a Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association
(VEBA). TEP contributed $4 million in 2015 and $3 million in 2014 and 2013 to the VEBA. Other retiree benefits for
unclassified employees are self-funded.

REGULATORY RECOVERY

We record changes in our non-SERP pension plans and other retiree benefit plan, not yet reflected in net periodic
benefit cost, as a regulatory asset, as such amounts are probable of future recovery in the rates charged to retail
customers. Changes in the SERP obligation, not yet reflected in net periodic benefit cost, are recorded in Other
Comprehensive Income since SERP expense is not currently recoverable in rates.

The following table summarizes pension and other retiree benefit related amounts (excluding tax balances) included
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Pension Benefits Other Retiree Benefits
December 31,
(in millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Regulatory Pension Asset Included in Regulatory Assets $115 $117 $5 $9
Accrued Benefit Liability Included in Accrued Employee Expenses (1 ) (1 ) 2 ) 2 )
Accrued Benefit Liability Included in Pension and Other Retiree
Benefits (57 ) (71 ) (63 ) (67 )
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (related to SERP) 5 5 — —
Net Amount Recognized $62 $50 $(60 ) $(60 )

OBLIGATIONS AND FUNDED STATUS

We measured the actuarial present values of all pension benefit obligations and other retiree benefit plans at

December 31, 2015 and 2014. The table below includes all of TEP’s plans. All plans have projected benefit obligations
in excess of the fair value of plan assets for each period presented. The status of our pension benefit and other retiree
benefit plans are summarized below:

Pension Benefits Other Retiree Benefits
Year Ended December 31,
(in millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014
Change in Projected Benefit Obligation
Benefit Obligation at Beginning of Year $407 $330 $81 $74
Actuarial (Gain) Loss (22 ) 67 ® ) 5
Interest Cost 17 16 3 3
Service Cost 12 10 4 4
Benefits Paid (20 ) (16 ) (5 ) (5 )
Projected Benefit Obligation at End of Year 394 407 78 81
Change in Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Beginning of Year 335 307 12 10
Actual Return on Plan Assets 3 ) 35 —
Benefits Paid (20 ) (16 ) (5 ) (5 )
Employer Contributions (1) 24 9 6 6
Fair Value of Plan Assets at End of Year 336
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